## APPENDIX 2C

## <u>GEOLOGIC INVESTIGATIONS OF THE SCOTLAND ROAD FAULT</u> (CLINTON - NEWBURY FAULT), NEWBURY, MASSACHUSETTS, AND PORTSMOUTH FAULT INVESTIGATIONS

The information contained in this appendix was not revised, but has been extracted from the original FSAR and is provided for historical information.

# SCOTLAND ROAD FAULT INVESTIGATIONS

## CONTENTS

I. LOCATION OF FAULT INVESTIGATIONS

## II. INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

- A. Preliminary General Area
- B. Final Property of Marion H. Marshall Estate

## III. TECHNICAL INVESTIGATIONS

- A. Seismic REfraction Survey
- B. Borings Investigations
  - 1. Soils
  - 2. Bedrock
- C. Trenching Investigations
  - 1. Trench 1
  - 2. Trench 2
  - 3. Trench 3
  - 4. Trench 4
- D. Age of Pleistocene Deposits
- E. Petrographic Examinations
- F. Radiometric Age Dating

## IV. CONCLUSIONS

## References

Figure 1.	Location Map - Regional Fault Investigations
Figure 2	Location Map - Scotland Road Fault Investigations
Plate 1	Site Plan - Sub-Surface Investigation
Plate 2	Geologic Map - Scotland Road Fault
Plate 3	Geologic Profile - Scotland Road Fault
Plate 4	Surficial Deposits and Trenches

Attachment 1	Seismic Refraction Survey
Attachment 2	Geologic and Soils Logs
Attachment 3	Petrologic Examinations
Attachment 4	Radiometric Age Determinations

## PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

## SEABROOK STATION

## SCOTLAND ROAD FAULT INVESTIGATIONS

Investigations have been conducted over a portion of the Scotland Road fault in Newbury, Massachusetts, to determine the presence, location, orientation and physical characteristics of the fault, and to examine the nature and structure of the unconsolidated Pleistocene deposits which overlie the fault trace. The investigations have indicated that the fault structure is of Permian age, and that Pleistocene deposits overlying the fault zone show no evidence of movement on the fault subsequent to their deposition.

#### I. LOCATION OF FAULT INVESTIGATIONS

The Scotland Road fault was inferred by A. F. Shride of the U. S. Geological Survey (Shride; 1971) to trend easterly through the towns of West Newbury, Newbury and Newburyport, Massachusetts, about 7 miles to the south of the proposed Seabrook Station (see Figure 1). Shride has interpreted the Scotland Road fault to represent the eastern portion of the Clinton-Newbury fault, which is inferred to trend northeasterly for about 60 miles from the area of Worcester, Massachusetts, to project offshore at Plum Island, Newbury. Detailed investigations to locate and examine the fault and its overlying Pleistocene deposits have been carried out just to the north of Scotland Road near the north corner of Newbury, Massachusetts, in an open field owned by the Marion H. Marshall Estate (see Figure 2). In this area, the fault forms the boundary between Newburyport granodiorite of presumed Devonian age on the north, and an unnamed complex of diorite and schist of unknown geologic age on the south. Diabase dikes of probable Triassic age intrude both the Newburyport and the unnamed diorite/ schist on both sides of the fault.

#### II. INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

## A. Preliminary - General Area

As preliminary investigation of the Scotland Road fault zone,

J. R. Rand walked portions of the fault trace, and inquired of A. F. Shride by telephone as to his studies of the fault zone in the area. R. J. Holt of Weston Geophysical Research, Inc., and J. R. Rand together viewed the inferred trace of the fault zone between Plum Island and Groveland, Massachusetts, by helicopter flying at various altitudes. Diorite ridges aligned parallel to, and about 1000 feet to the south of the trace of the Scotland Road fault in West Newbury are readily seen from the air, but no anomalous physiographic features were noted along the trace of the fault itself. Backhoe trenching investigations over the inferred trace of the fault were attempted on the farm of Miss Alice Elwell, adjacent to Holman Lane,

West Newbury. This exploration, ultimately involving a 232-foot trench excavation in boulder till, sand-cobble till and clay till, was terminated because these glacial materials did not appear suitable for demonstrating the presence or absence of tectonic fault deformation.

## B. Final - Property of Marion H. Marshall Estate

As geographic control for all investigations at the final study area on property owned by the Marion H. Marshall Estate in Newbury, a stadia survey of the area and a base map showing all pertinent features were provided by McKenna Associates, Engineers, Portsmouth, New Hampshire (see Plate 1). Technical investigations in the study area have included a seismic refraction survey; the excavation of four backhoe trenches; and the drilling of nine core borings. Laboratory investigations conducted on drill core samples from the study area have included petrographic examinations and radiometric age dating.

#### III. TECHNICAL INVESTIGATIONS

#### A. Seismic Refraction Survey

A seismic refraction survey was conducted across the study area during the period November 5-19, 1973, by Weston Geophysical Engineers, Inc., Weston, Massachusetts, to determine thicknesses of unconsolidated overburden and weathered rock materials, as well as velocities of the various geologic materials in the study area. Technical details of this survey are presented in a report by Weston Geophysical Engineers, Inc., attached herewith.

This seismic survey report concludes:

"The bedrock surface, as interpreted from seismic data, does not have any sharp breaks indicating faulting. The seismic velocities of the bedrock do not change sufficiently along the 1000-foot line of investigation to indicate the presence of any significant bedrock anomaly. The fault zone does not exhibit significant velocity differences from adjacent bedrock."

## B. Borings Investigations

During the period December 4, 1973, to February 13, 1974, nine borings were put down along the centerline of the seismic refraction survey (Seismic Line "A") to locate, define and sample the Scotland Road fault zone (see Plates 2 and 3). These borings, designated SRF-1 through SRF-9, were drilled by American Drilling and Boring Co., Inc., East Providence, Rhode Island, under the supervision of Geotechnical Engineers, Inc., Winchester, Massachusetts. Geotechnical Engineers' personnel logged the unconsolidated soils materials in these borings, and J. R. Rand logged the bedrock cores. Detailed logs of these borings are attached herewith.

### 1. Soils

The unconsolidated soils materials encountered in 7 of the study area borings include a blanket of silty clay ranging to 40 feet in thickness,

overlying sandy-deposits of varying grain sizes which range to 55 feet in thickness. Locally, a basal section of boulders of a few feet in thickness underlies the sand deposits immediately upon the bedrock surface. Soils materials were not sampled in the two angle borings, SRF-5 and SRF-7.

Plates 3 and 4 describe J. R. Rand's interpretation of the stratigraphy of the soils materials along the line of borings. The geologic interpretation is that of a blanket of glacial-marine clay of late Pleistocene age overlying glacial outwash and marine sands, all underlain by a smooth bedrock surface on which were deposited discontinuous thin sheets of glacial till or ground moraine. The sands in borings SRF-1 and SRF-4, on the southeastern end of the line of borings, are largely yellow-brown, medium- to coarse-grained, and resemble glacial outwash. The sands in SRF-6, SRF-9, SRF-2, SRF-8 and SRF-3 are commonly finer-grained and gray in color, and contain occasional thin interbeds of gray clay. These sands underlying the northern part of the line of borings are interpreted as having been derived from erosion of the outwash, with redeposition in the near-shore marine environment prior to, but historically essentially contemporaneously with deposition of the marine clays. The boundary between the two types of sandy deposits is in the area of SRF-6, where the elevation of the top of the sandy material is low, and the overlying clay blanket is thick.

## 2. Bedrock

The bedrock in the study area has been defined by outcrops of Newburyport granodiorite at the north end of Seismic Line "S", and by the nine borings which extend intermittently from the outcrop area on the north to Scotland Road on the south. The Newburyport outcrops at the north end of the line consist of massive, mottled pink and green, medium-grained granodiorite which exhibits saussurite alteration of feldspars and chloritization of biotite. The rock does not show evidence of shearing on the outcrop surfaces.

Proceeding southeasterly along the line of borings, the bedrock is seen in cores from SRF-5, SRF-7 and SRF-3 to become progressively more altered chemically and more deformed mechanically, becoming light tannishgreen in color, and medium-fine grained and foliated in texture and fabric. With continued distance to the southeast, the bedrock in the hangingwall of the fault is seen in SRF-7, -8, -2, -9 and -6 to be an intensely deformed, light yellow-green welded breccia or cataclastic rock. All of the rock in the fault zone is compact and well consolidated, and no zones of clay gouge or other unconsolidated crushed or sheared materials were encountered in borings in the study area.

Borings SRF-7, SRF-8 and SRF-9 all progressed through the intensely deformed portion of the Scotland Road fault zone into unaltered, dark gray diorite and schist of the unnamed complex which lies to the south of the fault. In each of these borings, a thin (1" to 2"), tan aphanitic rock layer was cored about 5 feet stratigraphically above the horizon where alteration and cataclastic deformation ceased, and this thin marker has been termed "mylonite" on Plates 3 and 4. Borings SRF-4 and SRF-2 drilled only unaltered bedrock of the diorite/schist complex.

Core in borings SRF-2, -3, -7, -8 and -9 was taken with an orienting barrel. Orientation measurements made by Geotechnical Engineers consistently show schistosity or foliation fabric of cores of the fault zone in these borings to dip in the range  $35^{\circ}$  to  $60^{\circ}$  toward the north or N10<sup>o</sup>W. On Plate 2, the subcrop of the footwall of the fault is interpreted to strike N80<sup>o</sup>E and to dip to the north at an average of about 44<sup>o</sup>. The trace of the footwall lies within only about 150 feet of the location inferred by A. F. Shride from his regional mapping studies. The true thickness of the rock section subject to mechanical deformation in the fault zone approaches 300 feet, indicating that the Scotland Road fault is a regional tectonic feature of major geologic significance.

#### C. Trenching Investigations

At various times during the period November 20, 1973, to March 4, 1974, four backhoe trenches were excavated in the study area to expose and examine the glacial-marine clay which overlies the Scotland Road fault zone (see Plate 2). In all trenches, the organic topsoil zone was about 6 inches to 8 inches thick overlying weathered clay, and was continuous and lay parallel with the nearly planar surface of the study area field.

## 1. Trench 1

Trench 1, near the north edge of the fault zone, was excavated on November 20, 1973, in massive olive-gray clay to a depth of about 12 feet at the north end of the trench, and was carried for about 150 feet toward the southeast with a depth of 4 feet to 5 feet. A 2-inch to 3-inch layer of fine laminated silty sand occurred in the clay at a depth of 3 feet to  $3\frac{1}{2}$  feet below ground surface, sloping gradually to the south. This laminated sand-silt layer was continuous and not disrupted in the southern 100 feet of the trench. At the northern end of the trench, the sand-silt layer merged upward into the weathered portion of the soil zone and became unidentifiable.

## 2. Trench 2

Trench 2, to the south of the fault trace, was excavated on December 12, 1973, to a depth of 7 feet to 8 feet in clay, and was carried northwesterly for about 50 feet until collapse of the trench walls terminated the work. This trench exposed a thin, flat-lying laminated sand-silt layer in the clay at a depth of about 6 feet. This sand-silt layer generally resembled that found in Trench 1, although the layer was saturated in Trench 2, and small springs issued from it locally when cut by the backhoe bucket.

## 3. Trench 3

Trench 3 was excavated across the fault zone from south to north on February 26-27, 1974, for a total length of 435 feet and to an average depth of about 7 feet. The trench was cut in olive-gray clay which was internally massive, but which had a thick-bedded characteristic which permitted measuring the gentle undulating layering structure in the clay. Strikeand-dip plots of these layering features are shown in plan on Plate 2, and the projected layering of the clay is shown schematically in profile on Plate 4.

In addition to gross layering structure seen in the clay throughout the length of the trench, a 2-inch to 4-inch laminated fine sand and silt layer was identified within the clay overlying the footwall trace of the underlying fault zone. This sand-silt marker layer dipped northerly out of the weathered soil zone at about 100 feet north of the south end of the trench, and sloped northerly into a synclinal sag at 135 feet north of the south end of the trench, to rise back into the weathered soil zone and be lost about 170 feet north of the south end of the trench.

The structure of layering in the clay throughout Trench 2 forms gently undulating, open folds which appear generally to parallel the upper surface of the underlying outwash and marine sand deposits. No tight or abrupt folds were seen to disrupt the continuity of layering in the clay, and close examination throughout the length of the trench failed to detect any drag folding within the clay beds. The clay is jointed throughout the trench area, with joints tending to change orientations to conform to changing attitudes of the broad undulations in clay layering. No slickensides or other evidence of displacement were detected on any joints in the trench. No

sand dikes cutting across clay layering or filling joints were found. No offsets were found in the thin, sagged sand-silt marker horizon which was interbedded in the clay between Stations 100 and 170 in Trench 3.

Between 55 feet to 65 feet north of the south end of Trench 3, the backhoe excavated a pocket into the floor of the trench to a depth of about 14 feet, to determine whether there were any stratigraphic changes to that depth which might be useful to examine while proceeding northerly with the excavation across the fault zone. To the 14-foot depth tested, no sand layers were seen in the clay, and the pocket was backfilled to restore the trench floor to the normal 7-foot depth. Within a few moments of completing and tamping the backfill, several springs erupted from the trench floor within the backfill area, with artesian flows rising 1 inch to 2 inches above the floor of the trench. Fine gray sand suspended in the flowing waters of the several springs rapidly built sand cones several inches thick around the springs. A dam was built across the trench to the north of the springs, to protect the proposed excavation to the north from flooding, and thereafter the southern 80 feet of the trench filled to within 2 feet of ground surface, with the highly mobile fine gray sand continuing to be deposited from the springs onto the floor of the flooding trench.

#### 4. Trench 4

Trench 4 was excavated on March 4, 1974, in an attempt to locate the westerly projection of the laminated sand-silt marker horizon found between

Stations 100 and 170 in Trench 3. A similar layer was found in Trench 4, taking the form of an open synclinal sag which plunged gently to the northeast toward Trench 3. Spoon sampling of the soils in Boring SRF-6, between the two trenches, also had detected a sand-silt layer in the clay at an elevation corresponding with that which projected between the two trenches.

Various points on the sand-silt horizon in each of the two trenches were then surveyed in by McKenna Associates in order to provide locations and elevations with which to define the structure of the horizon as it passed over the footwall and portions of the intensely deformed base of the Scotland Road fault. These surveyed points are designated points "A" through "J" on Plate 2. The structure of the horizon is defined in plan in an insert on Plate 2, and in profiles showing the east wall of Trench 3 and the east and west walls of Trench 4 on Plate 4.

As shown on Plate 2, the structure of the sand-silt marker horizon takes the form of an open, doubly-plunging syncline which strikes southwesterly across the footwall of the fault. No offsets of the sand-silt layer were detected in either trench, and no abrupt folding or drag folds were detected in this layer or in the clay beds in either trench. The sand-silt layer in both trenches does not apparently thicken or show increased grain sizes toward the trough of the syncline. No sand dikes were found in Trench 4, nor were joints slickensided.

No evidence was-found to suggest that the synclinal structure of the sand-silt layer crossing the fault in the area of Trenches 3 and 4 was formed by other than passive deformation due to differential settlement of the underlying clay. The relatively non-compressible outwash and marine sands underlying the clay in the study area are at a low elevation beneath the area of this synclinal sag, and the relatively compressible clay section is thick. Conversely, the sand elevation is high and the clay is thin as seen in borings put down to the north and south of the sag. With the gradual post-depositional compaction of the clay materials through time, the thicker clay sections settled more deeply than the thin clay sections, passively producing sags in the originally horizontal layering of the finegrained clay deposits.

There is no detectable sag in the topsoil zone which overlies the synclinal sag in the sand-silt marker horizon in Trenches 3 and 4, and there is no noticeable variation in thickness of the topsoil zone in these trenches. Since the sand-silt layer does not thicken or show coarser grain sizes toward the trough of the synclinal sag, the sand-silt layer appears to have been deposited on an originally horizontal surface which lay stratigraphically above the present ground surface. Differential settlement and sagging of the sand-silt horizon must have been completed prior to the last erosional beveling of the present ground surface, presumably upon retreat of the last post-glacial marine transgression, since the topsoil zone built

upon this beveled horizon shows no evidence of having sagged over the sand-silt sag or over any other of the gently undulations seen in the clay layering throughout the length of Trench 3. There is no evidence of disruption of any of the sedimentary layers overlying the fault zone in any of the trenches, to suggest movement on the Scotland Road fault subsequent to deposition of the overlying Pleistocene deposits.

#### D. Age of Pleistocene Deposits

No shells or other organic materials were found in the clay in the study area with which to establish an age of deposition of the clay. The clay deposit is, however, considered correlative with similar glacial-marine clays which blanket portions of the seaboard lowland throughout eastern New England.

Borns (1973) reports that "a major amelioration of climate began prior to 14,200 years ago which resulted in a rapid dissipation of the ice sheet in New England at least by 12,500 years ago". The recession of the ice sheet was accompanied by a marine invasion of the seaboard lowland, with deposition of glacial-marine clay sediments. Borns brackets the time of deposition of the glacial-marine clay in the region between 13,500 and 12,500 years ago.

Schafer and Hartshorn (1965) report that radiocarbon dates of shells from glacial-marine sediments on the seaboard lowland in Maine range from 11,800 to 12,800 years old. Kaye and Barghoorn (1964) have constructed

a curve of sea-level fluctuations for the Boston, Massachusetts, area which describes the last marine submergence as having ended about 12,500 years ago in that area.

It appears, therefore, that the glacial-marine clays of the Newbury study area are at least older than 11,800 years, and are probably in the range of 12,500 to 13,500 years old.

#### E. Petrographic Examinations

The petrography of eight samples of drill core from borings in and adjacent to the Scotland Road fault has been described by Professor Gene Simmons and Dorothy Richter of Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Sample	Boring	Depth (feet)	Description
SRF-1A	SRF-1	74.0 to 74.4	Amphibolite breccia
SRF-2A	SRF-2	60.0 to 60.4	Mylonized quartz-muscovite schist
SRF-2B	SRF-2	72.9 to 73.4	Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist
SRF-3A	SRF-3	67.0 to 67.5	Muscovite mylonite
SRF-4A	SRF-4	92.9 to 93.3	Chlorite augen gneiss
SRF-5A	SRF-5	42.1 to 42.6	Sheared granodiortie
SRF-5B	SRF-5	175.1 to 175.6	Altered olivine basalt
SRF-7A	SRF-7	115.9 to 116.4	Ultramylonite

Simmons and Richter conclude from their studies that "the samples (with the exception of sample SRF-5B) all show evidence of dynamic deformation; that is, cataclasis, brecciation and intense crushing--all probably due to motion along the fault. The deformation clearly took place after the regional metamorphism of the rocks (which was probably associated with the Devonian Acadian orogeny). The microcracks produced in the deformational

events appear in thin section to have either annealed, or have been filled by secondary minerals. There is no firm petrographic evidence of recent deformation of these samples". The complete text of the Simmons and Richter report is attached herewith.

A further indication of the old age of deformation of the fault zone is evidenced by sample SRF-5B, from a diabase dike which is enclosed within deformed rocks of the fault zone. Petrographically the dike is seen to be completely undeformed. The dike has been dated radiometrically (K-Ar) at  $199^{\pm}9$  million years.

### F. Radiometric Age Dating

K-Ar age determination have been obtained on six samples of drill core from borings in and adjacent to the Scotland Road fault by Geochron Laboratories, Division of Krueger Enterprises, Inc., Cambridge, Massachusetts.

Sample	Boring	Depth (feet)	Material	Age
SRF-5A	SRF-5	42.1 to 42.6	whole rock	272 10 M.Y.
SRF-3A	SRF-3	67.0 to 67.5	whole rock	269 10 M.Y.
SRF-2A	SRF-2	60.0 to 60.4	whole rock	256 10 M.Y.
SRF-8A	SRF-8	155.6 to 156.0	sericite/	248 9 M.Y.
			feldspar	
SRF-1A	SRF-1	74.0 to 74.4	amphibole	324 14 M.Y.
SRF-5B	SRF-5	175.1 to 175.6	whole rock	199 9 M.Y.

Samples SRF-5A, -3A, -2A, and -8A are from within the fault zone; SRF-1A is from the diorite/schist complex which lies to the south of the fault zone; SRF-5B is from an undeformed diabase dike which is enclosed within deformed rocks of the fault zone (see Plate 3). Of apparent geologic

interest is the fact that radiometric ages increase progressively with distance from the footwall of the fault zone. SRF-8A is from about 5 feet above the mylonite band near the footwall of the fault, whole SRF-5A is in relatively undeformed granodiorite about 250 feet stratigraphically above the footwall. Radiometric dating of rocks within the Scotland Road fault zone indicates that the fault is of Permian age, and suggests that deformation in the zone may have been active through a period of as much as 20 million years. The dike (SRF-5B) which intruded the fault zone is completely undeformed, indicating that movement on the fault had ceased by Triassic time.

### IV. CONCLUSIONS

The Scotland Road fault has been located within 150 feet of the location inferred by A. F. Shride on the basis of his regional field studies. Nine core borings have defined the fault zone as being about 300 feet thick and dipping at about 44° to the north adjacent to Scotland Road in Newbury, Massachusetts. Chemical alteration and mechanical deformation in the fault zone increases progressively from north to south across the fault zone, and alteration effects of faulting terminate abruptly at the footwall of the fault zone, about 5 feet stratigraphically below a thin mylonite band. The fault is a feature of major geological significance in the region.

The fault is geologically very old, of early to middle Permian age, and the altered and deformed bedrock materials in the fault zone are annealed and compact. No unconsolidated gouge, shear zones or polished joint surfaces

were detected in cores from borings drilled across the width of the fault zone. The bedrock surface overlying the fault zone slopes gradually up to undeformed bedrock outcrops at the north edge of the fault zone, and appears from refraction seismic surveys and borings data to be smooth and sub-planar, with no detectable topographic anomalies.

Surficial materials overlying the fault zone include glacial till, glacial outwash and marine sands, and glacial-marine clays, all of Pleistocene age. The youngest of these Pleistocene deposits are the glacial-marine clays, estimated from regional studies to be older than 11,800 years. A thin, essentially horizontal layer of post-Pleistocene topsoil covers the glacial-marine clay in the area.

Examination of the glacial-marine clay in four trenches excavated over the area of the fault zone failed to detect any evidence of tectonic fault displacement in the clay and its interbedded sand-silt layers. Bedding in the clay displayed no abrupt monoclinal or drag folds. Joints were not slickensided. The thin laminated sand-silt horizons interbedded in the clay were not offset. No sand dikes were found in the clay, which directly overlies deposits of highly mobile fine sand.

All evidence observed in the current investigations indicate that Pleistocene deposits overlying the Scotland Road fault have not been subjected to disruption by tectonic faulting.

> John R. Rand Consulting Geologist

### References:

- Borns, H. W., Jr. (1973) Late Wisconsin Fluctuations of the Laurentide Ice Sheet in Southern and Eastern New England. in The Wisconsinan Stage; Geological Society of America, Memoir 136; Boulder, Colorado.
- Kaye, C. A. and E. S. Barghoorn (1964) Late Quarternary Sea-Level Change and Crustal Rise at Boston, Massachusetts, with Notes on the Autocompaction of Peat. Geological Society of America, Bulletin Vol. 75, 63-80.
- Schafer, J. P. and J. H. Hartshorn (1965) The Quaternary of New England. in The Quaternary of the United States; Princeton University Press; Princeton, New Jersey.
- Shride, A. F. (1971) Igneous Rocks of the Seabrook, New Hampshire-Newbury, Massachusetts, Area. in Guidebook for Field Trips in Central New Hampshire and Contiguous Areas. New England Intercollegiate Geological Conference - 1971.
- NOTE: The study area was visited on March 13, 1974, by M. H. Pease, Jr. and P. J. Barosh, U. S. Geological Survey, Boston. Trenches 3 and 4 were inspected. The trenches were thereupon filled in.





# ATTACHMENT No. 1

## SEISMIC REFRACTION SURVEY SCOTLAND ROAD FAULT ZONE NEWBURY, MASSACHUSETTS

WESTON GEOPHYSICAL ENGINEERS, INC. for PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

# SEISMIC REFRACTION SURVEY

# SCOTLAND ROAD FAULT ZONE NEWBURY, MASSACHUSETTS

for

# PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE



WESTON GEOPHYSICAL ENGINEERS, INC. WESTON, MASSACHUSETTS

# SEISMIC REFRACTION SURVEY SCOTLAND ROAD FAULT ZONE NEWBURY, MASSACHUSETTS

#### INTRODUCTION

A seismic refraction survey was conducted across the mapped location of the Scotland Road fault, as originally mapped by A. F. Shride (1971) and shown on Figure 1 and Plate 2 of the report. Seismic field work took place during the period of November 5 through 19, 1973. The location of this survey is shown on Figure 1 of this attachment.

The general purpose of this work was to determine thicknesses of overburden and weathered rock materials as well as the velocities of the verious geologic materials existing at this location.

#### RESULTS

The results of this refraction survey are shown on a profile of the bedrock surface (Figure 2). Also shown on this profile are overburden and bedrock seismic velocities, boring locations, and bedrock depths as found from borings as well as the fault zone, as indicated by J. R. Rand. The bedrock surface, as interpreted from seismic data, does not have any sharp breaks indicating faulting. The seismic velocities of the bedrock do not change sufficiently along the 1,000-foot line of investigation to indicate the presence of any significant bedrock anomaly. The fault zone does not exhibit significant velocity differences from the adjacent bedrock.

)



SEISMIC LINE LOCATIONS

SCOTLAND ROAD FAULT

PUBLIC SERVICE CO. of NEW HAMPSHIRE

SEABROOK NUCLEAR STATION

# ATTACHMENT No. 2

# GEOLOGIC AND SOILS LOGS OF BORINGS SRF-1 THROUGH SRF-9

.

G	ROUNI	D EL A	(SL) _	18.1	- <u>ft</u>	DEPTH TO V	VATER	/DATE	0.5 ft	<u> </u>	c. 28, 1973 LOGGED BY So	oil - K. Polk; Rock - J. R. Rand
EL.		SAMPI	T	RATE	CONT	ER or RQD	PRE	SURE TEST	STRIKE, DIP		SOIL AND R	ROCK DESCRIPTIONS
nst. ft	Depti fi	and No.	N or Rec.	ADV.	8	Graphic	gpm pei	Computed k 10 <sup>-4</sup> cm/sec	J = Joint C = Contact B = Bedding	CORI	(Weathering, defects, etc.)	(Type, taxture, mineralogy, color, hardness, etc.)
18.1	-10	S1 S2 S3 S4 S5 S6 S7	7 7 21 29 30 31 5		33.5 29.4 32.3 31.9 32.4 34.9 37.8			тор	OF SAND		Notited gray, olive-gray, and brown lightly mottled gray & olive brown si lightly mottled gray & olive brown si Similar to Sample S3. s (tor) > 1.0 Similar to S3, but somewhat softer: Similar to S3, but softer; some gray Similar to S3, but softer; some gray Similar to Sample S3, but medium st color varies slightly olive-brown to to	silty clay. Low plasticity; $\gg P$ . L; s, f(or)=50 tm lity clay. Low to med. plasticity, $\approx (tor) > 1$ 0 tell um plasticity; $\gg P$ . L. $s_u(tor) > u$ 1.0 tg 1) tef contains few gray spots to 8 mm. $s_u(tor) = 0.95$ tm spots. $s_u(tor) = 0.65$ ts liff; contains a gray silt layer < 0.5 mm thick: olive-gray. $s_u(tor) = 0.34$ tef
0.	20 [ 20 [ 30 [ 30 [	58 59 510 511 51 14	0 9 10 9/6'' 19							Land and south as	Gray layered silty clay and clayey fir lity; slightly sticky: very soft when r Gray silty fine sand. Uniform; fines Similar to Sample S9, but also contai Similar to Sample S9, but also contai Brown silty fine sand. Uniform; fine sam layers.	he sund. Silty clay is soft; medium to high plast remolded. Layers vary 0.5-10 mm.sutor) = 0.22 : are nonplastic; very fast reaction to shaking test ins a few gray clay layers 1-2 mm thick. Ins some gray clay layers. es are nonplastic; contains a few rusty-brown find
-20 -		512 513 514 515	24 26 31 17								Frown slightly sitty fine to medium s ayer of gray clayey gravelly sand wi Brown very slightly sitty uniform fine Light brown sitty fine sand. Uniform moarse sand grains and some rusty-b Similar to Sample S14.	sand. Uniform; fines are nonplastic; contains a ith subrounded gravel up to 20 mm in size. he to medium sand. n; fines are nonplastic; contains a few subrounded brown medium sand layers.
-40 -		S16A S16B S17A S17B S18 NX-1 NX-2	59 15/6" 79 28/6" 92/6" 100	3.0		17.7.7		тор	OF TILL	11111111111111111111111111111111111111	Similar to Sample S14. Gray-brown silty sandy gravel. Wid pto 30 mm in size; fines are nonpla Light gray fine to medium sand. Uni Light gray silty sandy gravel. Angul ragmenta up to 30 mm in size. Gray silty gravelly fine sand. Unifor beecs up to 15 mm in size. Cored boulders.	iely graded; angular grains; contains gravel piece astic. iform; angular to subrounded grains; clean. lar grains; appears to decomposed rock and rock rm; fines are nonplastic; contains angular gravel
-60 -		NX-3	93	4.2	<b>4</b> 3 83			BOTTOM	OF BORING		Clean well. Only very sligh surface wx cffects on 5 <sup>6</sup> Joint joints and partings. Minor wx	blend cyrstals (1/2") in fine-grained quartz diorite matrix. <u>****</u> 76, 3' <u>Gradational contact - fused.</u> <u>****</u> Diorite. Massive, fine-grained, dk. g
	ليستعليه والمستعد وال									يتليب السيابين السيابي		
	ساميدا يبيا يديابيه المعي									يد المنظلين المنظلينية	·	
N R R S U	- 1 e0 - 1 QD - 1 - 1	Standar Longth Longth Split sp Undistu	d penel recove of sour con sai	ration red/let d core mple amples	resista igth cor 4 in. a V	sce, blows/ft ed, % nd longer/len Groundwater	gth cor	ed, 9	3 s (tor) = Shear u with T	itron prvin	h measured SEA PUBLIC YAI	ABROOK STATION SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NKEE ATOMIC ELECTRIC COMPANY

•

•

٠

- · ·

EL. MSL	Dept	SAMPL	JE N	RATE	WAT CONT	ER or RQD	PRES	SURE TEST	STRIKE, DIP F = Foliation J = Joint	RE	Soil AND ROCK DESCRIPTIONS (Weathering, defects, etc.) (Type, texture, mineralogy,
ft	ft	and No.	or Rec.	ADV. miz/fi	S.	Graphic	g <u>pm</u> psi	k 10 <sup>-4</sup> cm/sec	C = Contact B = Bedding	8	color, hardness, etc.)
17.6	L.J	SASB	2.4/6''		31	I	00	TOP	S = Slickensid OF CLAY	FT	SIA - Dark brown soft librous ocat. SIB - Mottled gray and olive-brown silty Clay.
	Ē	S2 53	16 26 24		29.0 30.1 33.8					El	Diffuse to sample 3: $s_contains a one rusty prown layers to 3 mm thick, s_u(tor) > 1.Olive brown sity clay. Low to medium plasticity: w > P. L.; s_u(tor) > 1.0 (so 2)i Similar to sample 33, but fewer brown and serve streaks to 5 mm. s (tor) > 1.0 ts$
	ŧŧ	85 86	13		35.6					Ē	Similar to S3, but fewer brown spots; more gray streaks; somewhat softer. s (tor)=. S Olive-brown silty clay. Low to medium plasticity. s. (tor) = 0.50 taf
	[-10 [	57	5		49.5					El	Similar to S6, but no dark brown spots; soft to medium stiff; slightly sticky. s (tor) = 0.23-0.30 tsf
	Ēr	58	2		52.5					E	Gray to olive-gray silty clay. Very soft to soft; medium to high plasticity; slightly
0	ŧ.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,									El	sticky, $s_u(tor) = 0.15 tsf$
	Est o	59	0		37.8			тор	OF SAND	Ē	Similar to Sample S8. sutor) = 0.18 tet
	Ē	<b>S10</b>	7							Ē	Gray very silty fine sand. Uniform; fines are generally nonplastic, but contains a gray clay pockets up to 8 mm in size.
	ן דיי נ	<b>S</b> 11	10							El	Similar to Sample S10.
	Ē									El	
20	ŧ	\$12	13							Ē	Gray-brown fine to medium sand. Uniform; subrounded grains; clean.
	₽¶° [	<b>S</b> 13	4							El	Light gray fine sand. Uniform; clean; contains one 8 mm size subrounded piece gr
	ξc	S14	8							El	Similar to Sample S13.
	E_50 [	NX-1	93		1) <sub>22</sub>			тор	OF ROCK	El	
	591.5			4)		4///			52 <sup>°</sup>		No slickensides Not notably wx. Altered
i0 -	Ē	NX-2	100		32				49° 53°		by motamorphic process y yellowish green, line-grain to light yellow green matrix. Foliated with round
	<b>F</b> 60	NX-3	300		23				45°	F	color. Not slickensided. pebble-like breccia, and sv feldspathic and chloritic fol
	Eľ	BX-4	100	4.7	67	1 1/			46		50° Joint Fresh. Drills well. Part stions. Thin feldspathic st ings and some high-angle ers and irregular veinlets of
	Ē								مہ	Ē	Mmor rusty joints show crusty sur- 185° Joint face wx effects. No slick the stion. Cross-stringers.
	-70	BX-5	100	2.6	55				47 40°	Ē	Irregular ensides or other recent Cross-
	Ē	BX-6	100	2.0	100				42 <sup>°</sup>	EE	Not allickensided
50 -	177.5 L E							BOTTON	OF BOBING	ŧî	
	ŧ							20110	or bonand	Εl	
	Ē									FI	
	F									F	
	Ē								1	El	
	Ē									È	
	Ē									E	
	Ē									Ē	
	ŧ									ŧl	
	Ē									El	
	Ē									Ēl	
	E									E	
	Ē									Ē	
	Ē									E	
	ŧ									F	
	É									El	
	E									E	
	Ē									El	
	ŧ									El	
	<u> </u>								l	El	
N	- 5	tandard	penet	ration	res ista	nce, blows/ft		NOTE	S Cored two houlds	rs fr	from 47.5 ft to SEABROOK STATION
R	QD - 1	Angth o	i soun	d core	4 in. s ▼	nd longer/len	gth cor	ed, %	i0.5 ft.	••	PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
10	- 2	adietuz	bed sa	mples	¥	OT OUD UWENCY		2 } #	(tor) = Shear st	reng	YANKEE ATOMIC ELECTRIC COMPANY

.

.

. -

BORING LOCATION See Sociand Rd. site plan INCLINATION Vert											RING	DATE STAR	FINISH Dec.	11, 1973 / Dec. 19, 1973	
	CASING	m	3 in.			CORE SIZE	2-1/8 to 1-	7/8 in. TOTAL DEPTH95.0				DRILLED BY American Drilling & Boring Co.; Manco			
	GROUN	DELA	(SL)_	17.9	<u>ft</u>	DEPTH TO W	ATER/DAT	'Е	0.0 ft		ec. 31, 1973	LOGGED BY	Soil - K. Polk;	Rock - J. R. Rand	
EL		SAMPL	£	RATE	CONT	ER or RQD ENT	PRESSUR	E TEST	STRIKE, DIP F = Foliation	<u>ي</u> ع	2	SOIL A	ND ROCK DESCRI	PTIONS	
	Depti	and	N OT Bec	ADV.		Crenhia	Epm4	k	J = Joint C = Contact D = Deddies	COR	(Weather	ring, defects, etc	.)	(Type, texture, mineralogy, color, hardness, etc.)	
17		<u>NO.</u>	Rec.	m12/11	*	Graphie	00	Cm/sec	S = Slickensid						
1	Έ.	S1 S2	4		40.0 29.1					Ē	Mottled office-	ed brown and gray gray and rusty br	penty silty clay. own silty clay. Lo	Low plasticity: $s_u(tor) = 0.60 ts[1]$ ow plasticity: $w \ge P. L. s_u(tor)=0.90ts[-$	
	F F	S3 S4	33		27.8 36.3 37 7					F.	Similar to Sam Olive-brown ai Similar to Sam	ple S2. su(tor) > Ity clay. Mediu nie S4. but contai	1.0 tsf, m plasticity; w > F ns several stit lets	P.L.; s (tor) = 0.80 tsf T = C (NSmm thick :s (tor) = 0.48 tsf	
l	E.	S	4		45.0 43.5					EL	Similar to 54, Olive-brown to	but medium stiff; gray silty clay.	contains several v Slightly sticky; s.,	ery thin silt layers, $a$ (tor) = 0.45 tr i. (tor) = 0.12-0.17 tsi u	
	ŧ.	-S7A	2/6"		51.9					ξĹ	Gray silty clay	. Very soft to so	ft; medium plastič	ity; sticky. s (tor) = 0.10 tsf	
	Ēι	58	2		55.4					EL	Similar to Sam	ple S7A. 5 (tor)	= 0.12 tsf.		
0	£_0,									È.		u			
	Ē	189	3		50.94					El	Similar to Sam	ple S7A. s (tor)	= 0, 15-0, 19 tsf		
	Ê	S10	2		36, 3					Ē	Similar to Sam	ple S7A, but also	contains a few ailt	layers < 0.5 mm thick; color varies	
	E-30 [	SIL	16	$\square$			TC	ор	OF SAND	Ęļ.	Gray lavared a	and darker, s (	aitty fine and the	and a set 1 for an Abdalt	
1	ŧ	ſ								ξÌ	Stay sayered at	or and cish sug	only the sand. Li	ayelo are 1-3 mm UNICK.	
-20	E. [	612	8				т	OP	OF TILL	EL	Gray silty fine contains a few p	sand. Uniform; f gray clay layers (	ines are nonplastic up to 5 mm thick.	c; very fast reaction to shaking test;	
[	Ê.	S13	57 75/6''*					TOP	OF ROCK	È	Gray-green silt Similar to Same	ty angular rock fr <u>ple S13, but lar</u> ge	agments up to 30 r.	nm in size.	
{		NX-1	97	3.0	43	177				E	45° joint-rusty	Fairly fresh (as f	(xw 10	Altered diorite (?). Fine-	
1	Ęł	$\{$				4/A					minor wx	ably hydrotherma	lly, to	grained, light gray-green matrix with medium-grained	
	<b>F6</b> 0	NX-2	97	3.2	47						40° joint	a light gray-greer green color. Joir	to tan di di	abase of vague foliation throughout.	
	E	NX-3	100	4.0	77	1				ŧ¥		slight rusty wx ef	fects.		
-40	Ę	1				۲ ۲				ĒĦ	[		1. 9	Jartz-	
	F-60	NX-4	100	3.8	87	L L				FH	t t	Fresh, but altered thermally to light	d hydro-	nk feldspar 61.5' Fault block (2) Fused tight	
	E	NX-5	100	4.2	75					ĒĒ	i	ish (epidote) gray. and partings are r	Joints Ci	avelone contacts-notable epidotization	
	È.I	1				۲٦ T			2)	E		elickensided, not	polishedGo	bidote to very fine-grained, locally	
	E	NX-6	100	4.0	82	بل الم			N50E, 38NW F	EB	Rough		25	leidspathized light gray te	
	F	NQ-7	100		68	-4			N83W, 46NE J N89E, 51NW F		Driller	Fresh, but altered	1 hydro-	alely foliated, saussuritized	
-60	ŧ.	NQ-8	100	3)	52	VΔ					Kionna f	thermally. Quart mineralization co	z/pyrite	feldspar phenocrysts in fine- rite grained matrix. Appears to	
	Ē	NQ-9	95		67	ľ/1					161° loint r	to foliation. Joini not Flickensided,	s are	be moderately foliated New- buryport Diorite.	
	È	1 '				Ю			N56W: 275W 5	ĒŔ	Rough surface				
	E <sub>o</sub>	(NQ-10	100	{ }	72	Д			N65W, 46NE J			Fairly tresh, but Joints not slicken:	sided or		
	Ē	NQ-11	100		63				N56W: 27NE J N.2W 24NE J		N F	polished.	l'inter		
İ.	F 95 L	1	-				BO	TTOM	OF BORING	Ē	r	·····			
	Ę									El					
	Ę									E					
	E									El					
	Ē									El					
	ŧ									Ē					
1	E	1								E1					
	F									El					
1	E	1	1							EL					
1	ŧ							1		E	1				
	Ē									FI					
l	Ē									ŧI.	}				
1	E							:		ĘĹ					
	Ē									F1					
Į	Ę		l							EL					
L	Ē									Ē	<u> </u>			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	N - 8	Standaro	i penet	ration	res ista	nce, blows/ft		NOT	3			8	EABROO	K STATION	
	Rec - 1 RQD - 1	Longth i Longth i	recove of sour	red/lea d core	gth cor 4 in. a	wd, % nd longer/len;	sth cored, %	1)	s <sub>u</sub> ftor) = Shear a with Te	stren Drvan	igth measured	PUB	LIC SERVICE CON	APANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE	
E.	s - 1 U - 1	Split spe Undistas	ten noc rbed ed	mpie Impies	¥	Groundwater		2)	This is only a pr	rtial	l list of dip and		YANKEE ATOM	C ELECTRIC COMPANY	
IDE I		5 - She	lby tub	e N	- Deni	800 ·		3)	strike data. Rate of advance	not =	vallable for				
		F - Fixe O - Osta	ed pist erberg	ona P G	- Pitci - GEI	her		<ol> <li>Rate of advance not available for NQ-8 through NQ-11.</li> </ol>				Date: Tob-	18TV 13 1074	Duniant Pass	
	D - 1	Drilling	break		k -	Coefficient of			the set man in the			PAGE -			
Ľ	₩X - `	Weather		-alberu		permeability	r	<u> </u>	used 300 lb hamr	ner,		PAGE		LOG OF BORING SRF 3	

Γ	BORING	LOCA	LION .	See	Scotlan	d Rd. site pla	n in	CLINATION	Vertical	BEA	RING	DATE START/FI	NISH Dec.	20, 1973 / Jan. 3, 1974
1	CASING	· DD	3 in.			CORE SIZE	<u>2-1/8 to</u>	<u>1-7/8 in</u> .	TOTAL DE	ртн	<u>96.0 ft</u>	DRILLED BY	American Drill	ing & Boring Co.; W. Manco
	GROUN	DEL (N	(SL)	17.6	<u>fi</u>	DEPTH TO V	VATER/D	ATE	0.0 ft	/	Jan. 2, 1974	LOGGED BY S	oil - K. Polk:	Rock - J. R. Band
EL MS	Dept	SAMPL	E	RATE OF	CONT	ER or RQD	PRESSU	URE TEST	F = Foliation	3.5	02 ≺ (Weatherin	SOIL AND	ROCK DESCRI	PTIONS (Type, texture, mineralogy,
<u>n</u>	ft	and No.	or Rec.	ADV. min/fi	96	Graphic	gom pai 10	0 <sup>-4</sup> cm/sec	C = Contact B = Bedding	õ	BRE			color, hardness, etc.)
17. 6	F	<u>51,51 A</u>	1,6	<u>г</u>	27.5	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	00		S = Slickonaid	ΈT	SI-Dark brown p	eaty topsoll. SIA-N	latiled brown,	olive-brown, and gray slity clay.
	Ē	S2 S3	19 17 21		28.0 30.7 33.7					E	Med. still to still $a_{u}(tor) = 0.75 ts[$ $u_{w}$ slightly above	I: low plasticity; co I. S2-Similar to S1 ve PL. s. (tor) - 1.	A but very st 0 fsi S3-Olive	0.5mm in dia.; w above PL. iff; somewhat blocky, some layering; -brown slity clay. Very stiff; low to
	Ē	55 56	6		40.8 38.5					Ē	medium plasticity some dark brown Medium stilf to s	y: somewhat blocky i spots up to ) mm t till; medium plasti	$hick, s_{i}(tor) \ge 1, (tor)$ city; contains (	tsf S4-Similar to Sample S3, with - 1.0 tsf S5-Olive-brown slity clay, - several dark brown spots,
		57	11		41.3					FI	$s_{\rm u}(tor) = 0.52 tar$5. s_{\rm u}(tor) = 0.3$	i S6-Similar to San 35 taf	nple 55. s <sub>u</sub> (to	r) = 0.45 tsf S7-Similar to Sample
	- -	58	13		33.0			тор	OF SAND	E	Gray silty clay,	Medium stiff; medi	ium to high pla	sticity; contains some ality (ine sand -
'	-20									E	layers up to 20 m	im thick near bottom	m. p (tor) = 0 u	. 30 tsf
	Ē	59	10							Ē	test; contains a fo	ow clay layers up to	5 1 mm thick.	plastic; very that reaction to snaking
[	Ē	IS10	30							El	Similar to Sample	e 59, but contains c	ilay layers up t	o 5 mm thick.
	-30 -	IS11	34							E	Brown medium to	coarse sand. Uni	form; subround	led grains; contains a few olive-brown
	<b>134.0</b>	512	15					тор	OFTILL	Ē	Gray-brown silty	<u>gravelly</u> sand. Wi	ew gravel piec idely graded; s	ubangular to subrounded grains; fines
-20		]	17							E	are nonplastic; co	ontains a few grave	l pieces up to 2	20 mm in size.
	Ē	513	17						·	Ē	tains a few gravel	lity sand. Widely p pieces up to 20 mi	graded; subrou m in size.	nded grains; lines are nonplastic; con-
	Ē	S14	18							El	Similar to Sample	e S13, but also cont	ains subangula	r grains.
	E° I	S15	9				·			FI	Similar to Sample	s13, but clean.		
	Ē	S16	15•							El	Brown medium sa	and. Uniform; subr	munded grains	clean.
-40	E.,					· · · · · ·		TOP	OF ROCK	EL	<u> </u>	<u></u>		
	E	NX-1	100	3.6	0						'Rusty Soft-flasile is	esh internally. Lo subject to severe w	cally is in the	Schist. Foldspathic, fine-
	Ē	N X-2	77	5.7	0						sof	ftening. Parts on f on. Not slickensid	oli-	ation matrix with disseminated
	<b>E</b> 70	NX-3	100	3.1	14	111					Striated Chlorite		1986	altered. May be foliated diorite
	Ē	NX-4	83	4.0	0	$\neq +++$					Fault-narrow Fre	esh. Closely broke	en one with	Apparent narrow fault zones or - shears at 77', 82.5-85' and 88.5
-60	E.	NX-5	100	3.0	0					L L L	hig pat	th-angle joints or o rtings on high-angle	· ) · ) /	Have feldspar stringers, and micaceous "gouge".
	Ē	NX-6	100	2.8	33						82.5 fol: Faultod	intion. Fresh, not	wx. Still	
	Ē			2)		P///					.85.0 .<		111	
	<b>F</b> =0		100		7	V4//			N20W, 44NW				ALL F	eldspar veining Sense of drag-fold
İ.	Ē	NQ-8 NQ-9	95 100		45 0	_///			N80W, GONE J N66W, 55NE J	Ē			17/1/ 20	ne 82. 5-85'
ļ	E.							BOTTOM	OF BORING	EI				
	Ē									EL				
	Ē									Ē				
	-									E				
l	Ē									Ē				
	Ē									Ē				
	Ē									El				-
	Ę									Ē				-
I	Ę									E				
	Ē									EL				
	Ē									E				
	Ē									FI				
	Ē	}								Ē				
┝┯	<u> </u>									F	<u> </u>	T	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	N - Standard penetration resistance, blows/ft Rec - Length recovered/length cored, 7							NOTE 1)	S s (tor) = Shear	stre	ngth measured	SEA	ABROO	K STATION
e	RQD - Length of sound core 4 in. and longer/length cored, S - Split spoon sample Groundwater						gth cored.	• %	u with T	OTVA	ne	PUBLIC	NKEE ATOMI	APANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE C ELECTRIC COMPANY
EGE	U -	Undistu: S – Shel	bed as	umpies e N	- Der	1400		2)	NQ-7 to 9.	not	available for		Junited a	
[1]		F - Fix	d pist	- P	- Pite	her		• - x -	Used 300 lb har Oriented core	nmei	r	Data		ngangan Lampiny
	D-	F - Fixed platon P - Pitcher O - Onterberg G - GEI - Drilling break k - Coefficient of - Weathered, weathering permeability										PAGE 1	of 1	LOG OF BORING

E	ORING	LOCA	TION	See Se	otland	Road site play	<u> </u>	INCLINATION	t <u>45 - 46'</u>	BEAR	ING <u>830E</u>	DATE START/FINISH	Decemba	or 26, 1973 / January 8, 1974		
c	ASING	no	<u>3 in.</u>		•	CORE SIZE	1-7/9	in	TOTAL DE	ртн	197.7 <sup>1)</sup> ft	DRILLED BY Americ	DRILLED BY American Drilling & Boring Co., T. Canning.			
G	ROUNI	EL (N	(SL)	17.G	n WA7	DEPTH TO V	ATER/	DATE 0	,0 ft	/	Nrc. 26, 1973	LOGGED BY Soil -	K. Polki R	ock - J. R. Rand		
EL. MSL	Depti	SAMPL Type	.E N	OF	CONT	ENT OF RQD	PRES	Computed	F = Foliation	RE	) (Weatherin	SOIL AND ROC	K DESCRIP	TIONS (Type, texture, mineralogy,		
n	ſŧ	and No.	or Rec.	ADV. min/ft	7	Graphic	psi psi	k 10 <sup>−1</sup> cm/aec	C * Contact B * Hedding	8				color, hardness, etc.)		
17.6	E	<u> </u>	I	<u> </u>	3)	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	<u>'no</u>		S - Slickensi	ET	1					
	Ę	·			None					E						
	Ē.,									Ē						
	Ē									E						
	Ē		(2)			-				Ē						
	E_20									Εl						
	Ł									Ē						
	Ē									Ē	ļ					
	E <sup>30</sup>							тор	OF BOCK	Ē						
	E -			4)						Ē	Most partings Fr	esh with minor powders	×××	Granodiorite. Typical New-		
	E_40	NQ-1	88	3.6	71	· 77			40		Joints wx	effects on joint surface int surfaces are not	<u> </u>	medium gray, with greenish		
	Èŀ	NQ-2	100	1.5	55	$\forall A$					Chlorite	ckensided.	_××'	spotting. Generally massive		
	Ē	NQ-3	92	1,6	62	J/							**	Cut by fused feldspar quartz stringers. Biotite speckling-		
-20		NQ-4	100	1.7	50						Strikes - NW		× × × - × ×	Becomes medium-fine grained at 56', foliation de-		
	È	NQ-5	88	1.9	70								Y Y GE	ained mechanical effects of fault		
	E-60	NO-6	05	2.0	77	7					Rusty joint Frank	esh. Drills well, Joint d parlings show minor	, ; ; Gri	alned 56-58'.		
	Εŀ				••				30	E	sli	rface wx effects. Not Okensided.		rrhotite		
	ŧ	NQ-7	75	2.0	75	-H			40				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	sed fault		
	-70 E	NQ-B	100	2.5	52				ກ5ັ		Minor rusty		× x 'k ma 	terial Diorite, Medium-fine		
	Ē	NQ- 9	93	2.5	48						i'r sho	esh. Partings locally ow minor wy effects.		grained. Medium greenish _ gray. Locally foliated.		
	-80	NQ-10	95	2. R	28	777			40°		/Minor rusty but	t not slickensided.		Foliation is sometimes drag-folded. Rock is		
~40	Ēŀ					+++					Minor rusty			mechanically deformed, ap- proaching fault-carbonate		
		N(2-13	20	3.5	21	¥///					,		· · ·	veinlets.		
	<b>1</b> 90	NQ-12	97	3.8	0				400		L'm-	and h Motury but in		Fine-grained rock, with		
		NQ-13	97	4.8	35				40		nit	ered hydrothermally	Ve	in cally foliated, cut through-		
	<b>E-1</b> 00	NQ-14	100	2.7	35	177			950		eni sji	lor. Partings are not ckensided.	F. 1.	out by feldspar veinlets.		
ĺ	Ēŀ									E	Minor rusty			ranodiorite. Medium grained, med		
	Ē	NQ-15	100	1.6	72	A							7777109	Contact dips 20		
-60	ĔĽĹ	NQ-16	100	1.6	72	[/			23		Minor rusty Fr we	esh and hard. Drills D. Relatively minor	**** III.	Fine-grained rock fused contact dips 50		
	Ê	NQ-17	98	1.7	85					FE	hyr	drothermal alteration.	* * * * * * * * * *	Granodiorite. Medium- grained. Locally shows ten-		
	E120	NO-18	102	1.7	67				•ر بر م		Minor rusty Blenched		747 7484 	dency to foliation. Medium greenish grav.		
	ξŀ								51 50	E	1		, , Fo	liated-fused		
	E	NC5-1.1	1.00	1.7		4					Disector	Fresh and have 1	Cn	Inclustic		
	E130	NQ-20	100	1.8	78	Ľ					Joints strinted	minor blenching, Part-		Granodiorite, Medium-		
	Ē	NQ-23	100	1.9	42	//					Rough not slick- ensided.	offects, but are not slickensided.	жуч Ч ч н	grained, medium greenish gray. Fairly massive, Dark		
-80	<b>E</b> 1.1	NQ-22	100	2.0	32	177							2	chlorite speckling, (Chlor- ne ites not sitered appreciably		
	EF				<b>C7</b>	×47				E	Minor wx /		y y y N y	IURION -		
	ĒIJŁ	NQ-23		2.2	11.1					ĒĒ	Minor bleached		* • • • ·			
N	- 5	tandard	i penet	ration	res ista	nce, blows/ft		NOTE	S			SEAB	ROOI	K STATION		
	ec - 1 QD - 1	ength i ength c	f soun	red/ien d core nnie	atin con 4 tin.a ⊽	ea, * nd longer/len Groundwater	gth core	id, 7 1) 1	Depths noted we wring", not ver	re me rtical)	asured "along the v	along the PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE				
U CENI	U - Undisturbed samples								Kashed through samples taken	clay t	o 34.0' ~ no	YANKEE ATOMIC ELECTRIC COMPANY				
		i - Shel F - Fixe	ny tub d pist	e N on P	- Deni - Pitc	leon her		• - 1	Roller bitted to	36. N*						
	- I	) - Osta Drilling	break	G	- GEI k -	Coefficient of			contents were de contents were de	c: ther sternsion	eore no water hed.	Date: January 11, 1	974 I	Project 7286		
	x - \	Veather	ed, we	atherin	ag .	permeability	/	11 1	otter bitted to	az, 0 ľ	L. ,	PAGEof		LOG OF BORING SRF 5		

в	ORING	LOCAT	TION	Sec Se	otland	Road site play	<u>n</u> 1	NCLINATION	45 - 46	DEAR	ING	DATE START/F	NISH Decemb	er 26, 1973 / January 8, 1974
с	ASING	ю	3 in.			CORE SIZE	1-7/	<u>in.</u>	TOTAL DEI	тн.	197.7 <sup>1)</sup> ft	DRILLED BY A	merican Drillin	ng & Boring Co., T. Canning.
G	ROUNE	EL /M	SLI	17.6	ft	DEPTH TO W	ATER/	DATE	0.0 ft	Dee	5, 26, 1973	LOGGED BY S	oil - K. Polk;	Rock - J. R. Rand
EL.		SAMPL	E	RATE	WAT CONT	ER or RQD	PRES	SURE TEST	STRIKE, DIP F = Foliation	۳ S		SOIL AND	ROCK DESCRI	TIONS
Mal	Depth	Type and	N OT	ADV.	~	6	gpm	Computed	J = Joint C = Contact	COR	(Weathering	, defects, etc.)		(lype, sexure, mineralogy, color, hardness, etc.)
n.	ft	No.	Rec.	min/tt	4	Graphic	00 00	10 cm/sec	B = Decoung S Slickensid	<u> </u>	CONTIN	ED FROM PREVI	IOUS PAGE	
	E									E				•
	Ē									F				-
	È <sup>148</sup> ∠									ĒĦ	t	·		
	F150	NQ-24	97	2.5	70					E	Fresh	and hard. Partir a slickonsided	лдн ж ж ж	Chlorites are still dark green.
	Εſ	NQ. 25	100	2.7	60									
	╞┝					4/				Ē	Slight wx		* * *	Becomes vaguely foliated. Ap-
	F1 69	NQ-26	97	3.1	68									parently cataclastic. Light greenish gray.
- 100 -	Εſ	NO 77	0.4	3.1	47									
-100.	Ì ⊦	NQ-21	58			1 <del>  / /</del>			27		Fresh	and haird. Partir	NES	
	E	NQ-28	102	3.2	47						Slight wx	alickensided.	X X X X	thus contact dies 0"
	ĘΓ	NG-29	92	3.5	35					ŧ 🖥			+++++17	1 Diabase. Dark gray, not altered.
	ŧ.ŀ		_			4/			30°		•			Open contact dips 50. Not slicken- sided. Cataclastic. Lt. greenish gray. line-grained. foliated
	$[E^{18}]$	NQ-30	93	3.1	57					E			+++ 18	1.7 Fused, breccinted contact. Dia-
	ΕΓ	]					1			E	5			base, dark gray, unaltered.
1.1	E	NQ-31	97	3,1	62	I KA			40 <sup>°</sup>	E	Note: At 171.2"	Fresh diabase be	ults	te: At 181.7', contact of diabase is
	Find	NQ-32	100	3.2	63	VΔ			30	FË	against lig cataclasite	ht green fine-grai • [colcite] stringer	ned .	breeciated, and re-comented by calcite. Diabase is not appreci-
-120	₹	NQ-33	100	2.5	55				:10"	E	diabase do into cataci	es not extend acre asite.	155	ably altered.
	E 197. 7					<u> </u>				ĒĦ				
	Ē							BOTTOM	OF BORING	El				
	Ę									E				
	ŧ									È				
	Ē									F				
	Ē									Ē				
	Ē									E				
	F									F				
	Ę									Ē				
	Ē			ł						E				
	Ē									F				
	Ę			1						E.				
	Ē									El				
	Ē									Ē				
	Ē									EI.				-
	Ē									EL				
	F									El				
	Ē									ŧ.				1
	ŧ	1								EL				
	F	1								El	1			
	E									EL				
	ŧ			1						EL.				
	ŧ									ĒÌ				
	E	1								E				
ļ	ŧ							1		E				
	Ē									E				-
	E									Εl				
	Ē									El				
ht.	<u>r</u>			ration	ros inte	nce blows/ft	لـــــا	NOTE	s	<u>r I</u>	1	0.5		
;	- 2 tec - 1	Length	e pene recove	red/ler	ites ista	red, 4						S E.	ABROO	K STATION
	1QD - 1	Length o Spilt spo	of sour	id core mple	4 in. a ⊻	nd longer/len Groundwater	gth core	id. 9				PUBLIC	NKEE ATOMI	C ELECTRIC COMPANY
EN U	1 - 1	Undistu	rbed a	mples									P.T united e	ngineers
9	:	S - Shei F - Fixe	lby tub ed pist	e N on F	I - Den P - Pite	ison her		ł					• 1. Sum (	an internet in the second seco
		0 - 0su	erberg	Ċ	- GEI	C						Date: Janua rv	11, 1974	Project 7286
	ו- ג אי - 1	Or illing Weather	oreak ed, w	eatheri	к- лд	permeabilit	y y			_		PAGE 2	of	LOG OF BORING SRF 5

GEOTETHNICAL ENGINEERS IN

Э	BORING LOCATION See Sociand Rd. site plan INCLINATION Vertical BEARING DATE START/FINISH Jan. 4, 1974 /_ Jan. 8, 1974														
C.	SING	D	3.in.		-	CORE SIZE	1-5/8	in. BX	TOTAL DE	ртн	<u> </u>	DRILLED BY Am	erican Drilli	ng & Boring; Manco	
G	NUNE	) EL (N	(SL)	17.8	<u>ft</u>	DEPTH TO W	ATER,	DATE	<u>0.0 ft</u>	Jan (	, 30, 1974	LOGGED BY Soil	- K. L. Poli	c; Rock - J. R. Rand	
EL.		SAMPI	T	RATE	CONT	ER or RQD	PRES	SURE TEST	STRIKE, DIP F = Foliation		2	SOIL AND RO	CK DESCRI	TIONS	
MBL	Depth	and	N or	ADV.		Granble	<u>spm</u>	Computed	J = Joint C = Contact	NO I	(Weathering	g, defects, atc.)		(Type, texture, mineralog color, hardness, etc.)	y.
17.8	<u> </u>	No.	Rec.	mia/II	*	Grapaic	<b>pe</b> 1	10 cm/sec	S = Slickansid	e					
		61,51A	1/0,3							E	SI-Brown organic Olive-brown silty Similar to Sample	silt. SIA - Motiled clay. Stiff to very sti S2. but fewer brown	gray and bri if; low plast spots. s. it	own silty clay; low plasticity icity; somewhat blocky struc or)> 1.0 tsf 1)	ture.
	ĒĒ	54 65	18 13							Ē	Olive-brown silty Similar to Sample	cisy. V. stiff; low to S4. $s_{11}(tor) > 1.0$ ta	med. plantic	tity; w above PL; somewhat	blocky.
	E1°E	56 57	8 5							ΕL	Similar to Sample Similar to Sample	S4, but also contains S4, but medium stiff	some gray	streaks up to 3 mm thick. 45 tsf.	-
l	È			l						EL	Į		-		
	Ē	5*	3							ξĮ	Gray slity ciny.	Soft; medium plaaticii	ty; slightly a	ticky. $\mathbf{s}_{u}(tor) \neq 0.26 tsf$	-
	₽20 C	59	4							FI	Similar to Sample	S8, but more sticky.	s_(tor) = 0	. 15 tsf	-
		]								El					-
1		510	5							ξŀ	Similar to Sample	S8, but more sticky.	\$ (tor) = 0 U	. 14 t#f	
	E³⁰ C	511	5							F1	Similar to Sample	S8, but more sticky.	e_(tor) = 0	. 20 tsf	
	F r	<b>5</b> 12	5							E	Similar to Sample	S8. # (tor) = 0.25-0	), 30 tsf		-
-20 -	È,	<b>C1</b> 2						TOP	OF SAND	El	Similar to Pro-1-	U Co fow oilty fina	nd lavere to	1 mm thick a for = 0.204	
	-71%- -	514	13/57		<u> </u>			105	OF SAND	Ħ	Layered gray silty	y clay and silty fine s mm thick. Sand is u	and. Clay in niform: in la	soft; low to "medium plass vers up to 10 mm thick.	licity;
	Ë. E	515 516	9/6	<u> </u>				тор	OF TILL	ŧ.					
	16.5 -60 ⊑	E17	70	l						ξļ	Gray-brown silty : angular to subrour	medium to coarse sat nded grains; contains	nd. Widely ( a few gravel	graded; fines are nonplastic; pieces up to 8 mm in size.	sub-
	53 F	P18	85/6					TOP	OF ROCK		Minor rusty Not	wx. Altered by hydro		Cataclastic, foliated.	Fused
-40 -	E 58 L	BX-1	92	3.0	57					ĒĒ	Minor rusty them	mal bleaching.	210/1	breccia, medium-light gray.	greenish
	Ē							BOTTOM	OF BORING	Ē					-
	Ē	]							a a construction of the second second second second second second second second second second second second se	E	Note: Casing bent and hole co	t at 14 ft while driv! sund not accept N-	ing N	ote: Rock is medium-fine gi groundmass contains su	ib-
	Ē									E	barrel for risk a seco	5 ft only. Could not and run due to caving		rounded fragments and faulted piece. All fuse	micro-
	-									F	potential ai	t base of casing.		Joints show minor rust we effects. Not slicker	y surface
{	Ē	ł		[						E					-
	Ē									E					
	Ē									E					
[	È									Ē					-
	Ē									E					-
	È									Ē	ļ				
										E					3
1			1	۰ ۱						El					-
	Ē	1								E					-
	Ē			·	[					EL					
l	-			1						F					-
	Ē	1								EL					
	Ē									FL					
	Ē									E					-
1	Ē									E					:
1	È		ĺ	l						EL					
1										El					-
{	È									ŧ					-
1	È.								-	E					_
1	E									El					
	Ē								1	E					
	Ł	<u> </u>						NOT	1 ©S	£1.	I	·			
R	- 5 •c - 1	Longth	u penet recove	red/let	resistant	red, %			S (tor) = Sheer =	tran	th measured		BKOO	K STATION	
e s	40-1 - 5	iongth Split sp	01 8003 000 803	n core nple	т <u>ш</u> , т ₩	Groundwater	an con	PG, 76 1/	with To	rvan	e	YAN	CEE ATOMIC	ELECTRIC COMPANY	•
U ECE	- 1	undistu s _ sb	rbed si lby mb	umples	. Der	1800						ľ	y united a		
	F - Fixed piston P - Pitcher														
_□	- 1	0- Ori Drilling	; break	C	k - k -	Coefficient of	1					Date: March 9, 19	74	Proje	ct 7286
$\square$	r - 1	Weather	red, w	atheri	4	parmeabilit	y					PAGEof		LOG OF BORING SRF	6

OBOTECHNICAL ENGINEERS II
	BORING	5 1.0CA	TION	See 1	icotlan	Road site pli	n IN	LINATION	I45"	BEAR	UNG <u>SHE or 136</u> ° '	T DA LE START/E	INISH	8, 1974 / Jan. 18, 1974
0	ASING	.no	3 ir	<u>n</u>	-	CORE SIZE	1-7/8	<u>n.</u>	TOTAL DE	17.611	255.0 ft	DRILLED BY _/	American Drilli	ng & Boring; T. Canning,
Ľ	ROUN	DELIN	ISL)	17.5	ft I WAT	LEPTH TO V	ATER D	ATE	0.3 ft	<u>'</u> 1	n. 14, 1974	LOGGED BY <u>s</u>	<u>Sail - K. Palki</u>	Roch - J. R. Rand
EL. MSI ft	Dept ft	SAMPI h Type and No.	E N Rec.	RATH OF ADV. min/(		ENT_ or RQD Graphic	paressu <u>gom</u> psi H	iomputed k	F = Foliation J = Joint C = Contact Is = Bedding	CORE	(Weather in	SOIL AND g, defects, etc.)	ROCK DESCRI	PTIONS (fyre, sexture, mineralogy, color, hardness, etc.)
-20	10 10 20 40	2)			i) None				S : Slickensid					
-40		NQ-1 NQ-2 NQ-3 NQ-4 NQ-5 NQ-6 NQ-7 NQ-8	92 83 100 77 100 93 100 97	1.5 1.3 1.3 1.4 2.0 2.1	42 47 13 23 8 0 25 55 55			Тор	OF ROCK	ידר הידר אין אירוי אינייר אירי אין אירוי אינייר אירוי אירוי אירוי אירוי אירוי אירוי אירוי אירוי אירוי אירי איר	Minor rusty Minor rusty 1' core lost Minor rusty Driller broken at close intervals Discontinuous vertical joint strikes NW Striated	Fairly fresh and hard throughout altered by bleach Partings are not slickensided. Not wx. Care b throughout into 1 d' pieces by pool drilling. Not ws. Bleach hydrothermal alt ation to greenish gray.	hut kanne y y y y y y y y y y y y y y y y y y	Cataclastic, Foliated, saus- surfized, deformed diorite. Fine to medium grained, light greenish to tannish gray. phanitic- ellow-green Cataclastic, Fairly fine- grained, light greenish gray. Foliated. Apparent dark (chiorite?) minerals scattered locally. <u>Fused intrusive contact, NE strikk</u> 10 - Diabace, Dark gray line grained neutry younger than alteration in country rock. Calelte veintets. Cataclastic, Medium grained foliated diorite to 103°. Fine- grained, foliated with small unart, grass blow. Becomps.
-60		NQ-10 NQ-11 NQ-12 NQ-13 NQ-14 NQ-15 NQ-16	85 R0 100 98 93 97 83 92	2.1 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.6 2.6 2.3 2.0	12 7 55 70 40 63 33 23				5) NJRE, 33NW NGEU, 34NV NGE, 34NV NJE, 34NV NJEG, 54NV NJEG, 54NV N	ענות איני ביני ביני ביני <mark>ביני ביני ביני ביני </mark>	2' core lost Soft, some tale Slickenstied- ninor polish Internal slick- considea parallel to foliation Pused Mislatch 1' core lost Somewhat softene by alteration	112' to 114' core lost in soft zone. Minor rough alic ensides. Not wx. Hydroth ally altered thro- out. Fairly har brills well. Par- tend to parallel ation. Not wx. Hydroth ally altered. Li d (an bleach. Joir and partings are slickenstided.	c	<ul> <li>quarte eyes beiow, mecomes very fine-grained.</li> <li>4.0</li> <li>conish ian (")Diabase (?)-Bienched precish ian, aphanitic, May be yjonite, Inirine foliation.</li> <li>Cataline eyes and the second present of the second precise grained, medium light greenish transport.</li> <li>Control of the second present of the second presecond present of the second present of the second present of</li></ul>
T ECEND	r Rec - RQD - 3 - J -	Length Length Split sp- Undistan S - She F - Fixe O - Ost Drilling Weather	d penel recove of soun oon sau rbed su rbed si lby tub ed pist erberg break red, w	i ration red/ler d core nple imples e h on I C cathert	reaista igth coi 4 dn.: a ▼ 1 - Den 2 - Pito 3 - GEI k - ng	nce, blows/ft red, '? nd longer/len Groundwater ison her Coefficient ni permeabilit	gth cored,	3) R 4) No 3) R 4) No 60 5) Ti	S ngle hole ashed through so a sample taken, aller bitted to fif a clavs present; attents were det tis is only a pur	r 1 oll fro L 0 ' there train	om 0–65.5' – fore, no water ed. st of dip and	SEL PUBLIC YA Date: February PAGE 1	A B ROO SERVICE COM ANKEE ATOMIC United e v 13, 1974	K STATION (PANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. C ELECTRIC COMPANY INC. Project 7286 LOG OF BORING SHE 7

	во	RING	LOCA		Sec Sc	otland	Road site plan	n	CLINATIO	N	BEAR	ING <u>\$44E or 136</u>	DATE START/FINISH	llan.	. 8, 1974	/Jan. 18, 1974
	CA	SING	no	<u> </u>	le		CORE SIZE	1-7/	8 in.	TOTAL DE	тн	255.0 ft	DRILLED BY Ameri	ican Dril	ling & Bo	ring; T. Canning,
L	GR	OUNI	EL (N		17.5	<u>[1</u>	DEPTH TO W	ATER (	ATE	<u>0.3 ft</u>	<u>la</u>	n. 18, 1974	LOGGED BY Soil -	<u>K. I., P</u>	olk ; Rock	- J. R. Band
E	L.		SAMPL	E	RATE	CONT	ER or RQD	PRESS	URE TEST	STRIKE, DIP F = Foliation	<u>م</u>		SOIL AND ROCI	K DESCR	IPTIONS	
		Depth	and No	N OF Bec	ADV.		Granhie	gr:m	Computed	J = Joint C = Contact B = Bodding	COR	(Weathering)	, deterta, etc.)		(1 <b>) pr</b> i Cn	icr, hardness, etc.)
H	<u> </u>		1 40.	net.	prin is		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	10	m cm/sec	S = Slickensid	<u> </u>	CONTINUI	ED FROM PREVIOUS	PAGE		
	Ē							- 1			Ę					
	F										Ē					
	E	-156	NO 18		2.0	25	1777	+			F			->	49.7 Brok	Contact. No visible attitude
	Ę		1.00-1.1	52	12		44						Not ws. Minor	1 	Less bleached	medium gray fused breccia.
	Ē		NQ-19	100	2.4	48						Breccia-rusen	on partings, Part-	~	Epidote	dark green (epidote) begin-
	Ę	4 60		1.00		20	777					Driller ground	logs generally para- liel to foliation.			ning 155'
	Ę	-	-21	100	2.2		4//				T T T		Not so bleached as above. Not slick-			
-1	°° E		NQ-21	100	1.9	45						-	ensided.	، م م	)ffset	Cataclastic. Fine-grained,
	ŀ	170	NQ-22	97	1.9	28	V/A	}						- 7-	cinicts	ated (funch). Medium-dark
	Ē	. ۲				-	- VA									greenish gray. Epidotized.
	ŧ		199-20	100	2.0	31	VA					Slight wx	Not us. Some minar			
	Ē	-1 80	NQ-24	100	2. 1	55	$V\Lambda$					Not extensively bleached, moderat	wx effects locally on c joints. Tends to			becoming prominently
	E	- 1	NU 25	100			777					alteration only	part parallel to foli-			cut by cross-cutting vein-
	Ē		14-2-5	100	1.7	20	ĽĽĄ						ensided, Competent fairly baset thefthe	<u> </u>	Fused breccia	lets. Hard, breecin is fused (annealed). Not fis-
	Ę	<b>-1</b> 90	NQ-26	100	1.6	72					E		fairly well.		hroughout	sile or slickensided. Medium greenish grav.
-12	•	•	N()-27	100	1.7	25	$\langle Z Z A \rangle$									
	Ē	200	N(2-2 R	100	1.9	40	LLL			N53E, 24NW	1 1	Moderate bleaching	Not ws. Minor surface wx effects			Chinclastic, Fine-grained
	Ē	Ē	102-23	100	1	<b>"</b> '	Д			N70E, 32NW		alteration	on joints and part- ings. Not slicken-			matrix, epidote handing.
	Ē	-	NQ-30	100	1.7	80	Ń	[		N86W, 42NE F N84W, 90 J			sided.			fabric. Light yellow-green
	Ē	-210	NO-11	100		59				NBOE, 70NE S		Smooth Maderate			mv lonite	210.6-211.6'. Fused
	Ē	Ē		100	1.5		4			N66E, 17NW S Horizontal H		wx, minor striated	Not warmternally. Joints and partings	21	13.7	sided.
1	Ē		NQ-32	100	2.3	55		1		N75E: 33NW		foliation	not polished. Some slickensides. Some	<u>* * * *</u>	fused	Moderate wx at 213.2'
	Ē	-22(	NQ-33	100	2.1	53	- 77					Pyrite stals Smooth, soft	slickensides and softened rock at	~~x		Discrite. Slight alteration and foliation to about 218'.
-14	٥ŧ	-								NSON CONNY 4	E la	Moderate wx Smooth, chlorite	222. 1'.	2.4		Medium grained, medium grav. Veined below 218'.
	Ē	Ē	NQ-34	100	2.1	90				N52E, 78NW J	111		Fresh and hard.	~~~~~~		Diorite, Medium grained,
	F	230	NQ-35	100	2.5	54	V/			NGIE, 77SE 3			and parlings show			medium dark to dark gray
	E						17			NG7W, SINE S			minor surface wx. Not slickensided.	SQ.		Irregularly calcite-veined
1	Ē	F	nQ-36	100	2. "	- 115	H			N35W, 33SW S N35W, 72NE				* * { * *		mroughout. Fused.
	ŧ	-210	NQ-37	100	2.3	50	1/A			NGIW ISNE N72E, SSNW		11	Krouth Bad band	∵xîx * x		Diorite, Mixed medium-
	Ē		NQ-38	100	2.6	43	$\langle / / \rangle$		ĺ	NGTE, 60NW 3		Moderate wx	Local zones of	к. ж.		grained dark gray diorite
	ŧ						Y/A			N70E 61NW / N85E 69NW F		Minor alickensider Moderate wa	wx. Not hydrother-	<pre></pre>		dark grav diorite inclusions
-16	٥Ē	-250	NQ-39	100	2.6	10	-HA			N72E, 56NW 9 N52E, 44NW J		ot laft in halo	mally altered.	× x		velned.
	Ē	855 L	NQ10		2.5	- <u>1</u>	12224				Ē	3 101 IN 1810		<u> </u>		
	Ę	_							1994 I CBM	or BURING	E					
	Ē										El					
	Ē	-						1			EL					
	Ē	_									FI.					
	Ē	_									E					
	Ē										E					
1	Ē	-									EL					
	Ę	-									ξĮ					1
L	Ē										Ē					
$\square$	N	- S	tandard	l penet	ration	resista	nce, blows ft		NOTE	S			SEAB	ROC		STATION
	Reg	e - L D - L	length r length c	f soun	ned/len d core	in cor	ed, / nd longer/leng	th corec	4 9				PUBLIC SER	VICE CO	MPANY (	OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
END	s U	- S - L	plit∎po 'ndistur	bed sa	npie Imples	Ť	Groundwater						YANKE	E ATOM	IC ELEC	TRIC COMPANY
ĮĔ		5	5 - Shel F - Fire	by tub	e N on P	- Deni	son her						é			N D & COMMUNICATING ATC
	_	(	) - Onte	rberg		- GE1							Date: April 18, 197	74		Project 7286
	D wx	- D - V	Veiling	preak ed, we	atheri	k- Ng	coefficient of permeability						PAGEof	2	100	OF BORING

OPOTICHNICAL ENGINEERS INC

Γ	BORIN	G LOCA	TION .	See 5	cotland	Rd. site plan	0	NCLINATIO	Vertical	BEAI	RING	DATE START/FINISH	I Jan.	25, 1974 / Feb. 19, 1974
	CASIN	. w	3 in.		-	CORE SIZE	1-7/8	8 in.	TOTAL DEP	ртн	<u>172.0 ft</u>	DRILLED BY Amer	ican Drill	ing & Boring; T. Canning
L	GROUN	DEL (N	(SL) _	17.6	<u>ft</u>	DEPTH TO W	ATER/I		Tidal ft /	, <del>7</del>		LOGGED BY Soil -	<u>K. L. Po</u>	ik: Rock - J. R. Rand
E	L Dep	SAMPL	E N	OF	CONT	ENT OF RQD	PRESS	Computed	F = Foliation J = Joint	a s	g 5 (Weatheris	SOIL AND ROCI	K DESCRI	PTIONS (Type, texture, mineralogy,
ft	ft	and No.	or Rec.	ADV. min/fi	9.	Graphic	<u>gpm</u> pei 1	k 10 <sup>-4</sup> cm/sec	C = Contact B = Bedding	8				color, hardness, etc.;
17.	۰ E	SI,SA	0,5	<u> </u>	3)	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	00		3 = Slickensid	ĒT	Fimiles to Semple		(ton) > 1	() ( <sup>2</sup> )
	Ę	54 54	29 14		29.4					E	Similar to Sample	e SIA, but very stiff. s	u (tor) > 1. u (tor) > 1.	.0 tef
	E.	55	7		40.4					Ē	Similar to Sample Similar	e S4, but fewer brown sy	pots; softe	er, s (tor) = 0.58 tsf
	Ē	LI <sup>S</sup> '	2/18		48.9					El	in size. s (tor)	= 0.15 tsf	, sngnny i	slicky; contains one prown spot 10 m
	Ē	<b>C</b>  58	0		51.1					Ē	Similar to Sample	e S7, but contains some	elightly d	arker and lighter colored layering.
	E_20	n 59	3		33.1					E	Similar to Sample	e S7, but contains some	darker an	d lighter colored layers dipping~10°
	È	]								Ē	$s_u(tor) = 0.18 tsf$			a 1
	Ē		8		43.3					Ē	Similar to Sample	e 57, fut contrins a stity		nayer; sticky (very disturbed).
	30	0	2		44.3			TOP	OF SAND	EL	Similar to Sample	e S7, but very soft and s	iticky (ver	y disturbed).
.2	Ē	S12	5							Ē	Gray-brown sligt	ntly silty fine to medium	sand. U	niform; fines are nonplastic.
	- -	513	o							F	Similar to Sample	e S12, but contains a cla	iy layer az	nd few gravel pieces up to 5 mm in
	Ē		20							EL	size.	e S12 but contains a cle	v lever er	nd a few gravel pieces up to 15 mm
	49.0							TOP	OF ROCK	EL	in size.			
	Ę	1) NQ-1	52	1.5	0	7777				FI	Slight wx	Generally not wx inter-		Cataclastic. Fine-grained,
-4	Ē	NQ-2	95	1.3	25	V77				Ē	Slight wx	tion with slight powdery		gray.
	<b>-</b> 60					1224				Ē	D Slight wx	surfaces. Medium	4444	
	Ē	- Neg-0	90	1.4	00	L.				E	ť	hermal alteration.	40.00	
	Ē.	NQ-4	100	1.4	74	L L			3)	Ē	difect of the		A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	ighly deformed
	Ę″	NQ-5	93	1.5	82	4			N78W, 57NE F	Ell		Not wx. Minor wx ef-		elded breccia
	Ē	x NQ-6	100	1.0	95				N88E, 50NW F N81E, 36NW J	El		as well as some striated out not polished surfaces		aroughout
-6	F80	x NQ-7	100	1.0	86	r H			N36W, 40NE F N49W, 27NE J	Ell			7.7.5 8	Fused contact, deformed due 60 0.0' Cataclastic. Medium dark
	E.	X NQ-8	100	1.0	63	L Z			N79W, 54NE J	Ell	Foliation	Not war Detile well		3. 6' greenish gray. Deformed veins.
	Ĩ	x NQ-9	100	1.1	82	И			N36W, 29NE J			Light green-gray hydro-	4 4 4 C	
	<b>1</b> 90	x NQ-10	100	1.1	87	T T			NR7W, 75NE J	Ē		Soft, powdery zone at	Ē	pidote Cataclastic. Fine-
	Ē	-	100	1.2	31	V7/			N50W, 27NE S N35W, 36NE J		Powdery surface	ated with joint. Local		grained, medium green ish gray. Follated.
	Ê	NQ-12	83	1.2	75	ĽÆ	1		N-7E, 355E J	Ē		partings usually parts on foliation.		torite zones,
	Ē	x NQ-13	100	1.2	78	2			N72E, 47NW F N57W, 29NE J N54W, 47NE F	Ē	= 1 - r	Not wx. Joints show minor slippory chlorite-		grained, medium green
	E	x NQ-14	98	1.2	93		: {		N82E. 37NW J	Ē		inle costings. Not pol- ished. Subject to hydro-		velded breccia, hair-
	E-110	NQ-15	100	1.0	80	۲,			N70E 36NW J N58E 54NW F N71W, 76NE J	Ē		thermal alteration, epidotization.		recein /elded breccia
-10	Ē	$H_{\rm sc}$				VT4			NOW; IZNE J	ŧ	e P			roughout
	E-120	NQ-17	100	1.0	83	ЦЦ				Ē		Not wx. Minor surface wx effects on partings.		Cataclastic. Fine- grained, medium light
	Ē	NQ-18	100	0.8	5R					Еļ		rartings also show some striated, not pol-	1.1.1 L	ight tan greenish-gray. Local welded breccias. Fair
1	Ę	NQ-19	100	1.0	100					E		aned Suriaces.	~~~	well foliated.
ļ	F 30	NQ-20	100	1.1	82	И	l			E				
	È	H				Ч						Not wx. Medium-gray		
-12	Έ⊷	NQ-21	100	1.1	70	I HA	Į			ŧ	Minor rusty	hydrothermal alteration. Minor surface ws ef-	N	fedlum Grained, fused breccia
	Ë.	NQ-22	100	1.0	62					Ē	Chiorite	fects on partings. Some partings strigted.	4.4.	greenish-gray.
	Ē								-	E				
Π	N -	Standard	penet	ration	resista	ace, blows/ft		NOTE	S Boller bitted to	52	•	SEAB	ROO	K STATION
	RQD -	Longth o	South South	d core aple	4 in. a	nd longer/leng Groundwater	rth corred	d, % 2)	s (tor) = Shear	stre	ngth measured	PUBLIC SER	VICE CON	APANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
OEN	υ -	Undistan	bed sa	mples				3)	u with T This is only a pa	orva Irtial	ane 1 list of dip and	YANKE	E ATOMIC UNICAD O	DELECTRIC COMPANY
11		s - Shel F - Fixe	oy taba ad pista	e N De P	- Deni - Pito	eon her			strike data.			e e		Revenues Company
	D -	O - Oris Drilling	break	G	i - GEI k -	Coefficient of						Date: March 9, 1974	1	Project 7286
	wx -	Weather	ed, we	atheri	N	permeability	<u>،                                     </u>	X	- Oriented core			PAGEof	2	LOG OF BORING

	ORING	LOCA	TION	See S	cotland	Rd. site plan		INCLINATIO	N Vertical	BEA	RI	NG	DATE START/I	FINISH	Jan. 2	5, 1974	/ Feb. 1	9, 1974
6	ASING	в	3 in	·		CORE SIZE	3-7	/8 in	TOTAL DE	ртн		172.0 ft	DRILLED BY	Amer	ican Drill	ing & Bort	ing; T. Canni	ng
G	ROUND	) EL (M	(SL)_	17.6	<u>[t</u>	DEPTH TO W	ATER.	/DATE	Tidal ft	/		<u> </u>	LOGGED BY	Soil -	K. L. Po	lk; Rock	- J. R. Rand	
EL.		SAMPL	E	RATE	WAT CONT	ER or RQD	PRES	SURE TEST	STRIKE, DIP F = Foliation		g		SOIL AND	ROCH	DESCRIP	TIONS		
MSL	Depth	Type	N OF	ADV.		Crarbia	<u>gom</u>	Computed	J = Joint C = Contact B = Bedding	COR	BREA	(Weathering	g, defecta, etc.)			(Type, i color	texture, min r, hardness,	etc.)
<u></u>	1 11	<u>NO.</u>	nec.	mun/10	<u></u> (	Graphic		10 cm/sec	S = Slickensid	<u> </u>	-	CONTINUED	FROM PREVIO	US PA	GE			
	Ē			1						El								-
	F <sup>145</sup>	10.02	100	1.1		177			N72E, 68NW J	Ē	1	Not	polished.		4 4		Intensely de	formed, re-
1	E150	NQ-23	100		51				N85W, 20NE S	Ē					A . A .		welded. Not cutting vein	eut by cross-
	Ek	NQ-24	100	1.2	78				NB6W, 60NE F				Not				observable	calcite.
-140	Ē	NO-25	100	1.2	77				N59W, 40SW J	Ē			ally altered to 16	3, 6'.	16	0,2' to	Cataclastic fused brecc	Fine-grained
	-160-								N34W, 19NE J N75E, 51NW F	÷		Chips a	altered below par	iy un- tings	16 M	0.4' /lonite	gray-tan at	159-160.6 ft
	Ě	NQ-26	98 .	1.2	47				N63W, 56NE F	E		Chips <sup>8</sup> Not alickensided <sup>(</sup>	generally paralle foliation. A few	stri-		Fault zo	one-transitio Diorite, Si	al-not slick.
1	Ē	NQ-27	98	1.5	57				N21W; 345W S	Ē		Smooth joint F	ated surfaces, no polished.	×	*_*_*_* ÷_``~~		and foliated Medium-fin	to about 168 ft. e grained,
	E170	NQ-28	100	1.2	71	<u> </u>			N27E, 70NW F N89E, 46NW F	F	Ĩ			_	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>		medium gra	y.
	<b>E</b> <sup>172</sup>							воттом	OF BORING	El								-
	Ē									ŧI								
	E									E								
	F									ŧ								-
	Ē									E								_
	Ē									Ē								-
	Ē									Ē								
1	Ē									El	1							-
	Ę									Ē							•	_
	Ē									El								
	F	ļ								F								-
	Ē			1						El								_
	ŧ	ŀ		ł						ŧ								-
	ŧ									FI								-
ĺ	Ē	[								El								
	Ē			]						E								
	F :									El								
	Ę									El								-
	Ē.									E								
	E									E								
	ŧ									Ē								-
	E									E								
	ŧ	i								E								
	Ē									El								
	Ē					]				E								-
1	E			1				1		E								
t	Ē									E								-
	F		ļ							F	}	i						-
1	Ē		[	1						E				•				
	Ē									Ę								
1	Ē								1	El								-
l	Ē									E								-
	Ē									E								
	N - 5	tandar	d pene	tration	resiste	ince, blows/ft		NOT	25				SE	AR	ROO	KS	TATIC	N
	Rec - 1 RQD - 1	length Length	recove of sour	red/ler ad core	igth co	red, % und longer/len;	gth cor	ed, %					PUBLI	C SER	VICE CON	IPANY OF	F NEW HAMP	SHIRE
	i - 8 j - 1	iplit sp Judistu	noo aa rbed a	mple smples	¥	Groundwater							• Y	ANKE	E ATOMIC	ELECTR	RIC COMPAN	Y .
8	\$	5 - She	lby tut	io M	- Den	laon								ė	united e		<b>8 :</b>	
	(	0 - Ost	ec pus erberg	wa P C	- Pite	100T		1					Date: March	9, 197	4			Project 7286
	- I - X - N	)rilling Nesthe	break red, w	: eatheri	k- Ng	Coefficient of permeability	y I						PAGE 2	ot	2	LOG O	F BORING	SRF 8

	BO	RING	LOCA.	TION .	See S	cotland	Rd. site plan	n	CLINATION	Vertical I	BEAF		DATE START/FINIS	H <u>Dec, 2</u>	0, 1973	
	CA	SING	D	3 in.			CORE SIZE	1-7/R i	n	TOTAL DEF	тн	118.3 <u>ft</u>	DRILLED BY Amer	rican Drilli	ng & Boring	; T. Canning, T. Paquotte
L	GR	OUNI	DELIN	ISL) 1	7.8	<u>(t</u>	DEPTH TO V	VATER/I		0.2 ft /	De	c. 20, 1973	LOGGED BY Soil -	K. L. Pol	k; Rock J.	R. Rand
E M	L SL	Depth	SAMPL	E	RATE	CONT	ENT or RQD	PRESS	URE TEST Computed	F = Foliation	E E	(Weathers	SOIL AND ROC	K DESCRI	PTIONS (Type, te	xture, mineralogy,
,	.	ft	and No.	or Rec.	ADV. min/ft	9.	Graphic	gpm psi j	k 10 <sup>-4</sup> cm/sec	C = Contact B = Bedding	E CO				color.	, hardness, etc.)
17	. 8 [		51.51A		r	•	1	00		S = Slickenaide	È.T	Dark brown clave	y topsoil; some small r	rools; orga	nic odor. Sl	A-Mottled gray, brown.
	Ē	Ē	S2 S3			27.4			1		È	and rusty-brown with blocky struc	silty clay. Low plastici sture, $s_{11}(tor) \ge 1.0 tsf.$	s3-Olive-1	> 1.0 tsf.♥S brown silty :	2-Similar to Sample SIA, clay. Low to medium
	Ē		54 55 56			37,9					ŧ	Similar to Sample s. (tor) = 0,5-0, 6 interacticky: contain	e S3. su(tor) > ). 6 taf. tai. S6-Olive-brow	S5-Similar n to olive- 5 mm thic	to Sample gray ailty c	S3, but stiff; spots. lay. Medium plasticity;
	Ē	-10	57			40.0					Ē	S7-Similar to Sar	mple S6, but slightly sti	icky, s <sub>u</sub> (to)	r) = 0, 32 taf	
	Ē		58	a		45.8					Ē	Gray silty clay.	Soft; medium to high p	lasticity; s	ticky. s_it/	or) = 0.15 tsf
	٥Ē	_		-					ſ		Ē				u	11
	Ē	-20 C	S9	3		41.9			1		Ē	Similar to Sampl	lo S8, but has a blocky i	structure; :	appears dist	turbed. $s_u(tor) = 0.23 \text{ tsf}$
ľ	Ē		S10	3		44.1					Ē	Similar to Sampl	le SR, but has a blocky i	structure;	appears ver	y disturbed, s <sub>u</sub> (tor)=0,10ts
	È	-30 r	s11	я		29.5	5		1		Ē	Similar to Sampl	le S8, hut medium stiff;	blocky str	ucture; app	ears very disturbed.
	Ę										Ē	$s_u(tor) = 0.43 ts$	f			and allow find and up a
-	20 E	37.0 C	S12	9		29.6			ТОР	OF SAND		to 20 mm thick."	le S8, but has a blocky i	structure;	containa lay	ers of sinty line sand up
ł	Ē	-4º C	513	11							FI.	Gray fine sand.	Uniform; clean; very f	ast reactio	n to shaking	test.
	Ē	- r	514	O							Ē	Similar to Sampl	le S13, but also contain	a a layer o	f coarse sar	nd.
	Ē	-50 -									Ē					
	Ē		\$15	24							Ē	Light gray fine t contains a few g	o coarse sand. Widely ravel pieces up to 15 m	graded; ve m in size.	ry alightly :	silty; subangular grains;
		-55.0 57.0							TOP OF	ROCK	ĒĻ			300		
- <sup>-</sup>	Ë	-60	NQ-1	90			777					n bl	leached by hydrotherma		reccia	fine-grained, medium
	Ē		NQ-2	100	1.0	33	VII					Chips fo	cts on partings. Parts		irougnout	Predominantly welded
	Ē		NQ-3	100	1.2	26					T - I	5	n foliation. No polished lickensides. Some part-			quartz veinlets x-cut
	Ē	70	1			_	1///					Chips ir 72.5' w	ngs striated. Moderate x 72.5' to 74.5'.	7 ه. ه. ه. ه. ه. ها		foliation.
	Ē		NQ-4	100	1.2	7	V444					Ground chips 74.5'				
- 6	٥Ē		NQ-5	97	1.2	43	1//			N81E, 58NW F		Chlorite Chips N	of we into mal Joints	T for	ัลก	Light yellow-green al-
	Ē	×	NQ-6	100	1.5	28						Chips R	nd partings are not	( <u>~,~</u> n <u>~,~</u> ,	nylonite	teration 80' to 81.7'.
	Ē	- [		100		59	17			N38W, 46SW F N76E, 48NW F		slight wx s	urfaces.			Diorito Medium-
ł	Ē	-90	1.1.4	100		•	44			NIDE, DISE J		Chlorito				grained, medium gray.
	Ē	Ľ	NQ-8	96	2.0	65	4			N75W, 30NE J East, 55N F		striated		***		veinlets. Foliated to
-8	٥Ę	×	NQ-9	98	2.0	9R					ĒĒ	F	resh and hard. Drills	x		
	Ē	-100	NQ-10	100	2.0	100	V777			N34W, 56NE F		D Driller n	ot slickensided. Not	× × ×		Diorite - amphibolite. Medium-grained, dark
	Ē		NQ-11	64	1.9	7	$\mathbb{Z}///$					mislatch a	Iteration or mechanical	* * * * * * *		gray, irregular felds-
	Ē		NQ-12	100	1.8	48	124				Ē	Slight wx	eiormation.	X×X		
	Ē	-110	NQ-13	100	2.0	83	·					F B	resh and hard. Not	5.1	Di-1	Diorite - amphibolite. Medium-grained, dark
	. È		NQ-14	100	2.0	62						f:	aulting effects.	(x, v x, q	Pink juartzite (?)	gray, not foliated.
-''	"È	1183L					<u>/</u>		воттом	OF BORING	ŧľ		<u></u>	<u> </u>		
	Ē										E					1
[	Ē										EI.					
	Ē	-									Ē					
	Ē										E					·
	Ē	_									E					
	Ē										È	]				
	Ē										El					
	Ē			L	<u>i</u>			LL	NOTE	s	FL	1				
	N Re	- 5 c - 1	Longth 1	penet	ration red/len	resists gth com	nce, blows/it red, %		1)	= s (tor) = Shear : u with T:	stren	gth measured			K SI	
Ę	8	ו- עו s- 5	iplit spo	2000 #81 2000 #81	nple	¥.	Groundwater	Ban corec	•   •	1 - 103.4, 1A -	30.6		YANKI	EE ATOMI	CELECTRI	C COMPANY
EGE	Ů	- t	S - Shel	by bub	ampies 6 N	i – Den	le on						e	united e		constructors inc
[			F - Fix 0 - Osta	ed pist erberg	on P G	- Pitc - GEI	her						Date: May 0 1075			Droinst 7924
	D wx	- 1	Drilling Weather	break ed, w	eatheriz	k -	Coefficient of permeabilit	: Y	x -	Oriented core			PAGE 1 of	1	LOG OF	BORING SRF 9

## ATTACHMENT No. 3

# PETROLOGY AND PRELIMINARY INTERPRETATION OF EIGHT SAMPLES OF DRILL CORE FROM THE SCOTLANT ROAD FAULT NEWBURY, MASSACHUSETTS

GENE SIMMONS DOROTHY RICHTER MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY CAMBRIDGE, MASSACHUSETTS 02134 for WESTON GEOPHYSICAL RESEARCH, INC. WESTBORO, MASSACHUSETTS 01581

# PETROGRAPHY AND PRELIMINARY INTERPRETATION OF EIGHT SAMPLES OF DRILL CORE FROM THE SCOTLAND ROAD FAULT, NEWBURYPORT, MASSACHUSETTS

Weston Geophysical Research, Inc. Post Office Box 306 Weston, Massachusetts 02193

> Gene Simmons Dorothy Richter 15 June 1974

## SUMMARY

The petrography of eight samples of drill core from the vicinity of the Scotland Road fault, Newburyport, Massachusetts is described in this report. The samples (with the important exception of sample SRF-5B) all show evidence of dynamic deformation; That is, cataclasis, brecciation, and intense crushing--all probably due to motion along the fault. The deformation clearly took place after the regional metamorphism of the rocks (which was probably associated with the Devonian Acadian orogeny). The microcracks produced in the deformational events appear in thin section to have either annealed, or have been filled by secondary minerals. There is no firm petrographic evidence of recent deformation of these samples.

Sample SRF-5B may be a very important clue to the history of movement on the Scotland Road Fault. It is an altered olivine basalt that seems to be completely free of deformation. If the thin section is representative of a significant volume of this rock, then it may show that no deformation has occurred on the Scotland Road Fault since this rock last cooled below about 500°C. An even stronger statement can be made with respect to movement on the fault after the alteration of the rock was completed: Because the strength of diabase decreases with alteration and because of the absence of deformational features in Sample SRF-5B, we are quite sure that no movement occurred on the fault after the alteration was completed.

Table 1 is a summary of the rock types in the Scotland Road fault suite. Detailed petrographic descriptions and photomicrographs of textural features are given on the following pages.

#### Table 1. Summary of Samples

Sample # SRF-1A SRF-2A	<u>Rock Type</u> Amphibolite breccia Mylonized quartz-musco- vite schist
SRF-2B	Brecciated quartz-mus- covite schist
SRF-3A 67'	Muscovite mylonite
SRF-4A 43'	Chlorite augen gneiss
SRF-5A 42'	Sheared granodiorite
SRF-5B 175'	Altered olivine basalt
SRF-7A 116'	Ultramylonite
SRF-8A 155'	Brecciated quartz-muscovite
SRF-8B 146.5'	Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist
SPE-9A 80'	Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist

## PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-1A

Name: Amphibolite breccia

## Macroscopic Description

This sample is a coarse-grained dark green breccia. Large (to 1.5cm) angular fragments of dark green amphibole appear set in a finer matrix of crushed amphibole and finer-grained white minerals. Zones of continuous mylonized and sheared materials cut across the sample.

## Microscopic Description

#### Texture

The texture of the thin section is very complex. Large single crystals can be seen to be split, sheared, rotated, and crushed. The original foliation of the schist is totally disrupted and the crystals are now randomly oriented. Multiple sets of fine parallel cracks and/or inclusion trains can be traced from an amphibole crystal into an adjacent feldspar grain. Coherent fragments of crystals can be "fitted" back together by eye, but they are separated by fibrous chlorite. Large cystals have cataclastic material along grain edges. Calcite viens which crosscut the breccia are themselves deformed, and crosscut by thin veins of undeformed plagioclase.

## Mineralogy

Hornblende is the dominant constituent of the rock. It

is optically negative with a large axial angle, and pleochroic from pale green to dark greenish brown.

-2-

Crystal fragments range in size from 0.01mm-1.5cm. The crystals contain abundant inclusion trains and cataclastic material occurs within crystals and bevels grain boundaries. The hornblende appears to be unaltered except for a few overgrowths of bluegreen amphibole.

- Plagioclase is the second most abundant mineral in the rock. It occurs as untwinned crystals which were probably a part of the original amphibolite schist. Plagioclase formslarge (0.5 - 1.0mm) crystals which are completely covered with linear sets of dusty inclusions. Most crystals appear strained and broken; healed fractures are marked by strings of quartz, calcite, and fresh plagioclase.
- Chlorite forms pale green, fibrous, slightly pleochroic aggregates. All crystals display a consistent anomalous "tiger eye" brown interference color. Some of the chlorite seems to be post-brecciation recrystallized mylonitic material which appears to be stretched between cystals. A lesser amount of chlorite appears to be retrograded biotite which is recognized by small amounts of relict biotite and remnant pleochroic haloes.
- Calcite appears in veins and fills interstices in the matrix of the rock. Most of the calcite in the veins

-3-

is highly distorted and elongated; but there are also minor amounts of undistorted calcite in thin younger veins.

Sphene occurs in accessory amounts as small nodular crystals associated with fuzzy aggregates of leucoxene. Opaque minerals form stringy aggregates in the mica flakes and more rarely occur as roundish single crystals in the matrix of the rock.

Apatite and Cordierite occur as small euhedral crystals in the matrix of the sample.

## Estimated modal composition

amphibole	45%
plagioclase	30%
calcite	15%
opaque	5%
accessories	5%

#### PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-2A

#### Name: Mylonized quartz muscovite schist

#### Macroscopic Description

Sample SRF-2A is a light greenish-grey rock. It appears in hand specimen to be a brecciated cataclasite; in other words, it has a very complex texture which may be the result of multiple deformations. The sample can be separated into different domains of fragments of coarser and finer grained material. The fragments are separated by finegrained, lighter colored material.

## Microscopic Description

## Texture

The domains mentioned above appear in thin section as very fine mosaics of granular quartz grains and scaly muscovite. The average grain size is about 0.0mm.

The coherent fragments are separated by shear zones of chlorite, calcite, sphene and ultrafine material which is unresolvable with high magnification.

### Mineralogy

Quartz is abundant in the rock fragments and occurs as small (0.2mm) roundish grains. Many grains appear to be crushed and granulated. Most grains have undulose extinction. The quartz crystals are almost always separated from each other by a film of minute mica flakes, except in the coarser grained fragments where they are in direct contact along sutured grain boundaries. Muscovite occurs as small scaly clusters of crystals.

Muscovite is a major constituent of the rock and has three modes of occurrence -- 1) as minute aggregates completely replacing what was probably feldspar, 2) as thin films around individual quartz crystals, and 3) as part of the shear zones between the rock fragments.

Calcite forms small aggregates in the shear zones and small veins which cut the rock.

Chlorite occurs in the shear zones between the fragments as irregular stringers.

## Estimated modal composition

quartz	40%
muscovite	35%
calcite	15%
chlorite	5%
unresolvable material	5%

## PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-2B

Name: Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist Macroscopic Description

This sample is a medium greyish green brecciated rock which is very similar to sample SRF-2A in hand specimen. It is slightly coarser grained than the latter sample but is has a similar texture of sheared and brecciated metamorphic rock fragments up to 2cm in size.

#### Microscopic Description

#### Texture

The thin section shows a complex texture of brecciated quartz-muscovite rock. The fragments are of various sizes but have an internal uniform grain size of 0.1mm or less. The fragments are separated by zones of unresolvably fine minerals mixed with calcite.

## Mineralogy

- Quartz is one of the most abundant minerals in this rock. It occurs as irregular but generally ovoid grains which appear to be highly strained and are 0.1mm in size. Most of the quartz grains are not in contact with other quartz grains, and contain relatively few inclusions and bubble trains.
- Muscovite forms small scaly masses which thinly separate quartz grains. The muscovite contains many small inclusions of opaques. Muscovite is a common mineral in the shear zones where it has a weblike pattern.

- Chlorite is not very abundant in the main body of the rock but it is quite common in the sheared zones between the rock fragments. It is generally very pale green, only slightly pleochroic, and very weakly birefringent.
- Biotite occurs as a few relict grains associated with some of the chlorite.
- Calcite, clouded with fluid inclusions, fills the shear zones and younger veins. It is also present in the matrix of the fragments as small subhedral crystals.

Opaque grains are widely dispersed throughout the thin sections as minute single crystals and aggregates. Garnet crystals are present in the sample but are very

rare. Crystals <0.1mm in size appear brownish at the core because of tiny opaque inclusions.

## Estimated Modal Composition

quartz	35%
muscovite	40%
calcite	15%
chlorite	58
opaques & accessories	5%

-8-

## PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-3A 67'

Name: Muscovite Mylonite

#### Macroscopic Description

This sample is a massive rock, mottled light and dark grey, and almost gneissic in texture. Most grains are too fine-grained to be recognized although enough larger quartz grains are visible to give the sample its banded appearance.

## Microscopic Description

#### Texture

The sample is <u>very</u> fine-grained ( $\sim 0.01$ mm) and vaguely schistose in thin section. Very faint outlines of lenticular shapes seem to mark former brecciated fragments. These fragments are obscured by a fine network of stringy mica which have a preferred orientation in another direction. The complex texture of this sample suggests multiple periods of deformation.

#### Mineralogy

Muscovite is abundant in this sample as ultrafine crystals which are often optically aligned to give a weblike appearance of the mineral. Muscovite is very finely mixed with quartz in the matrix of the rock. It is the major mineral in the sample, although one cannot see it in hand specimen.

Quartz occurs as isolated fragmental crystals in the sample. It generally has indistinct grain boundaries. Quartz also appears to be mixed with the muscovite at a very fine scale.

Calcite occurs commonly as 0.5mm roundish crystals in the matrix and as thin aggregates following the schistosity.

Opaque grains occur in small knots with streamlined outlines, and small crystals following schistosity.

## Estimated Modal Composition

muscovite	70%
quartz	15%
calcite	10%
opaques	5%

Note: Another thin section from this core exhibits similar textures but contains small domains which are calcite rich.

#### PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-4A 43'

Name: Chlorite augen gneiss

## Macroscopic Description

This sample is a fine-grained augen gneiss. It has a dark green matrix of indistinguishable minerals and 0.5mm "eyes" of white crystals. The sample shows strong directional foliation which is crosscut by younger veins of light colored minerals.

## Microscopic Description

#### Texture

In thin section, the sample shows a complex, almost chaotic texture. It is basically a mosaic of fragmental quartz and feldspar crystals and aggregates with lenticular shapes sandwiched by shear zones of chlorite, calcite, and opaques. Thin veins of calcite cut the foliation. Mineralogy

Chlorite is the most abundant mineral in the rock.

- It is pale green, pleochroic, and exhibits anomalous brown interference colors. Very fine, scaly aggregates of chlorite are commonly finely mixed with quartz and opaque grains. Larger crystals of chlorite show small amounts of relict biotite.
- Plagioclase occurs as intensely sericitized, poorly twinned, fragmented crystals in the augen.
- Quartz has three modes of occurrence in this sample: 1) large broken crystals in the augen, 2) very finely

mixed in the matrix, and 3) fresh crystals in thin veinlets.

- Calcite is a very common mineral in the matrix, shear zones, and in veins. It commonly has deformed twin planes.
- Orthoclase occurs in accessory amounts as anomalously fresh appearing fragmental crystals in the augen. Opaque grains are widely dispersed throughout the thin section as minute crystals.

## Estimated Modal Composition

chlorite	35%
plagioclase	20%
quartz	15%
calcite	20%
orthoclase	5%
opaque	5%

Note -- the bulk mineral composition of this sample suggests that its protolith was a mafic igneous rock.

## PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-5A 42'

#### Name: Sheared granodiorite

## Macroscopic Description

This sample appears in hand specimen to be a massive, coarse-grained igneous rock with no evidence of deformation. The average grain size is approximately lmm. Visible in hand specimen are pink feldspar, white quartz, and an unknown green mineral.

## Microscopic Description

## Texture

The thin section has the hypidiomorphic granular texture typical of plutonic rocks. Equidimensional crystals showing varying degrees of alteration are crosscut by thin veinlets. The major deformational features in the thin section are: healed cracks, undulose extinction of the minerals, and a narrow shear zone.

## Mineralogy

"Plagioclase", once a major component of this sample, has been completely kaolinized with only a few rare traces of the original twinning or textures left. The kaoinization reaction produces excess SiO<sub>2</sub> which can be seen in the thin section as a thin rim around each kaolinized grain. These peculiar rims are optically uniform around each crystal. The rims only occur along feldspar-feldspar contacts but do not occur along feldspar-quartz contacts. Quartz occurs as 1 mm blocky crystals with undulose extinction and numerous inclusion trains. Quartzfeldspar boundaries are generally smooth whereas quartz-quartz boundaries are sutured, a sign of partial recrystallization. Quartz also occurs in the rims around kaolinized feldspar grains as mentioned above.

Microcline occurs as slightly altered crystals with a microperthitic texture.

- Chlorite forms pseudomorphs after biotite and amphibole. It is medium green, weakly pleochroic, and contains abundant needles of opaques.
- Calcite occurs as small clusters of crystals finely mixed with kaolinite alteration products, as thin veinlets, and as aggregates in the matrix. Calcite also fills the one shear zone in the thin section.
- Accessory minerals in this rock are opaques, apatite, and sphene.

## Estimated Modal Composition

"plagioclase"	40%
microcline	20%
quartz	25%
chlorite	12%
opaque & accessories	38

## PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-5B 175'

#### Name: Altered olivine basalt

## Macroscopic Description

This is a massive, dark greenish grey aphanitic rock. Small dark phenocrysts (0.5 - 1.0mm) and 0.5mm white amygdules are visible in the black groundmass. There are no signs of deformation such as shear zones or even veins.

#### Microscopic Description

### Texture

The sample has a very fine-grained (<0.1mm) intersertal texture. The matrix texture is somewhat obscured by partial alteration of the minerals. The vesicles are rimmed with fibrous minerals. The phenocrysts are completely replaced by alteration minerals.

## Mineralogy

Plagioclase occurs as small (0.1mm or less) laths in the matrix of the rock. It does not form any phenocrysts. The plagioclase is generally poorly twinned and partially altered to a sericitic product.

Pyroxene crystals occur as small roundish grains with small scale intergrowths with opaque rods. It is pinkish brown in color and is probably augite.

Serpentine completely replaces roundish 1.0mm phenocrysts of olivine. Serpentine also occurs as fibers in the matrix of the rock, and as the lining of the amygdules. Calcite forms twinned single crystals in the amygdules

and is otherwise rare in the matrix.

Estimated Modal Composition

plagioclase	35%
pyroxene	35%
serpentine	10%
calcite	10%
sericitic alteration	10%

Note -- This sample is probably from a dike which post-dates movement along the Scotland Road fault since it is completely undeformed.

## PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-7A 116'

Name: Ultramylonite

## Macroscopic Description

This is a compact, extremely fine-grained, mustard colored rock. A few small whitish augen (0.5 - 1.0mm) are visible in the hand specimen. The matrix is buff colored, highly sheared looking material.

## Microscopic Description

#### Texture

This is an ultrafine-grained crush breccia. The original texture of the rock is totally obliterated. The apparent mineral layering is due to 'smearing' of the grain in local shear zones.

## Mineralogy

The rock is so fine-grained that individual crystals are difficult to discriminate, except in the few augen of quartz, calcite, and opaque minerals. The matrix is extremely finely-ground quartz, mica, calcite, sphene, apatite, and opaque minerals. Calcite occurs in small nodules which show some signs of recrystallization.

Note -- the fine-grained nature of this rock precludes any further discussion of its mineralogy or texture.

## -18-

## PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-8A 155

# <u>Name: Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist</u>

## Macroscopic Description

This sample is a dark greenish grey rock. On a fresh surface it appears to be a fine grained quartzite cut by narrow black shear zones and mottled tan zones. The wet sawed surface shows the texture of a breccia with distinct fragments ranging in size from lmm to lcm. The fragments are separated by the tan material; both are cut by the black shear zone.

## Microscopic Description

## Texture

The texture in thin section is similar to other samples in the suite. Lenticular fragments of various sizes of quartz muscovite rock are separated by ultrafine-grained shear zones. Average grain size is 0.1mm. The relative proportions of quartz and muscovite varies from fragment to fragment.

#### Mineralogy

Quartz occurs as roundish grains which are almost always isolated from each other by varying amounts of muscovite. Some of the crystals appear to be broken. Muscovite forms scaly masses which are vaguely schistose. Muscovite is a major component of the rock, filling interstices, between quartz grains, shear zones. It forms the bulk of several lithic fragments.

- Chlorite is a major constituent of the sheared zones between lithic fragments although it is not abundant in the fragments themselves. It is pale green, slightly pleochoic, and exhibits anomalous blue interference colors.
- Opaque grains, finely mixed with leucoxene, form intricate integrowths pseudomorphous after tabular biotite plates and occur as euhedral crystals in the lithic fragments. Calcite is common in the shear zones as elongate crystals.

It also occurs as minute single crystals in the lithic fragments, and in a few thin, undeformed veins.

Sphene forms fine granular aggregates in the matrix of the

fragments and occurs as stringers in the shear zones.

## Estimated modal composition

Quartz	45%
Muscovite	30%
Chlorite	10%
Opaque	5%
Calcite	5%
Sphene	5%

## -20-

# PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-8B 146.5

Name: Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist

## Macroscopic Description

This sample is strikingly similar to SRF-8A in hand specimen. It is dark greenish-grey in color. On a fresh broken surface, it appears fine grained and structureless. On the sawed surface, one can see lenticular fragments of various sizes, thinly outlined by lighter colored material. The core is broken along a major fracture surface.

## Microscopic Description

#### Texture

The texture of the sample is variable and complex. The rock fragments consist of roundish quartz grains and scaly mica; the grain size and composition of the fragments vary. The lithic fragments are separated by mylonite which consists of ground quartz, mica, chlorite, and calcite.

## <u>Mineralogy</u>

Quartz is the most abundant and most coarsely grained mineral in the rock. It occurs as roundish grains which vary in size (0.1-0.3mm) and abundance (60%-40%) in the different lithic fragments. The crystals commonly contain inclusions. Quartz crystals are rare in contact with each other. A minor amount of quartz occurs in thin veins which cut the rock and probably post-date the brecciation.

Muscovite occurs as scaly aggregates whose crystals are

much less than 0.1mm in size. The aggregates form most of the matrix of the lithic fragments. Submicroscopic muscovite appears to occur in the mylonized zones. Chlorite forms pale green 0.1mm crystals in the shear zones. Chlorite less commonly occurs in the matrix of the lithic

fragments.

Ocaque grains occur in the shear zones, in the matrix and in a few rare veins.

Carbonate forms irregular clusters of crystals in the

shear zones but does not occur in the lithic fragments. Sphene occurs in minor amounts as grainy aggregates in the matrix of fragments and in the mylonized zones.

Estimated modal composition

Quartz	40%
Muscovite	40%
Chlorite	10%
Calcite	5%
Opaques	5%

# PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE SRF-9A 80

#### Name: Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist

## Macroscopic Description

The texture of this sample is similar to that of samples 8A and 8B, although the rock is light tannish-grey in color. Lenticular and irregularly shaped fragments 0.1-1cm in size are recognizable in a highly sheared matrix. Individual minerals are too fine-grained to recognize in hand specimen. Thin veins of light-colored minerals and, more rarely, opaques are present.

## Microscopic Description

## Texture

The thin section exhibits the chaotic texture of the rock. Lenticular quartz-muscovite lithic fragments are elongate parallel to foliation. Mylonized zones appear to be structureless. Irregular semi-parallel veinlets cut the foliation.

## <u>Mineralogy</u>

Quartz occurs as roundish grains in the lithic fragments. The grains appear to be highly strained and in places broken. They commonly contain linear arrays of inclusions. Very finely ground quartz is apparently a constituent in the mylonite zones. Several thin veins of quartz cut the rock. The margins of the veins are commonly sutured and show signs of recrystallization; in some places the vein quartz is optically continuous with quartz grains which it cuts. Muscovite forms scaly masses between quartz grains in the

lithic fragments. The individual crystals are minute but seem to show a general preferred orientation parallel to the foliation. Muscovite appears to be relatively more abundant in the finer-grained lithic fragments than in the coarser-grained fragments.

Calcite is prominant in the mylonized zones and in a few veins. It occurs less commonly in the matrix of the rock fragments.

Sphene aggregates are also common in the shear zones but sparsely distributed in the rest of the rock.

Opaques seem to be concentrated in the shear zones between lithic fragments in clusters of 0.1mm crystals. They also occur in a few veins and as euhedral crystals

in the fragments.

Estimated modal composition

Quartz	35%
Muscovite	30%
Calcite	20%
Sphene	5%
Opaques	10%

Note: The light color of this sample is apparently due to the virtual absence of chlorite in the shear-zones coupled with the relative abundance of calcite.





Photo 1. Sample SRF-1A. Amphibolite breccia. Plane polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photomicrograph shows a typical field of view of this sample. Note that the large darkish hornblende crystals are sheared. The lighter grey crystals are plagioclase. See also Photo 2.

Photo 2. Sample SRF-1A. Amphibolite breccia. Crossed polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photomicrograph shows a major shear zone in the rock. The elongate crystals are deformed calcite. See also Photo 1.



Photo 3. Sample SRF-2A. Mylonized quartz-muscovite schist. Cross polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photomicrograph shows one large lithic fragment covering 3/4 of the photograph and consisting of roundish quartz grains and fuzzy muscovite. The dark zones around the fragment are shear zones of chlorite and other unresolvable minerals. See Photo 4 for an enlargement of the lithic fragment.

Photo 4. Sample SRF-2A. Mylonized quartz-muscovite schist. Plane polarized light. Width of field 0.5mm. This photo is an enlargement of the large lithic fragment shown in Photo 3. The roundish grains are quartz, and the matrix is scaly muscovite, opaques, sphene, and tiny euhedral crystals of calcite as in the left center of the photo.





Photo 5. Sample SRF-2B. Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist. Plane polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photomicrograph shows the chaotic texture typical of this rock. Note the lenticular fragments of varying grain sizes. The round white crystals are quartz; the darker minerals are scaly muscovite, sphene, calcite and opaques. See also Photo 6, an enlargement of a part of this field magnified. Note the similarity of this sample with SRF-2A.

Photo 6. An enlargement of a portion of Photo 5. Sample SRF-2B. Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist. Plane polarized light. Width of field 0.5mm. This photomicrograph shows the chaotic texture typical of this rock. The round white crystals are quartz; the darker minerals are scaly muscovite, sphene, calcite and opaques. Note the similarity of this sample with SRF-2A.





Photo 7. Sample SRF-3A 67'. Muscovite mylonite. Crossed polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photomicrograph shows the typical texture of this very fine-grained sample. The few larger grains are fragmented quartz crystals. They are set in a finely ground matrix of quartz, muscovite and lesser amounts of calcite, sphene, and opaques.

Photo 8. Sample SRF-4A 43. Chlorite augen gneiss. Plane polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photomicrograph shows a polycrystalline 'eye' (lower half of photo) in a crushed and sheared matrix. The light grains in the photo are mostly plagioclase and quartz. The large darker grey crystals are chlorite. Note the concentration of opaques in the shear zone in the upper right corner.



Photo 9. Sample SRF-5A 42'. Sheared granodiorite. Crossed polarized light. This photomicrograph shows a typical field of view of this sample. Note the large fuzzy grains. They are kaolinized plagioclase crystals which have narrow rims of optically continuous quartz. These rims were probably produced as a result of the kaolinization. Note that the rims do not continue along a quartz-plagioclase grain boundary at the left. The medium grey grains are microperthite, and the light grey grains are quartz.

## Photo 10. Sample SRF-5B 175'. Altered olivine basalt. Plane polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photomicrograph is a good example of the texture of this sample. In the upper left is an amygdule filled with twinned calcite and lined with fibrous serpentine. At the right is a phenocryst of olivine which has been completely replaced by serpentine. The matrix consists of laths of plagioclase (white) and darker crystals of pyroxene and black engages.

black opaques. See also photo 11, an enlargement of the matrix.



Photo 11, an enlargement of a portion of photo 10. Sample SRF-5B 175'. Altered olivine basalt. Plane polarized light. Width of field 0.5mm. This photomicrograph is an enlargement of the matrix. Photo 12. Sample SRF-7A 116'. Ultramylonite. Plane polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photomicrograph shows typical texture of this rock. Dark shear zones can be distinguished against the background of highly crushed minerals. See also photo 13.

.




Photo 13. an enlargement of a portion of photo 12. Sample SRF-7A 116'. Ultramylonite. Plane polarized light. Width of field 0.5mm. The rock is so pulverized that only a few grains can be identified with certainty--some dark nodular sphene, a few quartz grains and a few aggregates of calcite.

Photo 14. Sample SRF-8A 155<sup>•</sup>. Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist. Plane polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photomicrograph shows a typical field of view. Two large lithic fragments are separated by a dark grey shear zone consisting of chlorite, calcite, and finely ground quartz and muscovite. The white grains in the rock fragments are quartz which are surrounded by darker muscovite, calcite, sphene, and opaque grains.





Photo 15. Sample SRF-8B 146.5'. Brecciated quartz muscovite schist. Cross polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. This photo-micrograph shows parts of three lithic fragments. Two of the fragments are coarser-grained than the fragment in the lower right. The larger roundish grains are quartz and the fuzzy material is fine grained masses of muscovite. A thin black line of chlorite and opaques separate the three fragments. Note the similarity of this sample to SRF-8A.

Photo 16. Sample SRF-9A 80'. Brecciated quartz-muscovite schist. Cross polarized light. Width of field 1.5mm. The left hand side of the photomicrograph shows a lithic fragment of roundish quartz grains surrounded by scalv masses of muscovite. At the right is a stringy mylonite zone consisting of pulverized quartz and muscovite with carbonate and opaques. This sample is similar to samples SRF-8A and 8B except for the absence of chlorite.

## ATTACHMENT No. 4

## K-Ar AGE DETERMINATIONS OF SIX SAMPLES FROM THE SCOTLAND ROAD FAULT ZONE

GEOCHRON LABORATORIES DIVISION, KRUEGER ENTERPRISES, INC. CAMBRIDGE, MASSACHUSETTS 02139 for WESTON GEOPHYSICAL RESEARCH, INC. WESTBORO, MASSACHUSETTS 01581



KRUEGER ENTERPRISES, INC.

GEOCHRON LABORATORIES DIVISION

24 BLACKSTONE STREET 

CAMBRIDGE, MASSACHUSETTS 02139

(617) 875-3691

16 May 1974

Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysical P.O. Box 364 Weston, MA 02193

Dear Mr. Holt:

Enclosed are the analytical reports of the K-Ar age determinations on two (2) of the six (6) samples sent to us by Gene Simmons at M.I.T. I have already given these results to you by telephone.

We analyzed sample 5B as a whole rock and obtained an age of about 199 m.y., and we analyzed a sericite concentrate from 8A and obtained an age of about 248 m.y. This latter concentrate contained a significant amount of feldspar, but with a sample of this sort it is often not possible to obtain a high quality mica concentrate. The measured age of sample 8A should be a reasonably good metamorphic age for the rock.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. In the meantime, I am enclosing our invoice for this work. I will contact you as soon as the remaining samples have been analyzed.

Sincerely, H. Rusman

Richard H. Reesman General Manager

RHR/dm encl: 2 reports & invoice #4401



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617)-876-3691

## POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

### REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

Date Received:

Date Reported:

22 April 1974

14 May 1974

Our Sample No. R-2813

Your Reference: SRF 5B (175.1')

Submitted by:

Richard Holt Weston Geophysical Res. Inc. P.O. Box 364 Weston, MA 02193

Sample Description & Locality: Dark basalt drill core, SRF 5B (175.1')

Material Analyzed: Whole rock, crushed to -40/+100 mesh.

$Ar^{40*}/K^{40} = .01230$		AGE =	199 <u>+</u>	9	M.Y.
Argon Analyses:					
Ar <sup>4 0</sup> *, ppm.	Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>		Ave	. Ar <sup>40</sup> *	, ppm.
.01647 .01628	.686 .645			.016	38
Potassium Analyses:					
% К	Ave. %K		ĸ	<sup>40</sup> , ppr	n
1.095 1.087	1.091			1,331	
Constants Used:		_			

$$\begin{split} \lambda \beta &= 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year} \\ \lambda_e &= 0.585 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year} \\ K^{40} / K &= 1.22 \times 10^{-4} \text{ g./g.} \end{split} \qquad \text{AGE} = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda_\beta} \ln \left[ \frac{\lambda_\beta + \lambda_e}{\lambda_e} \times \frac{\text{Ar}^{40*}}{K^{40}} + 1 \right] \end{split}$$

Note: Ar<sup>40</sup>\* refers to radiogenic Ar<sup>40</sup>. M.Y. refers to millions of years.



24 BLACKSTONE STREET • CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 • (617)-876-3691

POTASSIUM-AR	GON AGE DETERMIN		REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK					
Our Sample No.	M-2820		Date Received:	26 April 1974				
Your Reference:	SRF 8A		Date Reported:	15 May 1974				
Submitted by:	Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysica P.O. Box 364 Weston, MA 02193	1						
Sample Description	on & Locality: Seri	citized meta-sedi	iment, drill co	ore #SRF 8A.				
Material Analyze	d: Sericite con	centrate with sub	ostantial feldsp	ar remaining.				
$Ar^{40} * / K^{40} = .$	01550		AGE = 248 <u>4</u>	<u> </u>				
Argon Analyses:								
Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm	•	Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>	A	ve. Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.				
.09410 .09848		.891 .791		.09629				
Potassium Analys	es:							
% K		Ave. %K		K <sup>40</sup> , ppm				
5.086 5.099		5.092		6.212				
Constants Used:				1				
$\lambda \beta = 4.72 \times 10^{-10}$	/ year	AGE = $\frac{1}{\lambda_c + \lambda}$	$-\ln\left \frac{\lambda_{\beta}+\lambda_{e}}{\lambda_{e}}\right  \times$	$\frac{Ar^{40*}}{10}$ + 1				
$\lambda_{e} = 0.585 \times 10^{-1}$	<sup>0</sup> / year	e · · ·	β <b>-</b> ``e	К 🖤 🚽				
$K^{40}/K = 1.22 \times 1$	0 <sup>-4</sup> g./g.		•					

Note: Ar<sup>40</sup>\* refers to radiogenic Ar<sup>40</sup>. M.Y. refers to millions of years.



KRUEGER ENTERPRISES, INC.

GEOCHRON LABORATORIES DIVISION and the second معام بالمحافظ المعام والمعام والمحافظ

24 BLACKSTONE STREET • CAMBRIDGE, MASSACHUSETTS 02139 • (617) 876-3691

31 May 1974

Richard Holt Weston Geophysical Research Inc. P.O. Box 364 Weston, MA 02193

Dear Mr. Holt:

Enclosed are the analytical reports of the K-Ar age determinations on the remaining four (4) samples of the six (6) we received from Gene Simmions last month.

The amphibole in SRF 1A gave an age of 324 m.y. Samples SRF 2A, SRF 3A, and SRF 5A 42' were analyzed as whole rocks and gave indistinguishable ages of 256 m.y., 269 m.y., and 272 m.y. respectively.

Judging from past analyses we have done for you I suspect these numbers are about what you expected.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. In the meantime, I am enclosing our invoice for this work. We look forward to serving you again in the near future.

Sincerely. Beennan Richard H. Reesman

General Manager

RHR/dm encl: 4 reports & invoice # 4414



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617) - 876 - 3691

## POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

## REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

Our Sample No. A- 2814

Your Reference: SRF 1A up

Date Received: 22 April 1974

Date Reported: 31 May 1974

Submitted by:

Richard Holt Weston Geophysical Res. Inc. P.O. Box 364 Weston, MA 02193

Sample Description & Locality: Coarse-grained amphibolite

Material Analyzed:

Amphibole ooncentrate, -40/+100 mesh.

$Ar^{40} * / K^{40} = .02069$		AGE =	324 <u>+</u> 14	M.Y.
Argon Analyses:				
Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.	Ar <sup>40*</sup> / Total Ar <sup>40</sup>		Ave. Ar 40 *,	, ppm.
.01967 .01981	.679 .704		.0197	14
Potassium Analyses:				
% K	Ave. %K		K <sup>40</sup> , ppm	ı
.786 .778	.782		•954	
Constants Used:		-		-

$$\begin{split} \lambda \beta &= 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year} \\ \lambda_e &= 0.585 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year} \\ \text{K}^{40} / \text{K} &= 1.22 \times 10^{-4} \text{ g./g.} \end{split}$$

 $AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda_{\beta}} \ln \left[ \frac{\lambda_{\beta} + \lambda_e}{\lambda_e} \times \frac{Ar^{40*}}{K^{40}} + 1 \right]$ 

Note: Ar <sup>40</sup> \* refers to radiogenic Ar <sup>40</sup>. M.Y. refers to millions of years.



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617) - 876 - 3691

POTASSIUM-AR	GON AGE DETERMINA	LION	REPORT	OF ANALYTIC	AL WORK
Our Sample No.	R-2817		Date Receiv	ved: 26 Apri	1 1974
Your Reference:	SRF 2A		Date Repor	ted: 31 May 1	L97 <b>8</b>
Submitted by:	Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysical P.O. Box 364 Weston, MA 02193				
Sample Descriptio	n & Locality: Seric	ite schist			
Material Analyzed	: Whole rock, cr	ushed to -60/+10	0 <b>mes</b> h.		
Ar <sup>40</sup> */K <sup>40</sup> = .	01604		AGE =	256 <u>+</u> 10	M.Y.
Argon Analyses:					
Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.	А	r <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>		Ave. Ar <sup>40</sup>	*, ppm.
.03235 .03378		.676 .807		•03	307
Potassium Analyse	25:				
% K		Ave. %K		K <sup>40</sup> , pp	m
1.699 1.680		1.689		2.06	<b>1</b>
Constants Used:		. 1	[],+)	▲ 40 <del>*</del>	٦
$\lambda \beta = 4.72 \times 10^{-10}$	/ year	$AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda_a}$	$-\ln\left[\frac{\lambda_{\beta}+\lambda_{e}}{\lambda_{e}}\right]$	$\frac{e}{\kappa} \times \frac{Ar^{40}}{\kappa^{40}} +$	1
$\lambda_{e} = 0.585 \times 10^{-1}$ K $^{40}$ /K = 1.22 x 1	<sup>o</sup> / year O <sup>-4</sup> g./g.	q -	•	N	

Note: Ar <sup>40</sup> \* refers to radiogenic Ar <sup>40</sup>. M.Y. refers to millions of years.



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617) - 876 - 3691

POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DE	TERMINATION	REPORT OF A	NALYTICAL WORK
Our Sample No. <sub>R</sub> 2818		Date Received:	26 April 1974
Your Reference: SRF 3A		Date Reported:	31 May 1974
Submitted by: Richard Weston P.O. Bo Weston,	IJ. Holt Geophysical ox 364 MA 02193		
Sample Description & Locality:	Sericite schist		
Material Analyzed: Whole	e rock, crushed to -60/+10	00 mesh.	
$Ar^{40} * / K^{40} = .01690$		AGE = 269 <u>+</u>	10 M.Y.
Argon Analyses:			
Ar <sup>4 0</sup> *, ppm.	Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>	А	ve. Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.
.07748 .07763	.913 .787		.07756
Potassium Analyses:			
% К	Ave. %K		K <sup>40</sup> , ppm
3.782 3.741	3.761		4.589
<u>Constants Used:</u> $\lambda_{\beta} = 4.72 \times 10^{-10}$ / year $\lambda_{e} = 0.585 \times 10^{-10}$ / year K <sup>40</sup> /K = 1.22 × 10 <sup>-4</sup> g./g.	$AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda_\beta}$	$\ln\left[\frac{\lambda_{\beta}+\lambda_{e}}{\lambda_{e}}+\frac{\lambda_{e}}{\lambda_{e}}\right]$	$\frac{Ar^{40*}}{K^{40}}$ + 1

Note: Ar<sup>40</sup>\* refers to radiogenic Ar<sup>40</sup>. M.Y. refers to millions of years.



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617) - 876-3691

POTASSIUM-ARGO	NAGE DETERMINATION	REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK
Our Sample No.	R-2819	Date Received: 26 April 1974
Your Reference: S	RF 5A 42'	Date Reported: 31 May 1974
Submitted by: R W P W	ichard J. Holt eston Geophysical .0. Box 364 eston, MA 02193	
Sample Description	& Locality: Altered granodiori	te
Material Analyzed:	Whole rock, crushed to -60	/+100 mesh.
Ar <sup>40</sup> */K <sup>40</sup> = .01	710	$AGE = 272 \pm 10$ M.Y.
Argon Analyses:		
Ar <sup>4 0</sup> *, ppm.	Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>4</sup>	<sup>0</sup> Ave. Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.
.06782 .07003	.879 .872	.06893
Potassium Analyses:		
% K	Ave. %K	K <sup>40</sup> , ppm
3.341 3.267	3.304	4.030
Constants Used:		с <b>1</b>
$\lambda_{\beta} = 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / y$	ear AGE = $\frac{1}{\lambda_{-}}$	$\frac{1}{\lambda_{\beta}} \ln \left[ \frac{\lambda_{\beta} + \lambda_{e}}{\lambda_{e}} \times \frac{Ar^{40} + 1}{\mu_{e}} \right]$
$\lambda_e = 0.585 \times 10^{-1.0} /$	year	β <b>κ</b> · · · e Κ · · · · ·
$K^{40}/K = 1.22 \times 10^{-1}$	<sup>4</sup> g./g.	•

Note: Ar <sup>40</sup> \* refers to radiogenic Ar <sup>40</sup>. M.Y. refers to millions of years.

### GEOLOGICAL INVESTIGATIONS

of the

PORTSMOUTH FAULT (Novotny - 1963)

## PORTSMOUTH-HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

## PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

### SEABROOK STATION

SEPTEMBER 1974

## PORTSMOUTH FAULT INVESTIGATIONS

## CONTENTS

I.	DEI	FINITION OF THE PORTSMOUTH FAULT	1
II.	INV	VESTIGATION PROCEDURES	2
	Α.	PRELIMINARY - GENERAL AREA	2
	Β.	DETAILED - BREAKFAST HILL ROAD, GREENLAND	2
		1. COAKLEY SAND PIT	2
ı.		2. LOCH-COOMBS RECLAIMED BORROW AREA	3
		a. GROUND MAGNETOMETER SURVEY	3
		b. BORINGS INVESTIGATIONS	4
		c. PETROGRAPHIC EXAMINATIONS	4
III.	RE	SULTS OF INVESTIGATIONS ALONG THE INFERRED FAULT	5
	A.	NOVOTNY'S "FAULTED" OUTCROP EXPOSURES	5
		1. ROUTE 1 BY-PASS, PORTSMOUTH	5
		2. GOAT ISLAND, NEW CASTLE	6
		3. BRUMLEY HILL, NORTH HAMPTON	6
	Β.	GRANITE IN THE RYE FORMATION	6
	C.	UNCONFORMABLE RYE/KITTERY STRATIGRAPHY	7
	D.	RADIOMETRIC AGE DATING	8
IV.	со	NCLUSIONS	9
RE	FERI	ENCES	10

· i

### CONTENTS (CON'T.)

- MAP SURVEY CONTROL, GREENLAND-McKENNA ASSOCIATES
- FIGURE 1 PORTSMOUTH FAULT INVESTIGATIONS-SITE TO GERRISH ISLAND, MAINE
- FIGURE 2 PORTSMOUTH FAULT INVESTIGATIONS-GREENLAND TO GERRISH ISLAND, MAINE
- FIGURE 3 COAKLEY SAND PIT, GREENLAND
- FIGURE 4 COOMBS POND AREA, GREENLAND
- ATTACHMENT 1 GROUND MAGNETOMETER SURVEY, GREENLAND
- ATTACHMENT 2 GEOLOGIC BORINGS LOGS

ATTACHMENT 3 - PETROGRAPHIC EXAMINATIONS

ATTACHMENT 4 - RADIOMETRIC AGE DETERMINATIONS

### PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

#### SEABROOK STATION

#### PORTSMOUTH FAULT INVESTIGATIONS

Investigations have been conducted along the general path of the inferred Portsmouth fault between Portsmouth and Hampton, New Hampshire, in an attempt to locate and define the inferred feature, and to examine the nature and structure of unconsolidated Pleistocene deposits which overlie bedrock in the area. (Figure 1)

All investigations have failed to locate or to suggest the existence of the Portsmouth fault. Well-stratified outwash sand deposits of Pleistocene age, as exposed in the walls of a number of gravel pits at scattered localities along the general trend of the inferred fault, show no evidence of tectonic faulting subsequent to their deposition.

Consideration of all available facts leads to the conclusion that the Portsmouth fault does not exist.

#### I. DEFINITION OF THE PORTSMOUTH FAULT

The Portsmouth fault was originally postulated by R. F. Novotny to trend southerly in an arcuate path for a total length of  $12\frac{1}{2}$  miles from Pierce's Island, Portsmouth, to the Taylor River, Hampton, New Hampshire (Novotny; 1963). Novotny's bases for postulating the fault include: 1) brecciated and faulted rocks in the Kittery formation in an exposure on Route 1 By-pass, Portsmouth; 2) brecciated and partly silicified Kittery formation rocks exposed on the southeastern shore of Goat Island, New Castle; 3) brecciated and partly silicified Kittery formation rocks exposed near the east end of Brumley Hill, North Hampton; 4) the presence of granitic intrusives in the Rye formation near the Kittery contact; 5) an apparently unconformable stratigraphic relationship between the Rye and Kittery formations along the trend of their contact zone.

Novotny further interpreted the Portsmouth fault to form the steeply west-dipping contact between the Rye and Kittery formations. Displacement was inferred to be down on the west, suggesting a normal fault. Outcrops were reported to be too few and too poor to attempt calculation of fault displacement.

1

#### II. INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

#### A. Preliminary - General Area

As a preliminary investigation of the Portsmouth fault, J. R. Rand walked portions of the fault trace as it was defined by Novotny, and examined gravel pits and highway road cuts and construction excavations in a strip about 2 miles wide overlapping the postulated trace of the fault from Portsmouth to Hampton. Each specific outcrop cited by Novotny as proof of faulting was also examined. R. J. Holt of Weston Geophysical Research, Inc. and J. R. Rand together viewed by helicopter the inferred trace of the fault between the Seabrook site and Gerrish Island, Maine. J. R. Rand also studied commercial aerial photographs covering the zone from the site to North Hampton, and his own color photographs taken along the path of the zone during the helicopter inspection. Backhoe trenching and ground magnetometer surveys have also been conducted in Greenland, New Hampshire, 8 to 9 miles north of the Seabrook site, in an effort to locate the fault (Point "A" on Figures 1 and 2). Several bedrock samples were taken along the zone for radiometric age dating.

#### B. Detailed - Breakfast Hill Road, Greenland

Just to the northeast of the intersection of the New Hampshire Turnpike and Breakfast Hill Road, Greenland, a wide area of outwash sands, ice-contact gravels and cobble till deposits was excavated for Turnpike construction subsequent to Novotny's field studies in the area (Point "A" on Figures 1 and 2; Figure 3; Figure 4). Within this large area, numerous low, glacially striated surfaces of Rye formation bedrock are now exposed in the floor of the reclaimed borrow area, in contradiction to Novotny's interpretation of Kittery formation terrane in this area. Survey control for investigations was provided by McKenna Associates, Portsmouth (map attached).

#### 1. Coakley Sand Pit

As shown on Figure 3, backhoe trenching in an operating sand pit at the northwest corner of the area exposed additional outcrop of the Rye formation bedrock. Boring PF-1 was drilled on a N50W (True) bearing at an inclination of about 43° to a depth of 276', taking oriented core samples, in a search for a possible Rye/Kittery contact in an apparent folded structure which underlay well-stratified and undisturbed outwash sands exposed in the north wall of the pit. Boring PF-1 encountered only interbedded gneiss, fine-grained schist and thin interbedded quartzites of the Rye formation, and was terminated as it passed to the west of the edge of the sand pit. The structure of the Rye formation in the boring, as indicated by orientation measurements of bedrock foliation, is that of a tight syncline which dips steeply to the west. Five zones of welded breccia were encountered in the boring, the thickest of which included 7.5' of welded quartzite breccia at 249.5' to 257' depths in the hole. The brecciated rock in PF-1 was fresh, compact, thoroughly welded or annealed, and did not show polished or slickensided surfaces on partings.

No mineralization, hydrothermal alteration, shear zones, or other evidence of major faulting was encountered in the boring. The welded brecciation is of the type found frequently in borings in metamorphic rocks in the region, and is interpreted to be associated with strains developed at the time of folding and metamorphism of the region during the Acadian orogeny. Two diabase dikes encountered in the boring were fresh, unaltered, and showed normal intrusive contacts.

#### 2. Loch-Coombs Reclaimed Borrow Area

As shown on Figure 4, three core borings (PF-2, PF-3, PF-3A) were drilled across the property line between lands of Anthony Loch and Richard Coombs, at the north edge of a reclaimed borrow area to the north of Breakfast Hill Road, to investigate the western boundary of a local magnetic anomaly.

#### a. Ground Magnetometer Survey

Because the bedrock exposed throughout the Breakfast Hill study area is represented only by Rye formation metavolcanic rocks for as much as one-half mile to the west of Novotny's fault trace, and comprises no outcrops of Kittery formation quartzites as had been interpreted by Novotny, the presence of a fault contact between these two formations in this area cannot, by definition, exist. Having no formational contact to investigate for these current studies, Weston Geophysical Engineers, Inc. undertook a ground magnetometer survey to determine whether any anomalous magnetic features might occur which could suggest faulting within the Rye formation itself. Technical details of this survey are presented in a report by Weston Geophysical Engineers, Inc., attached herewith.

3

The magnetometer surveys show no anomalous magnetic intensities in the zone of Novotny's fault trace in five profiles which were conducted across the inferred trace at intervals influencing a zone of almost 4,000' along the trace from north to south. In the area of Coombs Pond (Figure 4), a local magnetic anomaly high was detected on 3 survey lines (Lines 6, 2NR and 2R). The apparent alignment of this anomaly is about N10E, parallel to the strike of bedrock foliation in the area. Novotny's inferred fault trace in the same general area strikes about N40E, transverse to foliation.

### b. Borings Investigations

Two borings, PF-2 and PF-3A, were drilled at approximately 40<sup>o</sup> inclination to the southeast to investigate bedrock conditions at the western boundary of the local magnetic anomaly. A third boring, PF-3, was drilled vertically to determine bedrock depth prior to drilling PF-3A. The results of these borings are generalized in cross section on Figure 4, on which also is projected the magnetic profile of Mag. Line 6.

Overburden, which was not specifically sampled in these three borings, is comprised of outwash sands overlying a sandy boulder till. Boring PF-2 was drilled to a depth of 271' (about 201' in bedrock), in light gray banded gneiss and dark green amphibolite, intruded locally by weakly magnetic diabase dikes. PF-3 was drilled to a depth of 50' (10' in bedrock) in gray and greenish gneiss. PF-3A was drilled to a depth of 204.3' (124' in bedrock) in gray banded gneiss, dark green amphibolite and, at the bottom 5' of the boring, notably magnetic, salmonfeldspar gneiss, with a single diabase dike. The location of the basal magnetic gneiss in PF-3A conforms reasonably with the downward projection on the local bedrock structure of the magnetic anomaly found by surface surveys. The weakly magnetic dikes in the borings conform with a slight increase in magnetic intensity found by surface surveys.

The condition of bedrock in PF-2, PF-3 and PF-3A was weakened by weathering effects on moderately closely-spaced jointing to about -70' Elevation. In no boring, however, were there slickensided or polished joint surfaces, gouge zones, hydrothermal alteration or any other visible evidence of bedrock faulting.

#### C. Petrographic Examinations

The petrography of three samples of drill core from Boring PF-2 has been described by Professor Gene Simmons and Dorothy A. Richter of Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Sample	Depth	Field Description	Petrographic Description
PF-2A	99.5 - 99.9'	Gneiss	Felsic Metatuff
PF-2B	136.0 - 136.5'	Diabase	Metabasalt
PF-2C	262.0 - 262.4'	Amphibolite	Fine Grained Amphibolite

Simmons and Richter conclude from their studies that "Evidence for dynamic structural deformation, either recent or ancient, is entirely absent. In summary, we find no petrographic evidence that these three samples are associated with a fault. If a fault does exist in the region from which these samples were obtained, then either its deformation was not so pervasive as to effect these three samples, or else the deformation occurred before metamorphism and all petrographic evidence has been erased by the last metamorphic event".

The full report by Simmons and Richter is attached herewith.

#### III. RESULTS OF INVESTIGATIONS ALONG THE INFERRED FAULT

None of the current investigations along the path of the inferred Portsmouth fault has detected or suggested the presence of a through-going fault structure along the zone of the Rye/Kittery contact between Portsmouth and Hampton. No exposure of Pleistocene deposits seen along this zone has shown internal structures suggestive of tectonic fault displacement.

#### A. Novotny's "Faulted" Outcrop Exposures

1. Route 1 By-pass, Portsmouth (Point "B" on Figures 1 and 2)

Novotny cites a road cut on the north side of the Route 1 By-pass in Portsmouth as suggesting the presence of the Portsmouth fault nearby, but not within, the road cut exposure. This exposure shows two steeply westdipping zones of weathered and rusty rock material interlayered in gneiss and quartzite. In one of these weathered zones, an open drag fold was interpreted by Novotny to represent differential movement, down on the west. This folding could also represent simple folding of the beds, signifying an anticline to the west.

The rock materials within these two weathered zones are not slickensided or mineralized, and the rock adjacent to the weathered zones shows no hydrothermal alteration. Very similar open folding can be seen in an unweathered exposure of quartzitic rock near the Rye/Kittery contact, 3.54 miles S52W of this locality, on the west right-of-way of the New Hampshire Turnpike, where there is no evidence of fracturing. Fold structures of the type seen at the Route 1 By-pass and on the New Hampshire Turnpike right-ofway are most logically explained as simple small-scale drag folding formed during the regional folding of the Rye anticline. The exposure on the Route 1 By-pass is suggestive of faulting only because it is weathered. Rye formation rocks occur on both sides of the weathered zone at the Route 1 exposure.

#### 2. Goat Island, New Castle (Point "C" on Figures 1 and 2)

Bedrock structure on the southeast shore of Goat Island is a complex jumble of brecciated Rye formation metavolcanics and quartzite. The breccia is welded, and is intruded by diabase dikes. No "trend" of faulting is apparent at this locality to suggest a through-going fault plane which might connect this exposure with the exposure cited on the Route 1 By-pass, 2.1 miles to the southwest. The apparently random distribution of metavolcanics and quartzite breccia blocks suggests that fault structure in this area may represent explosion breccia, which Hussey (1962) has also found as discontinuous masses 3 miles to the east on Gerrish Island, Maine. Hussey suggests that the breccia at Gerrish Island may relate to volcanic activity associated with the Cape Neddick and Tatnic volcanic complexes, southwestern Maine.

#### 3. Brumley Hill, North Hampton (Point "F" on Figure 1)

The brecciated quartzite cited by Novotny for the east end of Brumley Hill showed some healed fracturing and rusty staining in a dark, finegrained quartzite. Billings (1956) interpreted this area to lie in a broad fold zone in the Rye formation. No through-going shears were apparent in the exposure to suggest the presence of faulting. The exposure no longer exists, having been removed during construction of a new north-bound lane of the New Hampshire Tunrpike.

#### B. Granite in the Rye Formation

Novotny states (1963; p. 147): "Although metamorphic zones are apparently not displaced because of the fault, the presence of concordant foliated and granulated Breakfast Hill granite only in the Rye formation and near the Kittery formation contact supports the hypothesis of a fault developed during the Acadian period of orogeny, along which deeply buried and intruded portions of the Rye formation were elevated". (Point "D" on Figures 1 and 2) Foliated granite, seen in a number of places in the Rye formation, appears to be a primary metamorphic constituent of that formation, having formed by recrystallization ("granitization") of the inherently feldspathic Rye formation rocks. These granitic masses appear genetically related to a process of metamorphism within the Rye, rather than to plutonic intrusions from a separate deep-seated source. Because of the fundamental lack of feldspar in the Kittery formation, furthermore, no comparable granitization of the Kittery could have occurred at the time the Rye was being recrystallized and granitized.

Whereas the granites of the Rye formation to the east of the Rye/ Kittery contact do not in themselves offer any proof that the Rye has been elevated relative to the Kittery, plutonic intrusives of the Exeter diorite are found in the Kittery formation to the west of the Rye/Kittery contact, tending to negate an hypothesis of fault displacement based on the presence or absence of igneous rocks in the metamorphic terrane. (Point "E" on Figures 1 and 2)

### C. Unconformable Rye/Kittery Stratigraphy

Whereas Novotny interpreted an unconformable stratigraphic relationship between the Rye and Kittery formations in the area between Portsmouth and Hampton, outcrops of the two formations are widely scattered, and the contact between these formations is nowhere exposed along the  $12\frac{1}{2}$  mile path of the inferred Portsmouth fault. On Gerrish Island, Maine, about 5 miles east of Portsmouth, Hussey (1962) interprets the Rye/Kittery contact to be conformable, grading upward through progressively less feldspathic gneisses of the Rye formation into biotite quartzites typical of the Kittery.

Novotny, Hussey and Billings (1956) all define the Rye formation as metavolcanic and the Kittery as metasedimentary, predominantly quartzite. Novotny interprets the contact between these two formations to be defined by a major fault structure, while Hussey and Billings do not. Novotny, furthermore, defines the geographic location of the Rye/Kittery contact as much as three-quarters of a mile to the east of the contact trace defined by Hussey and Billings. Figure 1 shows by a dotted line the contact between the Rye metavolcanic member and the Kittery formation as defined by Billings to the southwest and by Hussey to the northeast. Current investigations have indicated that Novotny's contact trace trends from Portsmouth to North Hampton through a terrane characterized only by bedrock exposures of the Rye formation metavolcanic member. Since the metavolcanic member of the Rye is made up of an original sequence of different types of volcanic rocks and interbedded sedimentary units, unconformable stratigraphic relationships might be expected in the zone where Novotny has defined the Rye/Kittery contact. Such relationships would not, however, signify the presence of a major fault zone. Furthermore, foliation structure symbols shown on Figure 1 (after Novotny and Hussey; and J. R. Rand reconnaissance) indicate a reasonable parallelism of bedrock structure along Novotny's inferred fault trace in this area, with no suggestion of the alledged formational unconformity.

### D. Radiometric Age Dating

Four outcrop samples (PF-S1, -S2, -S3, -S4) were taken at intervals along the path of the inferred fault for radiometric age dating (K-Ar). The locations and K-Ar ages of these samples, along with three other samples taken from Borings B2, B4 and B9 at the site area in 1969, are defined on Figure 1. Age determinations were obtained by Geochron Laboratories, Division of Krueger Enterprises, Inc., Cambridge, Massachusetts.

Sample	Location	Rock Type	Material	<u>K-Ar Age</u>
PF-S1	Towle Road, Hampton	Quartzite	Biotite	268 <u>+</u> 10 M.Y.
PF-S2	Rte. 151, North Hampton	Quartzite	Amphibole	308±14 M.Y.
PF-S3	Rte. 1, Portsmouth	Gneiss	Muscovite	294±10 M.Y.
PF-S4	Rte. 1, Portsmouth	Quartzite	Mica-Quartz	262±11 M.Y.
B2	129.5' - Boring B2	Qtz. Diorite	Biotite	294± 9 M.Y.
B4	93.0' - Boring B4	Schist	Biotite	254 <u>+</u> 9 M.Y.
B9	12.3' - Boring B9	Bio. Diorite	Biotite	284± 9 M.Y.

No anomalously young ages were found in this dating program. All ages found conform to previously reported regional data which indicates a Permian thermal event for the area (Zartman et al, 1970). The lower ages obtained in this investigation (PF-S1, PF-S4 and B4) are mineral dependent, with argon loss associated with the fine-grained materials analyzed.

#### IV. CONCLUSIONS

Field investigations have shown that

1. The graphic trace of the alleged Portsmouth fault bears no meaningful spatial relationship to the contact between the Rye and Kittery formations, along which the fault was postulated by Novotny to trend.

2. There is no evidence of the alleged unconformable relationship between the Rye and Kittery formations.

3. There is no evidence of anomalous magnetic intensities on the inferred fault trace in Greenland, New Hampshire.

4. Examination of drill cores in the area of the alleged fault trace in Greenland, complimented by petrographic studies of core samples, indicate no evidence of faulting in that area.

5. There is no evidence of a through-going fault structure associated with the specific bedrock exposures cited by Novotny as indicating the presence of the Portsmouth fault.

6. There is no justification for ascribing the presence of granitic rocks at ground surface in the Rye formation terrane to the differential uplift of these rocks along a nearby fault.

7. There are no meaningful variations in radiometric ages of rocks along the alleged fault trace.

8. Ground and aerial examinations have failed to detect any anomalous landforms or stream patterns along the trace of the alleged fault.

9. Pleistocene deposits exposed in road cuts and gravel pits along the alleged fault trace show no features which might imply tectonic faulting in the area.

The current investigations have concluded that the Portsmouth fault does not exist.

John R. Rand Consulting Geologist

September 1974

9

#### References:

- Billings, M. P. (1956) <u>The Geology of New Hampshire Part II: Bedrock</u> <u>Geology</u>. Department of Resources and Economic Development; Concord, New Hampshire.
- Hussey, A. J. II (1962) <u>The Geology of Southern York County, Maine</u>. Special Geologic Studies, No. 4, Maine Geological Survey; Augusta, Maine.
- Novotny, R. F. (1963) <u>Bedrock Geology of the Dover-Exeter-Portsmouth Re-</u> gion, New Hampshire. Doctral Thesis, Department of Geology, The Ohio State University; Columbus, Ohio.
- Novotny, R. F. (1969) <u>The Geology of the Seacoast Region, New Hampshire</u>. <u>Ed.</u> T. R. Meyers. Department of Resources and Economic Development; Concord, New Hampshire.
- Zartman, R. E., P. M. Hurley, H. W. Krueger and B. J. Gilletti (1970) <u>A</u> <u>Permian Disturbance of K-Ar Radiometric Ages in New England: Its</u> <u>Occurrence and Cause</u>, Geological Society of America Bulletin, Vol. 81, 3359-3374.

## ATTACHMENT NO. 1

GROUND MAGNETOMETER SURVEY BREAKFAST HILL ROAD AREA GREENLAND, NEW HAMPSHIRE

# WESTON GEOPHYSICAL RESEARCH, INC.

WESTBORO, MASSACHUSETTS

# GROUND MAGNETOMETER SURVEY BREAKFAST HILL ROAD AREA GREENLAND, NEW HAMPSHIRE

#### SUMMARY

This report details a ground magnetometer survey conducted by Weston Geophysical Research, Inc. in the vicinity of Breakfast Hill Road, Greenland, New Hampshire. This study was completed in conjunction with a general geologic investigation of the inferred Portsmouth fault, as proposed by Novotny (1963).

Five separate magnetic lines were run across the trace of the inferred fault. No magnetic evidence for faulting was found on any of the profiles.

#### INSTRUMENTATION

The survey was begun with a vertical field, torsion magnetometer (Askania, Model Gfz), which is tripod mounted and must be leveled prior to each reading. Because this procedure is difficult in soft or swampy ground, which is extensive in the investigation area, the vertical field magnetometer was replaced with a total field, proton precession magnetometer (Geometrics, Model G-816), which requires neither tripod nor leveling. METHOD

The survey method consisted of making total magnetic field intensity measurements at paced intervals along a predetermined line. The interval used varied from 50 to 100 feet. The magnetic sensor was oriented north (magnetic) for each reading, and readings were repeated to insure precision. A base station was established, and base station readings were taken regularly to determine the diurnal variation of the earth's magnetic field during a given portion of the survey. The diurnal variation has been removed from the final profiles. Careful notes were taken during the survey so that the presence of magnetic interference sources (i. e., power lines, buried metal, houses, parked vehicles, etc.) could be considered in the final analysis.

RESULTS

Total field intensity magnetic profiles were made from data for five traverses in the area of investigation. As shown in Figure Ala, Profiles 2R, 2NR and 6 are located at distances extending up to approximately 2,500 feet northeast of Breakfast Hill Road, near Coombs Pond. Profiles 4 and 5 are located at distances extending up to approximately 1,500 feet southwest of Breakfast Hill Road. All five magnetic profiles crossed Novotny's inferred fault trace at nearly perpendicular angles. Any magnetic expression of Novotny's inferred fault (within the Rye formation) should, therefore, have been readily apparent.

-2-

Figure Ala locates the inferred fault trace relative to magnetic profiles reported in Figure Alb at or near the following profile points: 3+0 on Line 6, 1+5 on Line 2NR, 16+0 on Line 2R, 15+0 on Line 4, and 13+0 on Line 5.

No evidence of the postulated fault was found. Further examination of the profiles indicates that localized anomalies, probably due to local variations in magnetic mineral concentrations known to be present in the Rye formation, appear on each of the traverses near Coombs Pond. Profiles 6, 2NR and 2R show such an anomalous condition, which appears to trend N10E in the vicinity of the three lines. It should be noted that this strike is parallel to the bedrock foliation of the area.

-3-



AREA LOCATION FIGURE Ala

# ATTACHMENT NO. 2

# GEOLOGIC BORINGS LOGS

## BORINGS PF-1, PF-2, PF-3, PF-3A

<b>_</b>	ORING	LOCAT	'ION	See Br	eakfast	Hill Rd. site p	an INCLINA	TION	48.5	BEAR	DNG <u>N 50 W</u>	DATE START/FINIS	H <u>Feb</u>	<u>19, 1974</u>	/March 21, 1974
•	ASING	10 <u> </u>	3 in.			CORE SIZE 2	-1/8 to 1-7/8	<u>i</u> n.	TOTAL DEP	тн	276.0	T DRILLED BY Ame	rican Dril	lling & Boris	ng Co.; K. Allen
<u> </u>	ROUN	DEL (M	8L)	<u>79.1</u> (	WAT	DEPTH TO WA	TER/DATE		13.7 ft /		-	LOGGED BY Soil	- K. Polk	Rock - J.	R. Rand
EL. MSI	Dept	Type	E N	RATE OF	CÖNT	ENT OF ROD	Compu	EST ited	F = Foliation J = Joint	RE	(Weathe	SOIL AND ROO ring, defects, etc.}	CK DESCR	IPTIONS (Type, t	exture, mineralogy,
n	n	and No.	or Rec.	ADV. min/ft	9	Graphic	<u>kpm</u> ⊫psil 10 <sup>−1</sup> k	/sec	C = Contact B = Bedding	SB				color	r, hardness, etc.)
79.3	E0.5	NX-1	100	4.0					S = Slickenside	ETE	Minor rusty	Email and houd I opei	]1	Drag folds -	senac of
	E	NX-2	100	4.7	21	$\forall \mathcal{H}$	TOP		UP ROCK		Slight wx on follation and	minor rusty and surface		novement w he cast - sy	est side up to noline to west
1		NX-3	190	6,4	25	44					inints	some partings. Partings	, تبد	Welded	Rye formation. Fine to
ł	<b>F</b> <sup>10</sup>	NX-4	100	4.1	74	-A					Slight wx D	nn slickensmed.		veccia Welded	ium dark gray. Thinly
[	F	NX-5	100	6.8	50	ΙZД					Minor rust Slight wx			liabase	volcanic. Fine feldspathic
	E.	NX-6	100	9,0	56					Ē	Moderate wx	Fresh and hard, Minor		Gneiss	fractures weided with
	Ē	N.V7	100	5.0	84	4						rusty, vuggy zones as- sociated with inints and		Ineige	caicite.
	Ē	NX-8	100	2.7	35	EZZ					Moderate wx	partings not slickensided			
	<b>F</b> 30	NX-9	100	5.1	62						ם D			Inciss	Fine-very fine feldspathic
	E		06								Minor rusty			Gneiss	quartzite with interbeds of light gray feldspathic
1	Ē	NX-11	100	5.5	12	TH.					Slight wx	Fresh and hard. Local	5.0	Snetss Dealers	gnelss. Medium-grained
	E.	NX-12	100	5.0	0						Minor rusty	zones of slight to moder- ate wx on joint surfaces.	<u></u>	0.5' Diabas	ransitional contact
	Ē	NX-13	100	15 5	43 42	HA					Moderate wx	Not alickensided.		Quartzite sy	mse of drag folds suggests
	Ê.60	NX-15	96	13.1	22	$\nabla 77\lambda$					95° joint			Quartzite Quartzite	evenly laminated feld-
1	Ē	NX-16	100	7.3	64						(iii) joinit	Fresh and hard. Joints and partings are clean,		Quartzite Medium	spathic quartzite. Dis- crete fairly pure quartzite
	F	NX-17	94	6.8	70	$\nabla$					Calcita	not slickensided. Hard, dense.		rained	Ryc formation, Predomi-
	<b>E</b> 60	NX-18	100	7.9	95	4					coating			inciss	nantly fine-grained, dark grav hornfelsic schist.
	ŧ	NX-19	100	10.0	100						D		<u></u>	Quartz- leidspar	Very dense texture. Inter- layered with zones of
	E70	N X-20	100	6.0	100							Fresh and hard, Joints		zneiss	quartzose. Feldspathic - gneiss, medium to coarse-
	Ē	NX-21	100	11.2	92					Ē		and partings are clean except in narrow rusty-		Garnets (?) Dark fine	contacts are tight, fused.
	Ē	NX-22	100	12.8	88	ע ו				ĒŔ		stained zone at 80.5- 80.8'. Not slickensided.		ieldspathic hornfels	Somewhat transitional.
	E-80	H									Moderate wx Rusty stain			)ua rtzite	Interlayered fine-grained feldspathic gneiss. Light
	ŧ	NX-23	97	18.4	73	H H			N37E, 74NW F					Gneiss	gray, and fine-grained, dark gray hornfelsic
+20	F	XNX-24	100	8.0	65				N45W 42NE J N33E, 285E J			Freeh and hard Some	····	Walded	schiat.
1	Ē**	NX-25	100	6.6	83	T			N50W, 4NE J N75E, 8NW J	F		this calcite coatings on		micro-fault	Sense of some open drag
	Ē					h h			N33W, 18NE J	E		ings not slickensided.			syncline is to the west.
	E.	x NX-26	96	17.4	86	L.			Nazz, ISNW F	ĒĒ				Fold sense Syncline to	by welded micro faults.
	Ē	NX-27	100	7.2	73				N45E, ASE J		Vuggy			west Micro fault-	
	Ē	NX-28	100	5.6	95				NADE, 32SE J	E		Fresh and hard through-		welded	Bye formation. Predomi
	E-110					Ŕ						are generally clean. Not		Quartzite	gray (homicisic) felds-
	Ē	NX-29	100	7.4	93				N 6W, 10NE J	ĒĦ	D	wx. Surfaces are not slickensided.		Quartzite	Almost massive texture.
•	ŧ	× NX-30	100	24.4	75	4			N48E; 875E J					Lime silicate	shown with fairly pure
	<b>E</b> <sup>120</sup>	NX-31	99	5.6	92	K			N20E, 62NW F					Quartzite	white quartizite book.
	Ē	NX-32	97	4.0	95	P		ĺ	N1004 88614 1	ŧ	Minor chlarit	Fresh and hard through- out. Joints and partings		Quartzite	
	L 30					H			N41W, GONE S NGGE, G3NW F		Pyrite coated	are clean. Not slicken- sided. Has only very	22		Fairly evenly, thinly
l		NX-33	300	6.2	90				N66E, 74NW F			minor tendency to part			although laminae locally
1	E	NX-34	100	5.6	100				N33E, 69NW		D		53	Welderl	folding.
	È140	NX-15	100	12.8	58				N47E, 35SE J		On foliation			hreccia	· · · · · ·
	Ē	<u> </u>				¥7.		$\dashv$			Minor vuggy			· ·	
-20	ŧ		L				<u> </u>			Ē	L				
	N - Rec -	Standard Longth r	l penet recove	ration ( red/lea,	resista: gth cor	nce, blows/ft ed, 7	!   !	NOTES	s clays present: U	ho refe	ore no water	SEAR	BROC	K SI	TATION
e	190 - 5 -	Longth o Split spo	if soun	d core · nple	ila.a ¥	nd longer/lengt Groundwater	h cored, 7	CON	ients were deter	TN İNC	d.	YANKI	E ATOM	C ELECTRE	C COMPANY
	J -	Undistur S-Shoi	thed as	umpies o N	- Deni	enn						é	<b>United</b>	angineers	
		F - Fixe	d pist	on P C	- Pito	her						Date: May 14 1974			Project 7284
	р - мх -	Drilling Weather	break ed, w	atherin	 k	Coefficient of permeability		x	- Oriented core			PAGE	2	LOG OF	BORING

-

「 <sup>1</sup>	BORING	LOCAT	NON	See Bri	eaklast	Hill_Bd. site	plan INC	LINATIO	N <u>48.5</u> °	BEAF	RING <u>N 50 W</u>	DATE START/FINIS	f Feb. 19, 197	4 / March 21, 1974
	ROIN	•••	3 in.	74 1 4		CORE SIZE	2-1/8 to 1	<u>-7/9 in</u> .	TOTAL DE	ртн ,	<u>276.0 h</u>	DRILLED BY Amer	ican Drilling & Re	T. B. Beed
TL		SAMPL	E	RATE	CONT	ER or RQD	PRESSU	RE TEST	STRIKE, DIP	٢	3	SQIL AND ROC	K DESCRIPTIONS	<u> </u>
MSI	Dept	Type	N OT	OF ADV.	0011		gom	omputed k	J = Joint C = Contact	CORE	Weathe:	ring, defects, etc.)	(Typ c	e, texture, mineralogy, olor, hardness, etc.)
<u>n</u>	<u></u>	No.	Rec.	min/ft	<b>%</b>	Graphic	pel 10	cm/sec	B = Bedding S = Slickenside		CONTINUE	D FROM PREVIOUS PAGE		
	È.									E				
-20	E	NQ-3A	100	9.2	100					Ē	Mislatch D	Fresh and hard. Some		
	-150	NQ-37	100	4.8	89	7			NR2W, 42SW J	E		on some joints and part- ings. No polishing	Gnelas	Predominantly quartzite. Very fine-grained, medium
	ŧ	NO-18	1.00	5.0	47	7			N32E. 62SE J				- AA	gray. Fairly massive. Local interbeds of felds-
	L 60				•••				N18E, 60SE J N45W, 10NE J		D D		Calcitic	pathic gneiss. Fused fault - piane at 155.3'.
		MØ-29	100	0.2	100				NIBW 21NF .T	Ē		Fresh and hard. Joints and partings show only		Ryc formation. Fine-grained
	Ē	NQ-40	96	5.4	96	_			N65W, 61SW J			local minor wx effects. Partings are not polished		zite. Fairly evenly, but
	<b>1</b> 70	NQ-41	98	6.A	71				N40E, 61SE J		Minor rusty			
	È	NQ-42	100	5.6	95				N35E, 165E J	È				
-40	-		100			77			N88E; 345E J			Fresh and hard. Joints	Gneiss	Ryc formation, as above
	Ē		100	4.0	50						n D	and partings show only local minor wx effects.		with local zones of felda- pathized quartzite and feld-
	Ē	-	9.1	9.8	93							Not slickensided or polished.	X X XY X X XY Medium	spathic gneiss.
	F190	NQ-45	100	6.0	58	- //			N62E, 60NW J				Diabase	1
	Ē	NQ-46	92	7.8	0	////			N73W, 355W J N82W, 595W J		Chips-slight		N A ALA	Velded breecia at contact
	200	NQ-47	100	18.0	52						wx effects	Fresh and hard, Excell- ent drilling. Partings in	++++ 199.8 F	Dishage Medium-serviced
	Ę	NQ-48	100	6.6	100					Ē		diabase break across core. Not jointed. Not	+ = +	dark gray with white pheno-
-60	L	NQ-49	100	3.6	100							wx of slickensided.	+++	calcitic.
		{ .		l							<b>C</b> 1/=b4		+++	Diabase, as abovc.
	Ē	NQ-50	100	4.2	100					ξĻ	Slight wx		+++   ++++   ++++	used contact
	220	NQ-51	100	6.6	65						5	Fresh and hard. Only minor surface we effects	× 5 ×	Ryc formation. Fine-
	È	NQ-52	100	8.0	100					Ē	U D	Not slickensided.	1.1.1	grained, medium in dark gray. Feldspathic, evenly
	E	NQ-53	100	14.6	100				N15E, 855E F N80E, 115E S		D			ionaled throughout.
	Ē					777			NGRW, 655W J		Pyrite stals			
-80	Ęł	NQ-54	100	5.0	40				N 5E, 86SE F	Ē	Slight wx	Fresh and hard. Only		Ryc formation. Fine-
	E e e e		100		30				MIEL ATER F	ĒĦ	Pyrite	minor surface wx effects on joints and partings.		grained, dark gray. Evenly- foliated feldspathic quartzite
	Ē	NQ-56	98	5.0	97				N31E, 70SE S N30W, 15NE S		Slight wx	Not allokensided.		Quartzite, Fine, medium gray.
	250	NQ-57	100	7.0	45				N24E, 385E S		Not wx		م م م 249, 5' <del>-</del>	used contact Welded breccia, Quartzite
	E	NQ-58	100	6.0	33				N20E, 758E J	1111	Vuggy			fragments, angular with some veining. Annealed rock
	E	NQ-59	100	6.6	43				N13E, Horiz, F			Fresh and hard. Only	Quartzite	throughout, Rye formation. Predomi-
	-260								N75W, 5NE J	E	Chips-alight	munor surface wx difects.		nantly fine-grained, dark gray feldspathic quartzite.
	Ĵ₽	GNQ-60	100	6.0	3.1	ľ ľ { / ,			N25E, Vort F N10E, 75SE F	E	surface wx		Disbase	
-100	E270	NQ-61	100	6.0	58				N42W, 50NE S	E	1		Dinbase,	
	Ē	NQ-62	100	6.8	100					ĒĒ	1			
							в	OTTOM	OF BORING	Ê				
	Ē									Ē				
	Ē									Ē	-			
T	<u> </u>	Standard	peace	Tation	resista	nce, blows/ft		NOT		<u>rı</u>	<u> </u>	SEAE	ROOK	STATION
	RQD - S	Length ( Solit sor	Source hours	nd core mple	4 in. ± ⊻	nd longer/ien; Groundwater	th cored,	3				PUBLIC SER	VICE COMPANY	OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
CEN	U - 1	Undista	bed a	Imples		1							united engine	
비		o - 566) F - Fixi O - O=**	ad pist arber=	e N on P	- Den - Pitc	ier her						Date: Mary 14 107	a possimply of Reconstruction	Ibusiest fried
	D -	Drilling	break	estheru	k -	Coefficient of	,	1				PAGE 2 of	2 1.00	OF BORING PF 1

ORDINECHNICAL ENGINEERS INC

В	ORING	LOCA	TION	Break Green	land, N	l Road ew Hampsbird		NCLINATION	40 *	BEA	NDIG SOE	DATE START/FINIS	H July	y 9, 1974 / July 24,
С	ASING	₽_	<u>3 in</u> .			CORE SIZE	2-1/8	<u>in,</u>	TOTAL DE	ертн	ft	DRILLED BY Amer	ican Dril	ling & Boring Co.; K. Alle
G	ROUNI	EL ()	45L) _	62. N	tt WAT	DEPTH TO V	ATER-	DATE	-2.1 ft	<u>/1</u>	d <u>v 19, 1974</u>	LOGGED BY <u>soll</u>	к. г., р	Polk; Boek - J. R. Band
EL. MSL	Dept	SAMPE	E N	RATE OF	CONT	ENT OF RUD	PRES	SURE TEST Computed	F * Folintion	E E	2 (Weather	SOIL AND ROC	CK DESCR	RIPTIONS (Type, texture, miner
ft	ft	and No.	or Rec.	ADV. min/fi	3	Graphic	gpm. pai	k 10 <sup>-1</sup> cm/sec	C = Contact B = Berkling	Ξ.				color, hardness, e
·62.0	, F	T	1	<u> </u>			<u></u>		S = Slickensi		1			
÷	Ē									Ē				
	Ē	1					1			Ę				
+50	Ē10									Ē				
	E			1.						E				
	ŧ		[							Ē				
	E 20									Ē				
	Ē									Ē				
	ŧ									Ē				
	E-30	1		1						E				
- 40	E									ΕÌ				
	Ē									ξÌ				
	Ē۳									FI				
	É									El				
	ŧ									E				
•10	F-30									El				
•••	Ę		}							E				
	ŧ									È			23	
n	Enn									E			~ ~	
.,	É 65 -	<u> </u>				L		TOP OF	ROCK	E	L			
	ŧĨ	NX-1	30	2.7	30	VT,				ŧT	Sand scam Moderate wx	Subject to slight we throughout and parts	2.5	Diabase and gnetss b
	F-70	NY-1	91	3.0	0	111	1			F	Silght to	readily on foliation,	C. 2 C.	70' Top of rock ('')
	EÌ		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		.	++++	1			E	(hroughou)	by disks 1/2" to 2" in		Drag tumgray, Line-
	E	NX-3	96	a, 0	^	$\forall + / ,$				El	Minor yuggy	length. Minor ian rusiv siaining on		thinly laminated. base inclusion at
	F-0				.	$\left[ / \right] /$				F	Slight wor	joints. Not slicken-		so, 3 <sup>1</sup> Contact broken. Not Diabase   Inc. dar
-20	ŧI	XX-4	100	3.0	"	V / / /				.Eŀ	Voggv Moderate wx	and a second point difference		1.5 Contact broken. Not
	E	1				V//			ſ	F	Slight wx	subject to alight up		Quartz Quartz
	Enol	NX-5	100	5.7	R	///				FI	isma11	throughout on foliation		Gneiss, Banded
	ŧ		1			<i>     </i>			23	Έŀ	pervasive vogs	vasive small vogs.		grav, line to ve
	ΕĪ	1				V/				Fl	Throughout	Parts on foliation at $1/2$ " to 1" intervals.		grained, feldspa- quarizitie or che
	Eind	NX-6	300	3.4	32				1:	E	Core contains			Definitely not Kit
- 40	EL	1				$  V \perp$			I.	E	numerous small vugs	l .		acid volcanics.
	ŧ [			ļ		$ V/\rangle$				F	Fresh pyrite	Fresh internally, but		
	E, 10	NX-7	98	1.0	31	//				El.	A(#)5	<ul> <li>subject to vug develop</li> <li>ment (broughout, (Max</li> </ul>	1 · ·	<b>N</b>
	E	$\mathbf{I}$				<del>~ { /</del>				E		be wx calcite") Joint		at 110,51.
	E	XX-4	100	3,9	63					E	Severe wx Voggy	slickensided or pol-		
	E120	NX-9	100	4.*	52	1/-/-				F	Durite Loidote	Fresh and bred to be		19, 7 Broken contact. Not
-60	El	NN-1	100	5.7	40	[//				E	Minor vuggy	niner local solution	1+	Diabase, Eine-r grained, dark gr
	Εİ	1				1711				Έŀ	Epidate	effects, Closely jointed, Joints are		Diabase, Mediu
	E-1.3 M	SX-1	1 9*	5.3	9	$\parallel / / /$				ξ.		not stickensided or pullshed		dars grav, Mas local porphyritic
	Eł	1	1			14++				E	all de	1		Small phenocryst
	£	NN-12	2 97	5.1	30	//				F	SU204 wx			PE-211 Becomes finer-g
	tinst	<u> </u>	+	+						╞╀	Chips		<u></u>	
	Ē									Ę1				
					ļ									
N	<u>۲</u>	l itandar	d pene	tration	l resista	nce, blows ft	<b>I</b>	NOTE	s		L	SEAF	BROC	OK STATIO
R	ec - 1 QD - 1	angth Angth	recove of sour	red: ler nd core	igth cor 4 in <u>.</u> a	ed, 7 nd Jonger∠len	gth com	а, 5				DUBLIC SER	NICE CO	MPANY OF NEW HAMPS
s S v	- 2	ipilit sp Indistu	oon au rhed a	mpie amples	¥	Groundwater						YANKE	E ATOM	C ELECTRIC COMPANY
		5 - She	iby tub	n h	i - Deni	lens						6	r united	
		F - Fix 1 - Clar	ed pist erber#	ion J t c	) - Pite 5 - GEI	her						Date to the	1077	ı
n	. 1	Filling	t hreak		k	Coefficient of						vigust 15,		, 
1-	× 1	Vesthe	red, w	eatheri	ng	permenbilit	<b>,</b>					PAGEOf _	2	LOG OF BORING F

Ф ситтететельственных сменения см

Breakfast Hill Road BORING LOCATION Greenland, New Hampahire INCLINATION 40* BEARING SSOE DATE START/FINISH July 9, 1974 / July 24, 1974													/July 24, 1974								
с	ASING	D	<u>3 In</u>			CORE SIZE	2-1/	<u>A in.</u>	TOTAL DE	TOTAL DEPTH			<u>1</u>	DRILLED BY American Drilling & Boring Co.: K. Allen							
G	ROUNE	EL (M	<u>د ا</u>	<u>62 0 1</u>	!	DEPTH TO W	ATER	DATE	2.1 <u>ft</u>	′ <u> </u>	Ju	Jy 19, 1974	-	LOGGED BY Soll	<u>к,</u> Г.	Polk; Hock - J.	R. Rand				
EL	SAMPLE RATE WATER OF RQD							R or RQD PRESSURE TEST			STRIKE, DIP				SOIL AND ROCK DESCRIPTIONS						
MSL	Depth	Type and	N or	ADV.			<u>opm</u>	Computed k	J = Joint C = Contact	COR	REA	(Weather	ring.	, defects, etc.)		(Type, ter color,	tture, mineralogy, hardness, etc.)				
n	101 10 100 printing of Chapter par 10 "Cm/sec] p = Decking											CON	IT IN	UED FROM PREVIOU	IS PAGE						
	Ē									E	1										
	Ē									Ē							-				
	EBRS	NY -17	90	4.9		TTT				Et	t	Chips	SIG	chilv wx throughout.		About 13	9.5' contact broken				
	Ē	NX-14	93	4.4	0	1//				E		Chips	No	t allekensiden.			Choice foldensible				
	Ē	NY-15	100	5.0	31					El	H	Vuggv	Ger	nerally fresh		Quartzitle	localiv guartzitic.				
	-150	1.2-1.	••••			Y/A				FI		Deilling	Inte	ernany.			irregular gneissosite.				
	Εt	1				1//				E		heller	Sor dev	ne local minor vug velopment, Joints		Quarizitic	Locally schistose.				
	Ē	NX-16	100	6.4	41					E	H Y	12:55	and slid	i pariings are not ckensided,							
	E160	NX-17	62	7.5	28			]		E	1	Chips	Fai	inly fresh internally.	<b>-</b> -	Quartzose	Becomes darker grav,				
	È	{				4/				Ę			Sor dev	ne minor local vug velopment. Noi			Foliated schist,				
	Ē	NX-18	98	7.5	51					El			sÜ	ckensided.	:						
	E <sup>170</sup>	ł				++			20	E		Chips Vuggy	Fat	irly fresh internally, ne minor yugoy ter-	'≃ '-	Drag Folds	Schist, gneisste- feldspathte as above.				
	E	NX - 19	34	6.0	12					F		Striated joint	tur	es, and powderv we		Approximately	177.5' presume wx				
	E.					4//				E	1	Rods dropped	par	rtings. Joints are		- confluence - Int	Diabase, Dark grav,				
	E	NX-20	100	3.6	24	444				E		Pyrtie State wa	по	pousned.	++++		medium grained,				
	Ē									E	ł	Slight wx Slight wx					(Chill) at top and bottom. Not calcilic.				
	L 190	NX-21	99	2.6	13	///	1.		20	·El		Chlorite Sleep joint				in follation.	contact. Dips parattel				
		NX -22	100	9.0	n	777	1			E	5	Rough surface Vuggy					Metaquartzite to meta- silt, feldspathic, fine-				
l	Ē	l				(///				÷ξ{	1	Chips Minor vuggv	Qui Sor	ite fresh internally, me minor local vug	~	{	grained, cherty, medium, gray, locally greissic,				
	E-201	NX -23	100	8.5	n	////				F	Ľ		lex	tures. Minor sur-	~ ~		Banded texture of fine-				
	E	1				V//	1			E		Minor warry	Jol	nts not pollshed or		Drag Folds	feldspathic quarizite				
Į	E	NX - 21	100	5.0	32				30	Ê		Chips	\$11	ckensided.			fine grained cherty rock				
	F217	1					1		2 0	Ē		Vuggy Chlorite	Fr	esh and hard. Some		Drag Folds	even to slightly wary.				
	E	NX -25	100	2.0	46		t			ξĮ	i. L		mi me	nor local vig develop nt. Minor surface			liecomes somewhat schistose, greenish				
	E	NX-20	100	2.6	32	$  \nabla T$	1		ts	Æ			wx No	effects on joints. polishing or	~		tinge (lime silteates?)				
	E 221	1					ł			Ē		Slight wx	slá	ckensides on joints.		221.9 ('ontact	broken. Not slickensided				
{	Ē	NX -27	-95	2.1	65		1			E	N				بر این سهرین ا	Chiti	medium grained, dark				
	E	1				K,				E	H		Fn	osh and hard: drills	'+ + 1  + + 1		grav, scattered pheno-				
	E <sup>230</sup>									El			vei	ry well. Only minor	+++		Diabase, calcitie, medium grained, dark				
	F	NX -2*	100	2.0	77	V	]			El			jot	nts. No evidence of	+++	сын	gray, massive with oc-				
	Eart	1				[4				E	H		mo E're	esh and hard: drills		239, 9 Fused c	ontact. Dips ± 58*				
l	Ē	NX - 29		2.5			l			E			we Do	11. Only very minor edery surface wa		r einspathic	grav, somewhat felds-				
	E	NV	100	4 9	<b></b> 1	1 Y				E	ŀ		eff	ects on some joints	1927	245,5	Gradational fused con-				
	E250						1			FI	1		sti	ckensided,		1	fine grained, dark green				
	E	1								E	í					Feldspathic	color. Light green hairline laminate are				
	Ē	NX-31	98	6,9	<u>00</u>		1			E					-		very bregular in tex-				
	-260	]							15	E	1		Fre	esh and hard; drills II - Not altal an ideal			veining, Hard rock,				
	Ē	]								E	3		on.	joints,		PF-2C Quartzite	Local zones of fine				
	ξļ	NN -01	100	4.7	43					E	1						grav quarizite,				
	E-270			$\vdash$		<i> </i>		BOTTOM	GE BORING	宇	4		<u> </u>			<u> </u>					
	E							10.71 (1701		E											
	<u> </u>									E											
1		- Standard penetration resistance, blows/ft NOTES												SEABROOK STATION							
	ac - Length of sound core 4 in. and longer/length cored, 7												PUBLIC SEI	AVICE C	OMPANY OF N	EW HAMPSHIRE					
	; - : ) - (	- Spilt spoon sample 🚽 Groundwater - Undisturbed samples																			
S - Shelby tube N - Denison										a an <b>agu saith di t</b> a an faonair tarana											
	rized pision I - Filcher O - Osterberg G - GEI												Date: August 15, 1974 Project 7284								
	נ- כ י- איי	)rilling Vesthei	bresk ed, w	atheri	ik − Ng	Coefficient of permeabilit	r Y							PAGEof	2	LOGOFI	BORING				

BC	RING	LOCAT		Bresk Groen	fast iii I <u>anci, I</u>	il liond New Hampshir	<u> </u>	INCLINATIO	Vertical	HE7	ARI	ING	_	DAFE START/FIN	SH July	29, 1974		71
c,	SING	n	<u>3 in</u>	۰		CORESIZE	2-1/	<sup>/8</sup> in.	TOTAL	DEPTI	' _	50,0	<u>fi</u>	DRILLED BY Am	<u>erican Dri</u>	lling & Boring	Co. K. Allen	
G	OUNE	EL (M	ISL)	•61.8	<u>)</u>	DEPTH TO W	ATER	DATE	-2.4		hilv	c 29, 1974		LOGGED BY Soll	- K. L. P	nik; koek	I. R. Rand	
е <b>l.</b> 182 11	Depth It	Type and No.	E N Or Rec.	RATE OF ADV. min/ft	CONT	Graphic	PRES gpm pai	SURE TEST Computed 10 <sup>-4</sup> cm/sec	F = Folia J = Joint C = Conta B = Beddi	tion we act OU ing	BREAKS	(Weathd	ering	SOIL AND RC z. defectm, etc.)	OCK DESCI	NPTIONS (Type, to color	exture, mineraloj , hardness, etc. 1	κγ. }
61.8 <u>V</u>	F	1)	<u> </u>		·9				<u>s - stick</u>	enside E	Π						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
-	E.									-								
	E 	1								Ē								
	Ē									Ę								
	Ē					}				Ę								
40.	20									Ē								
	Ē									Ē								
	E 30									i i								
	Ē									Ē								
	Ē	1				ĺ				Ē								
20		NY-1		1.0	30	1777		TOP	OF ROCK	67 <b>•</b>	Į.	Rusty	Fair	dy fresh internally,	Xar		aciss, medium l	ight
	Ęŀ					///				Ē		Slight wx Minor rust	Join min	ts and partings have or rust and powder	1	Contact Broken (	aedium coarse gr inciss or quartzil	nine
	E	NX-2	100	1,1	0	<u> ///</u>				70*		Slight wx	W.X. C	ffects.			nedium dark gree rained	'n, I
								BOTTOM	OF BORIN	G E			Note	· Joints and parting	*	Ņ	iot magnetic.	
	Ē									Ē			polis	shed,				
	Ē									1								
	Ē		1	1						Ē								
	Ē	ļ								Ē								
	Ē																	
	Ę																	
	È,					ł				L L								
	É		]							Ē								
	Ē							-	:	-								
	E																	
	Ē																	
ţ.	E.																	
ſ										Ē								
	Ē																	
	E									111								
	Ē									E								
	Ē									Ē								
	Ē									Ē								
	Ē									Ē								
	Ē									Ē								
	Ē									Ē								
	<u>-</u>																	
	E.									$\left  \right $								
	<u> </u>									E							<del> </del>	
N	- >	itandar	i penel	ration	resista arth cor	nce, blows fl		NOTE	S			10. č 5		SEA	BROG	ok st	ATION	
R	οp - 1	length o	of sour	nd core tuple	4 in. n ⊻	ind longer-len Groundwater	gth core	ы <b>,</b> П	samples (5)	ougn soù ken,	1.0	- prn, 30		PUBLIC SI Yani	ERVICE CO NEE ATOM	MPANY OF 2 IC ELECTRU	NEW HAMPSHIRE	
š v	- i	Indiatu	rhed si	amplus	*								1	Ľ	<b>T</b> united	engineers.	frimet valimet m	
1	1	s - She' F - Fixe	ed pist	e N On P	- Den - Pitc	iern her							·		• • • • •		<b>.</b> .	
0	- 1	o - cau Drilling	eroerg hreak	(	- 665 k -	Coefficient of	ſ							Date: August 11,	974		Proje	et
<b>u</b> 7	r - ۱	Acather	red, we	eatheri	١g	permenhilit	v	1						- PAGE0		I LOG OF	BOHING <u>PF-</u>	з.

GRATECIERAL ENGINEERS IN

c.	ASING	m	<u>3 in,</u>			CORE SIZE	2-1/	' <sup>e</sup> in.	TOTAL DE	ртн	204.30	DRILLED BY Am	erican Di	rilling and B	oring Co.: K. Allen
C	ROUNE	) EL (N	ISL)	+61,8	<u>tı</u>	DEPTH TO W	VATER	DATE	<u>-2.5</u> ft	/lu1	y 30, 1974	LOGGED BY Sol	- K. L.	Polk; Rock	J. R. Rand
EL		SAMPI	.E	RATE	WAT	ER or RQD	PRES	SURE TEST	STRIKE, DIP		3	SOIL AND RO	CK DESC	RIPTIONS	
MSL	Depth	Type	N OF	OF ADV.			gpfh	Computed	J = Joint C = Contact	ORE	(Weathe	ring, defects, etc.)		(Type,	texture, mineralogy,
ft.	ft	No.	Rec.	min/ft	7	Graphic	ps i	10 cm/sec	B = Bedding						
₫. ₽	Ē	1)	Γ	Τ				I		ΪŦ	1				······································
-	Ē									Ę.					
	ŧ.,									EL					
	Ē									ξÌ					
	Ē									Ē	i i				
	E 20	1								E.					
40	Ē									El					
	Ē									El					
	È 30									È					
	Ē	ł								E					
	Ē									E					
20	E 40		1							E					
	ŧ									E					
	E sn									E					
	Ē	l	1							E					
	Ē									Ē					
	F 60									F					
n	È									E					
	Ē									È			200	]	
	F 70									E					
	ŧ									E					
	Ē.							тор	OF ROCK	E		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	L		
2 n	ŧ "F	NX-1 NN-2	99 80	2)	11 10	$\forall / /$				E	Slight wx	Generally fresh Internally, Subject		Diabase	
	ĘĹ	NN-3	69		0	7//					Chips	to slight we on closely-spaced rotats.		Pegmatite	Gneiss, quartzitic. Somewhat mottled hi
	E.	NN-5 NX-6	100		n n	I/I				E	Moderale wx	Joints and partings are not slickensided		Diabase	to medium grav, the grained rock toes
	ŧΓ		100	1	26	//				E	Chips	or pollshed. Care breaks at close		thark grav	greenish tinge dime silicates)
			1			4/-/-				E	slightly	intervals.		quartzite	Gnuiss trid authio
40	Eim	*X -*	48		31	Y//				L Han	vuggv	Generally tresh. Slight powdory as	1.2.	1	Decally baseded. Be
	ŧE	NX-9 NX-10	100		0	$H_{I}$				E	Slight we	effects on joints and		106" Fused	at base. contact. Chill zone
	ξſ	28-11	100	5.6	26	//				E	Slight wx	sides or polished joint:			Diabase, dark grav, to medium grained,
	Eiid					rK∕∕∕				E		Fresh, with slight wy	+++	!	Phenoervsts wx, vu rock is not calcific.
	ŧ	NX-1	100	4.3	16					E	Slight wx Chiorite	effects locally on joints, Some small	-++		Rock Is magnetic,
	£,,,[	NX-1	100	1.2	63					E	Slight wa	vugs in dlabase where phenocrysts dissolved,		<u>110, 3' Fuse</u>	d contact. Chill zone Diabase (Cabbro?),
60	Ē									E	Stigm wx	Not slickensided or polished,			Dark grav, medium coarse grained, mot
	Ē	ł								E.	Voggy	-			texture. Magnetic, calcitte,
	Ent	NX-1 NX-1	100	3,0	20 0	<u>⊨≁</u> ,⊬_≠				E	Chips Voggy	Fresh and burd inter- nally, Purts easily on	1 ±±1	128.71.11use	ul contact Chill zong Quartzitte gneiss, Il
	╞╞	NX 10 NX 11	100	5,5	n n	$\neq \neq \neq$				ŧĽ	Chips to 1351	toliation, making for 'O' RQD. Partines and		Thin	banded, greenish tir Ceale-silicate rock
	El	NX-19	100	9,0	0					F	Slight wx Vuggy	points are not slicken-		huartz banding	Fine-grained, Band normal to hole 50 <sup>6</sup>
7 <b>0.</b> ×	End			┼		<u>× 1 - 1 - 4</u>				Ē	<u> </u>		<u>1.85 - 1</u>	<u> </u>	to N57W. Locally so
	F									È					what yuggy.
	<u>F</u>					L				F					
N	- S	tandar	d pene	tration	res ista	nce, blows/ft red. 7		NO FES	a shed through s	io[] 0-	-40 fl, no	SEAI	BROG	OK S	TATIO N
R	iQD - L	ength	of source	nd core	4 in. a⊔ ∇	nd longer/len; Groundwater	gth core	erd, 7 SR	mples taken.			PUBLIC SE	RVICECO	OMPANY OF	NEW HAMPSHIRE
U U	- s	piic #p Indistu	rbed s	amples	¥	oroundwater		2) No	o drill times av	a Hahi	e.	YANK	LE ATOM	OC ELECTR	
ž	5	5 - She F - Fix	lby tub ed pist	e N Lon P	- Deni - Pite	iann her						G		an again an an an an an an an an an an an an an	
	Ċ	7 - Oat	erberg	G	- GEI	C #						Date: August 15, 1	974		Project
10	, - C	ruun∦	, ureax	•		some rene for or		ł				PACE 1 OF		1000	

OF CONTRACT ENGINEERS IN
E	ORING	LOCAT	10N	Break! Green	ast till and No	Road w. Hampshire		NCLINATION	<u>11</u> *	BEA	RI	NG	DA LE STAR L/FINIS	4 July	30, 1974	/ August N, 1974
c	ASING	no	<u>3 in.</u>			CORESIZE	2-1_	S in	TOTAL DEPTH			204.3 ft	DRILLED BY American Drilling and Boring Co.: N. Allen			
c	ROUND	EL (M	SL)	161.8 f	Ľ	depth to w	ATER	DATE	-2.5 <u>(t</u>	2.5 R / July 30, 1974 LOGGED BY Soll - K. J., Polk; Rock - J. R. R			1, R. Rand			
EL.		SAMPL	E	RATE	WAT CONT	ER or RUD	PRES	SURE FEST	STRIKE, DIP F = Foliation		ð		SOIL AND ROC	K DESC	RIPTIONS	_
M3L	Depth	and	N Or Bec	ADV.		Graphic	gpm	Computed	J = Joint C = Contact B = Bedding	COR	BREA	(Weather in	ng, defecta, etc.)		(Type, t color	exture, mineralogy, ;, hardness, etc.)
	1."	10.	Neci	prin/19	<u> </u>	TITITI	00	10 cm/sec	R = Slickerselde		-	CONTINU	ED FROM PREVIOUS P	AGF		
40	ET	NX-12	100			777			_ <u>S ~ SUCKEASIO</u>	ĒI	ş.		<u></u>			Contact broken
	F				**	V/A				Ē	1 10-1	effects				Amphibolite (?). Dark
	E150	NN 21	100		2"					F			Fairly fresh Internally	1	Feidspathic	in PF-2. Fine-grained,
	E		100	16,0		TTT				Ē	1	Moderate wx	slight to moderate wx,		Foldenathio	rock, Local feldspathic
	È	NX-22 NX-23	100	13.0	n	44	. 1			El	-		Joints and partings	3	rendaparitie	transitional with amphi-
100	E-1 60					Y//				E		Moderale wx Pyrite	nor succensioen.		Feidspathic	magnetic.
	F	NX-24	100	4.9	29	V//				E		crystals		100 million (1997) 1997 - 1997 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 19	Feldsnathic	
	E.F	NX-21	97	7.8	43	J/J				Ē	S.	Slight wx	Fairly fresh, Subject to slight we effects,	****		fine-grained. Locally
	E'']	NX-26	100	5.4	22	Y//				Ē	1-1-1		Joints and partings are not silckensided	ASX		or seams. Local zones
	ŧ ŀ					4//				ĒI			or polished.	1. 	Quartz it ic	quarizitic gneiss.
	Fin	NX-27	97	6.2	36	¥4-4				E	La China	Chips	Fresh and hard. Loca minor wx effects.	مسطنیہ ہے۔ استیتر سے ا	Dark green Juartzitie	Gneiss, alternating
120	Ë	NX-2×	100	3.9	32	V/				EI	1	Vuggy Crystal growths	Joints are planar and are not silekensided	**-	Dark green	quartzitic gneiss and gravi eventy invered quartzitic -
	ŧΓ	NX-29	100	6.0	0	777				ξl	ā L		or polished.			gneiss, Gradational contacts Dark green
	E- 94-									F		Minor vuggy	Shows some internal		Dark green Eveniv	rock, looks like amphi-
	F	NX -30	100	4.9	49					E			Iolding.		foliated gneiss	Feldspathic gnelss, pink
	Ē	]		.						E	Ï	Minor yuggy	Fresh, Joints and		Amphibo- Hie	magnetic.
140	Ē	NX+31	100	10.9	62					ŧ	-		partings are not slickensided or validhed		nuartzite 0.1' welded	1
	E					· #		BOTTOM	OF BORING	Ē	1		Note: Contains mag-		<u>IIII</u>	-
	Ę									Ē			netite concentrations 200,01 to 201,31,			1
	Ē				1					Ē			Strongly magnetic, coarse feldspathic			1
	ŧ	}								È			gneiss.			
l	Ē									F						
	Ę									E						
	Ē									E						1
	Ē									E						1
	Ē									El						
	Ē									E						
	È	ĺ								Εl						
	Ę							i		ŧ						1
	Ē									Ē						1
	Ē									E						
	Ę							1		Ē			•			Ē
	E									E						
	Ē									FI						1
	ł									E						1
	Ē									E				•		
	E							ł		El						
										FI						
	Ē									E						1
	ŧ									E		······································	<b>.</b>			
	4 - S	tanilar	pene	ration		nce, blows ft		NOTE	s				SEAB	BRO	OK ST	TATION
	unn - 1 1911 - 1	Angth i Angth i	ecove of sour	red len d core	an cor in. n⊔ V	ru, 4 nd longer/len Groundwater	gth core	м, <sup>т</sup>					PUBLIC SER	IVICE CO	MPANY OF	NEW HAMPSHIRE
<b>DNB</b>	, -8 J -1	ndistu:	rbed si	mples	Ŧ				•					r a cos <b>i unite</b> d	engineers	IX, X,ODHIANT A MARKANIN
Ĕ	: 1	i - Shel F- Fixe	by tub ed pist	e N On P	- Deni - Pitei	eon her							l G			
	( n _ r	) - Oste	break	G	- GEI	Coefficient of							Date: August 15, 19	971		Project 7286
	ν −1 α -V	Venther	oreak wd, wi	entherir	r.− Igr	permeability	v						PAGE 9 of		1.06-04	BORING PF-3A

O GROTECHNEAL ENGINEERS IN

### ATTACHMENT NO. 3

# PETROGRAPHY AND PRELIMINARY INTERPRETATION OF THREE SAMPLES OF DRILL CORE FROM THE PORTSMOUTH FAULT GREENLAND, NEW HAMPSHIRE

## Gene Simmons Dorothy A. Richter

## MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

#### CAMBRIDGE, MASSACHUSETTS

for

WESTON GEOPHYSICAL RESEARCH, INC.

WESTBORO, MASSACHUSETTS

# PETROGRAPHY AND PRELIMINARY INTERPRETATION

## OF THREE SAMPLES OF DRILL CORE

FROM THE PORTSMOUTH FAULT,

GREENLAND, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Weston Geophysical Research, Inc. Post Office Box 306 Weston, Massachusetts 02193

> Gene Simmons Dorothy Richter 26 August 1974

#### SUMMARY

In this report we describe three samples of drill core from the vicinity of the alleged Portsmouth fault near Greenland, New Hampshire. The three samples are metamorphic rocks. The pronounced laminations in sample PF-2A appear to be of primary depositional origin rather than of tectonic origin. The peculiar arcuate structures common to both samples PF-2A and PF-2C are reminiscent of glass shards, which suggests that the rocks are totally recrystallized meta-tuffs or reworked volcanic detritus of different compositions. Sample PF-2B is a partially recrystallized basalt which is probably younger than the other two samples. All three samples lack substantial preferred orientation of their minerals. Evidence for dynamic structural deformation, either recent or ancient, is entirely absent. In summary, we find no petrographic evidence that these three samples are associated with a fault. If a fault does exist in the region from which these samples were obtained, then either its deformation was not so pervasive as to affect these three samples, or else the deformation occurred before metamorphism and all petrographic evidence has been erased by the last metamorphic event.

-1-

### PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE PF-2A 99.5-99.9'

Name: Felsic metatuff

#### Macroscopic Description

This sample is a finely laminated schist. It is light grey in color and fine grained. Layers of alternating light and dark colors are probably due to segregation of mineral phases. Euhedral crystals of pyrite (~ 1/2 mm) are abundant. The texture is punctuated by light colored augen and irregular 0.5 mm pores. This 5 inch core shows no veins, folds, and only a few large cracks. Microscopic Description

#### Texture

The average grain size is less than 0.05 mm. Laminations are the product of the effect of variations in grain size, in the proportions of quartz to mica, and the abundance of opaques. Micas tend to show a preferred orientation of flakes at an angle of about 60° to the laminae. Most of the veinlet-like seams of quartz follow the foliation; although a few seams crosscut the foliation they are not common and their margins have recrystallized to blend with the rest of the rock. The augen are pods of fine grained quartz. Some of the pores have minor amounts of weathering products around the rims.

A few large microcracks that are now completely healed were observed in the thin section. They are marked by chlorite, quartz, and trains of discrete grains of opaques (probably pyrite). However, there is no other textural evidence of penetrative deformation. The thin laminations and indications of flow structures imply that this sample is a recrystallized silicious tuff or reworked volcanic detritus.

#### Mineralogy

- Quartz is the most abundant mineral in the thin section. It occurs in very fine (0.01-0.1 mm) anhedral aggregates. The individual crystals appear strained and have sutured grain boundaries. Coarser grained quartz occurs in thin seams and pods which are generally parallel to the layering.
- Muscovite occurs as small flakes between quartz grains. It commonly shows a preferred orientation at about 60° to the layering. Muscovite rarely occurs in multigranular aggregates.
- Chlorite occurs scattered through the matrix, in minor amounts in thin seams both with and without quartz, and in a few of the darker laminae in the sample. It is pale green, fibrous, and exhibits blue and brown interference colors.
- Opaque grains occur in thin, discontinuous layers in the sample. Some seem to be dendrites parallel to the layers, and others are small nodules. Many crystals can be seen in hand specimens to occur as well formed

-3-

cubes.

Calcite and sphene occur in accessory amounts in some

of the layers.

# Estimated Modal Composition

quartz	60%
muscovite	15%
chlorite	15%
others	10%

100%

. .

#### PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE PF-2B 136-136.5'

#### Name: Metabasalt

#### Macroscopic Description

This massive dark grey sample has a fine grained, uniform, phaneritic texture. Felty plagioclase crystals (1-2 mm size) set in a dark groundmass are easily recognized with a hand lens. The plagioclase (Hardness 6) is evidently quite altered since it is readily pulverized by probing with a knife point (Hardness 5.5). In the black groundmass biotite flakes are large enough to be seen. Pyrite is present as widely dispersed anhedral grains. There are no veins or major cracks visible in the core. A few open pores are present.

### Microscopic Description

#### Texture

The thin section displays a primary intersertal texture which is partially masked by secondary minerals. Plagioclase laths (0.5 mm) form a mat with ferromagnesian and secondary minerals filling the interstices. Cleavage cracks are not abundant. There is no evidence of healed cracks, no veinlets, and no other signs of structural disruption. Even the larger feldspar crystals are remarkably free of all types of microcracks.

The absence of deformation structures in this rock indicates that no significant non-hydrostatic stress has

-5-

existed after the last metamorphic event. Hence, if a fault is present in the vicinity of this rock, stresses, if any, have been small since the time of last metamorphism of the rock.

### Mineralogy

- Plagioclase originally composed about 40% of the rock. It is now very highly altered to sericitic products. Most of the lath-like crystals have a turbid appearance, and are uniform 0.5 mm. There are a very few larger crystals which are now sericitized.
- Clinopyroxene (probably augite) occurs as abundant roundish grains 0.1 - 0.3 mm in diameter. The crystals have poor cleavage and weak zonation. The clinopyroxene is interpreted to be relict in this biotite grade metamorphic assemblage.
- Opaque grains are relatively abundant in thin section. They commonly have square outlines, and occur in clumps with pyroxene and biotite.
- Biotite occurs as subhedral crystals in the matrix. Basal sections are reddish brown while other orientations are pleochroic from yellowish brown to dark brown. The biotite is probably metamorphic in origin.
- Chlorite is a common mineral in the matrix of this rock. It is pale green and fibrous. There are a few ovoid mats of chlorite about 1 mm in diameter which may represent replaced olivine crystals.

Apatite is an accessory mineral in this sample. Euhedral

crystals are minute but common.

Actinolite needles are dispersed through the section.

Incipient blue green actinolite also seems to be

present in some chlorite mats.

Minor amounts of sphene and hematite are also present in the rock.

### Estimated Modal Composition

plagioclase (plagioclase + sericite)	40% e
clinopyroxene	15%
opaque	10%
biotite	15%
chlorite	15%
apatite and accessories	5%

100%

# PETROGRAPHY OF SAMPLE PF-2C 262.0-262.4'

Name: Fine Grained Amphibolite

#### Macroscopic Description

This specimen is a very fine grained dark green rock. The individual minerals are too small to identify with a hand lens. The rock is massive and non-foliated. It is cut by a weblike network of calcite and quartz veinlets. Small clots of pyrite are visible.

#### Microscopic Description

#### Texture

The sample displays a complex texture in thin section. The average grain size is about 50 microns. There is no preferred orientation or systematic foliation although the constituent minerals are metamorphic. There is a vague layering to the rock marked by arcuate clumps and thin layers of epidote and calcite. Calcite-quartz veins which randomly crosscut the rock are partially recrystallized.

#### Mineralogy

Amphibole (probably hornblende) and chlorite, in about equal proportions, are in the sample. The amphibole occurs as brownish green stubby, poorly formed crystals finely mixed with chlorite. The crystals are pleochroic from pale green to brownish green. There is no apparent preferred orientation of the grains.

Chlorite is also a major phase in the rock. It is generally

pale bluish green and forms both platy mats and stringy aggregates.

- Epidote occurs as minute granular crystals clustered in veins, in arcuate clumps, and scattered through the matrix.
- Quartz forms spongy crystals in the matrix barely resolvable at high magnification, and clear 0.1 mm crystals in veins.
- Sphene is widely distributed as nodular aggregates and a few 0.1 mm subhedral crystals.
- Apatite is present as accessory crystals.
- Calcite is common in fine grained veins and in lesser amounts in the matrix.

Opaque grains are usually associated with veins and are not common in the matrix.

Estimated	Modal	Composition	
-----------	-------	-------------	--

amphibole	25%
chlorite	25%
epidote	20%
quartz	20%
calcite	5%
opaque	
sphene &	58
apatite )	





Photo 1. Sample PF-2A 99.5-99.9'. Felsic metatuff. Plane polarized light. Width of field 1.5 mm. The photomicrograph shows the fine grained nature of the sample. Roundish white spots are quartz which are obscured by muscovite and chlorite. The thin discontinuous laminae are composed of sphene, calcite, iron oxides, and chlorite. (The black circles are bubbles in the epoxy.)



Photo 2. Sample PF-2A 99.5-99.9'. Felsic metatuff. Plane polarized light. Width of field 0.5 mm. This photomicrograph is an enlarged view of the matrix and shows one of the few quartz veinlets which crosscuts the laminae. The thin, discontinuous laminae are composed of sphene, calcite, iron oxides, and chlorite. In this view, the dark laminae are almost opaque because the individual grains are only about  $1-2\mu$ .



Photo 3. Sample PF-2B 136-136.5'. Metabasalt. Plane polarized light. Width of field 1.5 mm. This photomicrograph shows the typical textures observed in this sample. The light grey dusty looking background is altered plagioclase. Ovoid darker grains are relict clinopyroxene. Note the abundance of black grains; they are both opaque minerals and iron-rich biotite. See photo 4 for the details of the fabric.



Photo 4. Sample PF-2B 136-136.5'. Metabasalt. Plane polarized light. Width of field 0.5 mm. This photomicrograph shows the typical details of the fabric. Note how pervasively altered the plagioclase is. Note also the hexagonal biotite plates; the euhedral form implies that the biotite is metamorphic.



Photo 5. Sample PF-2C 262-262.4'. Fine grained amphibolite. Plane polarized light. Width of field 1.5 mm. This photomicrograph shows a typical view of this sample. The fine light and medium grey crystals are intergrown amphibole and chlorite; the white grains are quartz; and the darkest aggregates are clusters of epidotecalcite-sphene. Note the abundant arcuate guartz and epidote shapes; these are all polygranular.



Photo 6. Sample PF-2C 262-262.4'. Fine grained amphibolite. Plane polarized light. Width of field 0.5 mm. This photomicrograph shows the intimate amphibolechlorite intergrowths, and a granular epidote-sphene seam which arches across the field of view.

## ATTACHMENT NO. 4

# K-Ar AGE DETERMINATIONS OF SEVEN SAMPLES RELATED TO THE INFERRED PORTSMOUTH FAULT

GEOCHRON LABORATORIES DIVISION KRUEGER ENTERPRISES, INC.

CAMBRIDGE, MASSACHUSETTS

for

WESTON GEOPHYSICAL RESEARCH, INC.

WESTBORO, MASSACHUSETTS



24 BLACKSTONE STREET 

CAMBRIDGE, MASSACHUSETTS 02139

(617) 876-3691

20 August 1974

Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysical Res. Inc. P.O. Box 550 Westboro, MA 01581

Dear Mr. Holt:

Enclosed are the analytical reports Mr. Rand requested. They are B-1236, B-1237 and B-1238 which were submitted for analyses on 20 January 1969.

Please forward these reports to Mr. Rand and if we can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,

euch Mishave

Derreth McStowe Office Manager



24 BLACKSTONE STREET + CAMBRIDGE MA 02139 + (617)- 176-3691

### POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINA 1 (OF)

### REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

Our Sample No.	B-	1	2	3	6
----------------	----	---	---	---	---

Your Reference: B2 129.5

Date Received: 20 January 1969

Date Reported:31 January 1969

Submitted by: Ed Levine Weston Geophysical Research Inc. P.O. Box 364 Weston, MA

Sample Description & Locality:

Newburyport quartz diorite, biotite-bearing phase, drill core B2, Seabrook, N.H.

### Material Analyzed:

Biotite concentrate, -20/+100 mesh

$Ar^{40} * / K^{40} = 0.0186$	AGÉ	= 2 <b>94</b> ( <u>+</u> 9)x 10 <sup>6</sup> yrs
Argon Analyses:		
Ar <sup>4 o</sup> *, ppm.	Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>	Ave. Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.
0.1431	0.950	0.1432
0.1432	0.953	
Potassium Analyses:		
% К 6.295	<b>Ανε</b> : <b>%Κ</b> 6.306	K <sup>40</sup> , ppm 2 <b>.</b> 693
6.316		
Constants Used:	, Г.	
$\lambda \beta = 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \text{year}$	$AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_0 + \lambda_3} \ln \left[\frac{1}{\lambda_0 + \lambda_3}\right]$	$\frac{\lambda_{B} + \lambda_{e}}{\lambda_{e}} \times \frac{Ar^{40}}{K^{40}} + 1$
$\lambda_{e} = 0.585 \text{ x } 10^{-10} / \text{ year}$		·

 $K^{40}/K = 1.22 \times 10^{-4} \text{ g./g.}$ 

24 Blackstone Street, Conteringe, Mass. 02139 Telephone. TRendvidge 6.8591



REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

Our Sample No. 3-1237

Your Reference: 💥 🍂 🤧

Date Received: 29 January 1969 Date Reported: 31 January 1969

Submitted by:

Vector Comparison Research, Inc. 7. 0. Nor 300 Verten, Mass.

Sample Description & Locality:

Metite-cich meteoodizent of the Marzianck Group, Brill Core IN 54, 93', Secbreck, N. M.

Material Analyzed: Motite em grained to the most bi	be completely free grains, the istite-rich grains was used.	bistite was too fine merefure, a concentrate of Estimated 70-80% bistite.
Ar <sup>40</sup> */K <sup>40</sup> = <b>0.0159</b>	AGE	= 254 (19) x 10" years.
Argon Analyses:	/	
Ar <sup>4 0</sup> <b>*</b> , ppm.	Ar 40*/ Total Ar 40	Ave. Ar <sup>40 +</sup> , ppm.
0.0483	0 <b>.892</b>	
0.0483	0. <i>89</i> 7	U. 9403
Potassium Analyses:		
% K	Ave. %K	K <sup>40</sup> , ppm
2.430	2. 186	9-634
2.542		
Constants Used:	, г. Г.	
$\lambda \theta = 4.72 \text{ x } 10^{-10} \text{/ year}$	$AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda_e} \ln \left[\frac{\Delta}{\Delta_e}\right]$	$\frac{\beta + \lambda_{\theta}}{\lambda_{\theta}} \times \frac{Ar^{40}}{\kappa^{40}} + 1$
$\lambda_{e} = 0.585 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year}$	β	
$K^{40}/K = 1.22 \times 10^{-4} \text{ g./g.}$		

Note: Ar 40 \* refers to radio enic As 45



REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

Date Received:

POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

Date Reported 31 Jameser 1969

Our Sample No. 3.1998

Your Reference: 39 32-3\*

Submitted by:

ical Inc., Ich. t 3 rtas, X

Sample Description & Locality: Motile phase of Novburyport Quarts diorite, Drill core B9, Secbrock, N.H. Coarse-grained dicrite in ignoons contast with dark, fine-grained rock.

Material Analyzed: Mietite concentrate. -40/+100 meth. from compo ignome ph Presh blotite, 755, Calerite, 15%; Aughibele, 105.

$Ar^{40} * / K^{40} = 0.0179$	AGE	= 284 (19) x 10 <sup>6</sup> years.
Argon Analyses:		
Ar <sup>40+</sup> , ppm.	Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>	Ave. Ar <sup>4</sup> /c*, ppm.
0.0854	0.935	
0.0904* 0.0860	0.917	0-0077
(Ther are semie - not a	mai in ann calculation).	
Potassium Analyses:		
% К	Ave. %K	K <sup>40</sup> , ppm
3.998		
3.868	3-933	4.798
Constants Used:	· ·	ч.
$\lambda \beta = 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year}$	AGE - 1 - In -	$\frac{\lambda_{\beta} + \lambda_{e}}{\lambda} \times \frac{Ar^{40}}{4r^{40}} + 1$
$\lambda_{0} = 0.585 \times 10^{-1.0} / \text{ver}$	<sup>^</sup> e <sup>τ</sup> <sup>^</sup> β L	^e K <sup>40</sup> ⊥
$e = 0.007 \times 10^{-7}$ year		
$N = 1.22 \times 10^{-1} g_{1/g_{1}}$		

Note: Ar<sup>40</sup>\* refers to radiogenic Ar<sup>40</sup>.



24 Blackstone Street • Cambridge, Massachusetts 02139 • (617) 876-3691

19 August 1974

Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysical Res. Inc. P.O. Box 550 Westboro, MA 01581

Dear Mr. Holt:

Enclosed are the analytical reports of the K-Ar age determinations on the seven (7) rock samples described in John Rand's letter of 18 July 1974.

These samples were a little difficult to work with because of the type of materials, however we did the best we could with them. The measured K-Ar ages are about what I would expect for these rocks.

I will be away for a few days, but Hal Krueger will be here. I have discussed these results with him, and he is quite familiar with the geology of the area in question and with the work we did for you in this area several years ago. He will be happy to discuss these results with you in greater detail if you care to give him a call.

In the meantime, I am enclosing our invoice for this work. We look forward to serving you again in the near future.

Sincerely,

mar

Richard H. Reesman General Manager A.J.

RHR/dm nelc: 7 reports & invoice #4473 cc: J.R. Rand (letter)



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617) - 876 - 3691

# POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

### REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

Date Reported: 16 August 1974

22 July 1974

Date Received:

Our Sa	ample	No.	B-2882
--------	-------	-----	--------

Your Reference: PF - S1

Submitted by: Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysical Res., Inc. P.O. Box 550 Westboro, MA 01581

Sample Description & Locality: Kittery quartzite Towle Road, Hampton-Exeter Expressway Hampton, New Hampshire

Material Analyzed: Chloritized biotite concentrate, -80/+200 mesh.

$Ar^{40*}/K^{40} = .01687$		AGE =	268 <u>+</u>	10	M.Y.
Argon Analyses:					
Ar <sup>4</sup> ° <b>*</b> , <b>ppm.</b>	Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>		Ave	. Ar <sup>40</sup> *,	, <b>pp</b> m.
.06717 .06588	•834 •862			•066	53
Potassium Analyses:					
% K	Ave. %K		к	<sup>40</sup> , ppm	1
3.224 3.242	3.233			3.944	

#### **Constants Used:**

$$\begin{split} \lambda \beta &= 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year} \\ \lambda_e &= 0.585 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year} \\ \text{K}^{40} / \text{K} &= 1.22 \times 10^{-4} \text{ g./g.} \end{split}$$

 $AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda_\beta} \ln \left[ \frac{\lambda_\beta + \lambda_e}{\lambda_e} \times \frac{Ar^{40*}}{K^{40}} + 1 \right]$ 



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617)- 876-3691

# POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

## REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

Our Sample No. A-2883

Your Reference: PF - S2

Date Received: 22 July 1974

Date Reported: 16 August 1974

Submitted by: Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysical Res., Inc. P.O. Box 550 Westboro, MA 01581

Sample Description & Locality: Rye fm. feldspathic quartzite Winnicut Road, Route 151 North Hampton, New Hampshire

Material Analyzed: Amphibole concentrate, -80/+200 mesh. Estimated composition: 95% gray-black amphibole, 5% adhering groundmass.

$Ar^{40*/K^{40}} = .01960$	` 	AGE =	308 <u>+</u> 14	M.Y.
Argon Analyses:				
Ar <sup>4</sup> <sup>0</sup> *, ppm.	Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>		Ave. Ar <sup>40</sup>	*, ppm.
.01794 .01752	•674 •668		.01	773
Potassium Analyses:				
% К	Ave. %K		K <sup>40</sup> , pp	m

ĸ	Ave. %K	κ ···, ppm
.752	.741	•904
731		•

#### **Constants Used:**

$$AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda_{\beta}} \ln \left[ \frac{\lambda_{\beta} + \lambda_e}{\lambda_e} \times \frac{Ar^{40*}}{K^{40}} + 1 \right]$$

$$\begin{split} \lambda \beta &= 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year} \\ \lambda_e &= 0.585 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year} \\ \text{K}^{40} / \text{K} &= 1.22 \times 10^{-4} \text{ g./g.} \end{split}$$



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617) - 876 - 3691

POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION			REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK		
Our Sample No.	M-2884		Date Received:	22 July 1974	
Your Reference:	PF - S3	•	Date Reported:	16 August 1974	
Submitted by:	Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysica P.O. Box 550 Westboro, MA 0158	l Research Inc.			
Sample Descriptio	n & Locality: Rye Rout Port	fm. feldspathic e 1 Bypass, Lafa smouth, New Hamp	gneiss yette Road shire		
Material Analyzed	d: Muscovite conc 90% msucovi	entrate, -80/+20 te, 5% biotite,	0 mesh. Estima 57 quartz and 5	ated comp <b>osi</b> tion: Eeldspar.	
$Ar^{40*}/K^{40} =$	01864		AGE = 294	<u>+</u> 10 M.Y.	
Argon Analyses:					
Ar <sup>4 0</sup> <b>*, ppm</b> .		Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>	F	ve. Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.	
.1522 .1478		.852 .782		.1500	
Potassium Analyse	<u>IS:</u>				
% К		Ave. %K		K <sup>40</sup> , ppm	
6.563 6.631		6.597		8.048	
Constants Used:			-		
$\lambda \beta = 4.72 \times 10^{-10}$	' year	AGE = $\frac{1}{\lambda + \lambda}$	$-\ln\left \frac{\lambda_{\beta}+\lambda_{e}}{\lambda}\right  \times$	$\frac{Ar^{40*}}{10}$ + 1	
$\lambda_{\rm e} = 0.585 \times 10^{-16}$	<sup>0</sup> / year	ne ' n	} L ^e	K <sup>40</sup> -	
$K^{40}/K = 1.22 \times 10^{-10}$	O <sup>-4</sup> g./g.	-			



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617) - 876 - 3691

## POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

### REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

Our Sample No. M- 2885

Your Reference: PF - S4

Date Received: 22 July 1974

Date Reported: 16 August 1974

Submitted by: Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysical Res., Inc. P.O. Box 550 Westboro, MA 01581

Sample Description & Locality: Rye fm. feldspathic quartzite Route 1 Bypass, Greenleaf Road Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Material Analyzed: Concentrate of fine-grained mica-quartz aggregates, -80/+200 mesh.

$Ar^{40*}/K^{40} = .01645$		AGE =	262 <u>+</u> 11	M.Y.
Argon Analyses:				
Ar <sup>4 0</sup> <b>*</b> , <b>ppm.</b>	Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>		Ave. Ar 40 *	<b>, pp</b> m.
•02042 •02049	.625 .645		.020	46
Potassium Analyses:				
% К	Ave. %K		K <sup>40</sup> , ppr	n
1.015 1.023	1.019		1.243	
Constants Used:		-	·•	٦
$\lambda \beta = 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year}$	AGE = $\frac{1}{1+1}$	$-\ln \frac{\lambda_{\beta}}{\lambda}$	$\frac{\lambda_e}{\lambda_e} \times \frac{Ar^{40*}}{\lambda_e} +$	1
$\lambda_{e} = 0.585 \times 10^{-10} / \text{year}$	$\Lambda_e + \Lambda_{\hat{\beta}}$		e K <sup>40</sup>	L

Note: Ar <sup>40</sup> \* refers to radiogenic Ar <sup>40</sup>. M.Y. refers to millions of years.

 $K^{40}/K = 1.22 \times 10^{-4} \text{ g./g.}$ 



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617) - 876 - 3691

# POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

## REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

A-2886 Date Received: 22 July 1974 Our Sample No. Your Reference: SRF - S1 Date Reported: 16 August 1974 Richard J. Holt Submitted by: Weston Geophysical Res., Inc. P.O. Box 550 Westboro, MA 01581 Sample Description & Locality: Diorite Scotland Road, Interstate 95 Newbury, Massachusetts Material Analyzed: Amphibole concentrate, -80/+200 mesh. Estimated composition: 85% amphibole, 10% biotite, 5% chlorite.  $Ar^{40} * / K^{40} = .02764$ AGE = 422 + 17M.Y. Argon Analyses: Ar <sup>4</sup> <sup>0</sup> **\***, ppm. Ar<sup>40\*</sup>/ Total Ar<sup>40</sup> Ave. Ar 40 \*, ppm. .807 .03892 .03714 .389 .04070 **Potassium Analyses:** % K K<sup>40</sup>, ppm Ave. %K 1.407 1.154 1.154 1.154 Constants Used:  $AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda_{\beta}} \ln \left[ \frac{\lambda_{\beta} + \lambda_e}{\lambda_e} \times \frac{Ar^{40*}}{\kappa^{40}} + 1 \right]$  $\lambda \beta = 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \text{ year}$  $\lambda_e = 0.585 \times 10^{-10}$  / year  $K^{40}/K = 1.22 \times 10^{-4} \text{ g./g.}$ 



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA 02139 . (617) - 876 - 3691

# POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

## REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

Our Sample No.	A-2887		Date Received	: 22 July 1974
Your Reference:	SRF - S2		Date Reported	i: 16 August 1974
Submitted by:	Richard J. Hol Weston Geophys P.O. Box 550 Westboro, MA (	t pical Res., Inc. 01581		
Sample Description	& Locality:	Schist Highfield Road, Ab Newbury, Massachus	andoned RR gra etts	ade
Material Analyzed:	Chlorite - composit	amphibole concentr tion: 40% amphibole	ate, -80/+200 , 60% chlorite	mesh. Estimated
$Ar^{40} * / K^{40} = .02$	1932		AGE = 304	4 <u>+</u> 15 M.Y.
Argon Analyses:				
Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.		Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>		Ave. Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.
.01162 .01136		.381 .548		.01149
Potassium Analyses	2			
% K		Ave. %K		K <sup>40</sup> , ppm
•492 •483		.487		•594
Constants Used: $\lambda \beta = 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \gamma^{2}$ $\lambda_{e} = 0.585 \times 10^{-10} / \gamma^{2}$ $K^{40} / K = 1.22 \times 10^{-10} / \gamma^{2}$	year / year <sup>-4</sup> g./g.	$AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda}$	$\frac{1}{\beta} \ln \left[ \frac{\lambda_{\beta} + \lambda_{e}}{\lambda_{e}} \right]$	$x \frac{Ar^{40*}}{K^{40}} + 1$



24 BLACKSTONE STREET . CAMBRIDGE, MA. 02139 . (617)- 876-3691

# POTASSIUM-ARGON AGE DETERMINATION

## REPORT OF ANALYTICAL WORK

Our Sample No.	B-2888		Date Received:	22 July 1974
Your Reference:	SRF - S3		Date Reported:	16 August 1974
Submitted by:	Richard J. Holt Weston Geophysi P.O. Box 550 Westboro, MA 01	cal Res., Inc. 581		
Sample Descriptio	n & Locality: N I N	Newburyport granodi Parker Street, Litt Newburyport, Massac	orite le River area husetts	
Material Analyzec	i: Chlorite-bio compositio	tite concentrate, - on: 70% chloritize	80/+200 mesh. d biotite, 30%	Estimated quartz.
Ar <sup>40</sup> */K <sup>40</sup> = .	01860		AGE = 294	<u>+</u> 20 M.Y.
Argon Analyses:				
Ar <sup>4 0</sup> <b>*, pp</b> m.		Ar <sup>40</sup> */ Total Ar <sup>40</sup>	A	ve. Ar <sup>40</sup> *, ppm.
.005765 .005330		•325 •370		<b>.</b> 005548
Potassium Analyse	<u>s:</u>			
% K .245 .244		Ave. %K _244		K <sup>40</sup> , ppm .298
<u>Constants Used:</u> $\lambda_{\beta} = 4.72 \times 10^{-10} / \Lambda_{e} = 0.585 \times 10^{-10}$	′year <sup>0</sup> /year	$AGE = \frac{1}{\lambda_e + \lambda_p}$	$-\ln\left[\frac{\lambda_{\beta}+\lambda_{e}}{\lambda_{e}}\right] \times$	$\frac{Ar^{40*}}{K^{40}}$ + 1

Note: Ar <sup>40</sup> \* refers to radiogenic Ar <sup>40</sup>. M.Y. refers to millions of years.

 $K^{40}/K = 1.22 \times 10^{-4} \text{ g./g.}$ 

ì